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To the partners of J:;s}ulnhu 592
Delfin S.ar.l.

7, rue de la Chapelle,

L-1325 Luxembourg

REPORT OF THE REVISEUR ID’ENTREPRISES AGREE

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Delfin 8.3 r.l., which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2013, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.
Responsibility of the Board of Managers for the consolidated financial statements

The Board of Managers is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union, and for such internal control the Board of Managers determines is necessary to enable the

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Responsibility of the réviseur d’entreprises agréé

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing as adopted for
Luxembourg by the Commission de Surveillance du Sectewr Financier. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether

the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Deloitte.

Ax audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the réviseur d'entreprises agréé's
judgement including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated finaneial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the réviseur d ‘entreprises
agréé considers internal contro] relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate it the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal

control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the Board of Managers, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of

the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of Delfin 8.4 r.l as of December 31, 2013, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The consolidated management report, which is the responsibility of the Board of Managers, is consistent

with the consolidated financial statements.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de révision agréé

X
T
N,
-
H-.
~

Nick 'I'ab@.‘?vﬂs‘mu' d'entreprises agréé

Partner

Luxembourg, January 22, 2015



Document émis électroniquement

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012
(in thousands of euros)

Notes 31/12/2013 31/12/2012

ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT 11 1.239.710 1.251.218

GOODWILL 12 3.110.279 3.213.833

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 1.261.157 1.345.690

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 13 1.403.996 1.334.665

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 16 172.623 169.662

FINANCIAL FIXED ASSETS 14 1.918.086 1.339.699

OTHER ASSETS 15 69.193 84.318
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 9.175.044 T 8.739.085
CURRENT ASSETS

INVENTORIES 8 698.957 728.775

LONG TERM ASSETS HELD FOR

SALE 2.343 2.454

INCOME TAX RECEIVABLES 49.867 51.107

TRADE RECEIVABLES 7 680.938 700.470

FINANCIAL ASSETS 9 192.727 116.578

OTHER ASSETS 10 196.217 163.920

CASIT AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 6 676.156 864.029
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2.497.205 T 2627333
TOTAL ASSETS 11.672.249 11.366.418

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012
(in thousands of euros)

Notes 31/12/2013 31/12/2012
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
ISSUBD CAPTITAL 17 500.930 500.930
RESERVIES 17 (1.061.856) (1.517.006)
RETAINED EARNINGS 17 405.028 201.805
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY (155.899) (814.272)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 18 1.585.422 1.500.134
TOTAL EQUITY T 1429523 685.862
LIABILITIES
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
SUBORDINATLED DIBT 24 4.771.538 4.911.406
LONG-TERM FINANCIAL LIABILITIIES 25 1.716.410 2.052.105
LIABILITY FOR TERMINATION
INDEMNTTIES 26 76.673 191.971
DLEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 16 268.078 227.806
LONG TTERM PROVISIONS 27 99.287 121.240
OTHIER LIABILITILS 28 74.151 52.702
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES T 7.006.137 7.557.230
CURRENT LIABILITIES
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 19 1.162.158 1.144.766
CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 25 318.100 310.072
TRADE PAYABLES 20 682.986 684.123
TAX PAYABLES 21 11.289 67.050
PROVISIONS 22 123.687 66.032
OTIIER LIABILITIES 23 938.369 851.283
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES T 3236589 3.123.326
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES T 11672249 11.366.418

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

Delfin S.a r.l. - Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2013 Page 6 of 86
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEARs ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012
(in thousands of euros)

Notes 2013 2012
REVENUES 7.315.813 7.089.651
COST OF SALLS (2.524.006) (2.435.992)
GROSS INDUSTRIAL PROFIT 4.791.807 4.653.659
SELLING 2.241.841 (2.270.071)
ROYALTIES (144.588) (124.403)
ADVIERTISING (479.878) (446.175)
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES (877.362) (849.960)
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES (3.743.669) (3.690.309)
OPERATING INCOME 1.048.138 963.050
FINANCIAL INCOMIZ 29 57.234 38.833
FINANCIAL EXPENSES 29 (132.546) (210.867)
OTHER - NET 29 (7.757) (6.427)
INCOME/EXPENSES FROM ASSOCIATES 13 72.613 (62.095)
INCOME BEFORE TAXES 1.037.682 722.494
INCOME TAXES 30 419.426 312.467
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 618.256 410.027
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (213.228) (208.222)
GROUP'S INTEREST IN NET INCOME 405.028 201.805

‘The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

Delfin S.a r.l. - Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2013 Page 7 of 86
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012

(Amouants in thousands of Huro) 2013 2012

Net income 618.256 410.027
Other comprehensive income:

ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Cash flow he.d.ge, net of tax of Furo 0.1 million, [furo 6.5 million and 318 13.700
Euro 11.4 million as of 31 December 2013, 2012

Currency transiation differences (286.602) (64.010)
QOCI from associates 14.583

Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

A(.:tl..larial (lois)/gain on defined benefit plans net of tax of Euro 39.9 63.217 (17.628)
million and Furo 9 million as of 31 December 2013 and 2012

AFS Movements 453.109 160.714
Total other comprehensive income-net of tax 244.625 85.452
Total comprehensive income for the year 862.881 502.804
Attributable to:

-Delfin S.4 r.l. shareholders’ equity 738.922 323.025
-Non-controlling interests 123.959 179.779
Total comprehensive income for the year 862.881 o 502.804 )

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Delfin S.a r.1. - Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2013 Page 8 ot 86
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012
(in thousands of euros)

31/12/2013 31/12/2012
Income before provision for income tax 1.037.682 722.494
Stock-based compensation 28.078 41.365
Depreciation, amottization and impairment 369.099 363.875
Net loss on disposals of fixed assets and other 15.609 32.700
Financial expenses 132.546 210.867
Other non-cash items* (36.427) (3.086)
Changes in accounts receivable (15.754) (34.652)
Changes in inventories 11.897 (79.782)
Changes in accounts payable 12.838 61.944
Changes in other assets/liabilities 12.282 (42.147)
Investment consolidated with equity method (69.331) 59.103
Total Adjustment 460.836 610.187
Cash flow generated from operating activities 1.498.518 1.332.681
Interest paid (111.133) (148.401)
Taxes paid (439.778) (272.226)
Net cash provided by operating activities 947.607 912.054
Additions of property, plant and equipment (271.838) (271.286)
Purchases of businesses-net of cash acquired** (104.462) (99.738)
Change in financial assets*** (321.920) (246.714)
Additions to intangible asscts (101.108) (117.005)
Cash used in investment activities (799.328) (734.743)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial staternents.

Delfin S.a r.l, - Consolidated Financial Statcments at 31 December 2013 Page 10 of 86
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012
(in thousands of euros)

31/12/2013 31/12/2012
Long term debt
Proceeds 4.504 512.700
(Repayments) (327.067) (1.355.173)
Increase in short term lines of credit 18.453 71.524
Stock option of subsidiaries exercised 75.266 74.558
(Purchase) / Sale of subsidiarics 42.356 538.071
Dividends paid to third parties (104.309) (80.168)
Cash flows generated/(utilized) by financing activity Wb W )
Increase/(decrease) in cash or cash equivalents (142.517) 61.177)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year C 864.029 934023
Effect of translation differences (45.356) (8.817)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 676.156 864029

* Other non-cash items in 2012 included expenses incurred for the reorganization of the Australian business for

Buro 14,2 million.

(**)  Purchases of businesscs—net of cash acquired in 2013 included the purchase of Mikli International for Euro

(71,9) million.

Purchases of businesses—net of cash acquired in 2012 included the purchase of Tecnol—Técnica Nacional de
Oculos Ltda for Furo (66,4) million, the purchase of a retail chain in Spain and Portugal for Euro (21,9) million

and other minor acquisitions for Ruro (11,4) million.

(***)  Increase in investment refers to the acquisition of 36,33 percent of the share capital of Salmoiraghi & Vigand in

2013.

(****) Prior year amounts were restated following the adoption of TAS 19 R. See note 2 of the Notes to the Consolidated

I'inancial Statements as of 31 December 2013,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial staternents.

Delfin S.4 r.1. - Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2013
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Delfin S.a r.1.

Registered office 7, rue de la Chapelle, I-1325 Luxembourg
Share capital Euro 682.960.000
Authorized and issued

NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

Delfin S.a t.). is a holding company incorporated in Italy in 1998. In June 2006 it moved its registered and administrative offices
to Luxembourg. The company owns a controlling stake in Luxottica Group S.p.A. (61,902%) (Luxottica), a company operating
in the spectacles sector, and various financial investments, a relevant stake, 27,63%, in the french real estate company Fonciére
des Régions (FDR) that is consolidated with the cquity method. The Company also owns controlling stakes in various
subsidiarics in Luxembourg and Furope.

Delfin S.a r.1,, its direct and indirect subsidiarics are hereby referred as the Group.

Reference is made to the Report by the Board of Directors for discussion of the significant transactions carried out in 2013.
The accounting vear of the Company coincides with the calendar year.

The Group employs more than 70.000 peoples in the world.

lLuxottica is a global leader in the design, manufacture and distribution of fashion, luxury, sport and performance eyewear.

‘Thanks to the strong growth enjoyed throughout 2013, total net sales reached a record luro 7,3 billion, net income attributable
to Luxottica’s stockholders increased to more than iuro 544 million (part of group 61,902%), headcount approximated
70.000 employees and the Company enjoyed a strong global presence.

Pounded in 1961 by leonardo Del Vecchio, Luxottica is now a vertically integrated organization whose manufacturing of
prescription frames, sunglasses and lenses is backed by a wide-reaching wholesale and retail distribution network comprising
6.417 retail locations, as of 31 December 2012, mostly in North America, Asia-Pacific and China.

Product design, development and manufacturing take place in six production facilitics in Italy, two wholly owned factories in
China and two sports sunglasses production facilitics in the United States. Luxottica also has a small plant in India serving the
local market.

The design and quality of our products and the strong and well-balanced brand portfolio are known around the world.

House brands include Ray-Ban, onc of the world’s best-known sun brands, QOakley, Vogue, Persol, Oliver Peoples, Arnette and
REVO, and the license brands include Bvlgari, Burberry, Chanel, Dolee & Gabbana, Donna Karan, Polo Ralph Lauren, Paul
Smith, Prada, Stella McCartacy, Tiffany, Tory Burch, Versace, Coach and starting 2013 Armani and Emporio Armani.

"I'he Tuxottica’s wholesale distribution network, covering 130 countries across five continents, has 18 distribution centers and
over 40 commercial subsidiaries providing direct operations in key markets. The Group is currently secking to penetrate
emerging markets and is exploring new channcls of distribution such as department stores, airports and railway stations.

Direct wholesale operations arc complemented by an extensive retail network. Luxottica is a leader in the prescription business
in North America with its LensCrafters and Pearle Vision retail brands, in Asfa-Pacific with OPSM, TLaubman & Pank and
Budget liyewear, and in China with LensCrafters. In the retail sun business, the Group operates approximately 2.480 retail
locations in North America, Asia-Pacific, South Africa, Furope and the Middle Zast, mainly through the Sunglass FTut brand.

In North America, Luxottica operates the points of sale for its licensed brands, with over 1.140 stores under the Scars Optical
and Target Optical brands. In addition, Luxottica is one of the largest Managed Vision Care operators in the United States,
through FEyceMed, and the second biggest lens finisher, having a network of five central laboratories and over 900 on-site labs at
LensCrafters stores.

The Oakley brand provides a powerful wholesale and retail (“O stores”) presence in both the performance optics and the sport
channels. In the O store locations, the Group offers a varicty of Oakley-branded products in addition to the Oakley sunglass
styles. Oakley-branded products include men’s and women’s apparel, footwear, backpacks and accessories designed for surf,
snow, golf, outdoor, motor sport, mountain bike and other athletic lifestyles.

Delfin 8.4 r.1. - Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2013 Page 12 of 86
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Lonciére des Régions (IFDR), based in I'rance, is today the leading office property company in Furope. A specialist in “key
account”partnerships and long leascs, it currently has assets of Euro 10 billion leased to large companics, including TFrance
‘T'élécom, "T'hales, Accor, [{DI7, Dassault Systémes, Sucz Linvironnement, 1BM, Telecom ltalia and “l'ecnimont. lts recognised
expertise has cnabled I'onci¢re des Régions to develop long-term real estate and financial partnerships and grow as a key player
in the real estate scctor.

It has also successfully launched its business model in other sectors of activity such as business premises (through Fonciere des
Murs (I'DM)) and logistics (through lfonciére Iiurope Logistic (I'I1L)); it is also present in the residential sector as main
sharcholder in Foncicre Développement Logements.

FDR’s ligures as at 31 December 2013:

Euro 10 billion in assets (Group sharc)

Furo 502 million in rental income (Group sharce)

290 employces

NAV liuro 77,7

LTV 452%

Breakdown of portfolio by type of asscts 63% offices, 19% residential, 9% service sector
Breakdown of portfolio by country 62% France, 21% in Ttaly, 16% Germany

Firm residual lease term 5,7 years

Occupancy rate 96%

Its partnership culture and long-term vision made Fonciére des Régions cnthusiastic about committing to an ambitious
approach to sustainable development, where the cnvironmental aspect takes pride of place and supplements social and
corporate actions.

lionciére des Régions has a consistent global strategy suited to the direct and indirect issues and impact associated with its real
cstate activity.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of 31 December 2013 have been prepared in accordance with the Tnternational Financial
Reporting Standards adopted by the European Union (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) as of the datc of approval of these consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Company.

1PRS are all the international accounting standards (“IAS™) and all the interpretations of the International 'inancial
Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC™).

The principles and standards utilized in preparing these consolidated financial statements have been consistently applied
through all periods presented.

"I'hese consolidated financial statements are composed of a consolidated statement of profit and loss, a consolidated statement
of comprchensive income, a statement of financial position, a consolidated statement of cash flows, a statement of changes in
stockholders” equity and related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The presentation of certain prior year information has been reclassificd to conform to the current presentation in particular at
the level of the subsidiary 1.uxottica Group. ‘I'he revision relates to the reclassification of the warchouse and freight-in shipping
expenses of certain subsidiaries of the Company from operating expenses, primarily genceral and administrative expenses, to cost
of sales. The Company has determined that the revision, totaling Ruro 56,9 million in 2012, is immaterial to the previously
reported financial statements and it does not impact any of the key Group’s financial indicators.

Delfin S.a r.l. - Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2013 Page 13 o 86
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The Company’s reporting currency for the presentation of the consolidated financial statements is the Euro. Unless otherwise
specified, the figures in the statements and within these notes to the consolidated financial statements are cxpressed in
thousands of liuro.

The Company presents a consolidated statement of profit and loss using the function of expense method. The Company
presents current and non-current asscts and cucrent and non-current labilitics as separate classifications in its consolidated
statement of financial position. This presentation of the consolidated statement of profit and loss and of the statement of
financial position is belicved to provide the most relevant information. ‘The statement of the consolidated cash flows was
prepared and presented utilizing the indirect method.

The financial statements were prepared using the historical cost convention, with the exception of certain financial assets and
liabilitics for which measurement at fair value is required.

"I'he consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. Management believes that, there are no
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continuce as a going concern.

Pursuant to IAS 14 Segment Reporting, the information here reported refers only to the subsidiary Luxottica Group S.p.A., insofar
as it is not applicable to all account items of the holding, The primary segment of disclosures made in regard to the subsidiary
Luxottica is broken down by sector of activity, whilc the secondary segment of disclosures provides information broken down
on a regional basis.

1. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

Scope of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2013 of Delfin S.a rl. include the financial statements of the parent
company, all of its subsidiarics and all the companies over which the Group exercises joint control.

The consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2013, approved by the respective boards of directors, were used for all
other consolidated companies. The financial statements prepared by the subsidiaries were adjusted by the parent company to
bring them into compliance with 117RSs.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiarics are any cntitics over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies (as defined by
IAS 27-Consolidated and Separate I'inancial Statements), generally with an ownership of more than one half of the voting rights.
"The existence and cffect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which conteol is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

‘T'he Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. ‘The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is mcasured as the fair value of the assets transfeered, the liabilities incurred and the cequity
interests issued by the Group. 'The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability cesulting trom a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition - related costs are expensed as incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognizes any non-controlling interest in the acquirce at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognized directly in the consolidated statement of income.

In business combinations achieved in stages, the Group remeasures its previously held equity interest in the acquiree at its
acquisition date fair value and recognizes the resulting gain or loss, if any, in operating income reflecting the Group’s strategy to
continue growing through acquisitions.

Tater-company transactions, balances and untcalized gains and losscs on transactions between Group companies are climinated.
Accounting policies of subsidiarics have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Delfin S.a r.l. - Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2013 Page 14 of 86
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The individual financial statements used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are prepared and approved
by the administrative bodics of the individual companics.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

Transactions with non-controlling interests are treated as transactions with equity owners of the Group. FFor purchases from
non-controlling intcrests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of
net asscts of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value,
with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit or loss.

Assoctates

Associates are any eatitics over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally with ownership of between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are
initially recognized at cost.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognized in the consolidated statement of income, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehensive income. “l'he
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or cxceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group doces
not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are climinated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
associates. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides cvidence of an impairment of the asser
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

Other companies

Investments in entities in which the Group does not have cither control or significant influence, gencrally with ownership of less
than 20%, arc originally recorded at cost and subsequently measured at fair valuc.

Transtation of the financial statements of foreign companies
The Group records transactions denominated in foreign currency in accordance with TAS 21-The Effect of Changes in Foreign
Exchanuge Rates.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which have the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilitics for cach consolidated statement of tinancial position presented are translated at che

closing rate at the date of that consolidated statement of financial position;

o) income and expenses for cach consolidated statement of income are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

() all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from the acquisition of a forcign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

The exchange rates used to translate foreign operations are reported within the Attachments to the notes to the consolidated
financial statements (Schedule 3).
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CHANGES IN THE GROUP
During 2013, the composition of the Group changed duc to the acquisition of Alain Mikli International SA (“Alain Mikli™).

On 25 March 2013, the Group subscribed to shares as part of a capital injection corresponding to a 36,33% equity stake in the
ltalian optical retailer Samoiraghi & Vigano. ‘T'he price paid for the investment, which is accounted for using the cquity method,
was [luro 45 million.

Pleasc refer to Note 4 “Business Combinations,” and Note 12 “Goodwill and other Intangible asscts” for a description of the
primary changes to the composition of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash cquivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in valuc. Tnvestments qualify as
cash equivalents only when they have a maturity of three months or less from the date of the acquisition.

Accounts receivable and other receivables

Accounts reccivable and other receivables arc carried at amortized cost. Losses on receivables are measured as the difference
between the receivables” carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the receivables’
original cffective interest rate computed at the time of initial recognition. The carrying amount of the receivables is reduced
through an allowance for doubtful accounts. The amount of the losses on written-off accounts is recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within sclling expenses.

Subsequent collections of previously written-off receivables are recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as a
reduction of sclling expenscs.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of the cost determined by using the average annual cost method by product line, which
approximates the weighted average cost, and the net realizable value. Provisions for write-downs for raw materials and finished
goods which are considered obsolete or slow moving are computed taking into account their expected future utilization and
their realizable value. "T'he realizable value represents the estimated sales price, net of estimated sales and distribution costs.

Land, property, plant and equipment

land, property, plant and equipment are measured at historical cost. Historical cost includes expenditures that are dicectly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. After initial recognition, property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss. Tand is not depreciated. The depreciable amount of the items
of property, plant and equipment, measured as the difference between their cost and their residual value, is allocated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated uscful lives as follows:

Buildings and building improvements I'rom 19 to 40 years

Machinery and equipment I'rom 3 to 12 years

Aircraft 25 years

Other cquipment FFrom 5 to 8 ycars

Leaschold Improvements The lower of useful life and the residual

duration of the lease contract
Depreciation ends on the date on which the asset is classified as held for sale, in compliance with IFRS 5-Now-Crrrent Assets.
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s cartying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future cconomic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be

measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derccognized. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
charged to the consolidated statement of income during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Borrowing costs that are dircetly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying item of property,
plant and equipment are capitalized as part of the cost of that assct.

Upon disposal or when no future cconomic benefits are expected from the use of an item of property, plant and equipment, its
carrying amount is derecognized. The gain or loss arising from derccognition is included in profit and loss.

Asscts held for sale

Assets held for sale include non-current asscts (or disposal groups) whese carrying amount will be primarily recovered through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and whose sale is highly probable in the short term. Assets held for sale
are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and their fair value, less costs to sell.

Finance and operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated
statement of income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases where lessees bear substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. 'inance leases are
capitalized at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum leasc payments.

Rach finance lease payment is allocated hetween the liability and finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, arc included in “long-term debt” in the statement of financial position. The interest clement of the finance cost
is charged to the consolidated statement of income over the lease period. 'T'he assets acquired under finance leases are
depreciated over the shorter of the uscful life of the asset and the lease term.

Intangible assets
(a) Goodnill

Goodwill tepresents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is tested at least annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

(b) Trademarks and other intangible assets

Separatcly acquired trademarks and licenses are shown at historical cost. ‘I'rademarks, licenses and other intangible assets,
including distribution networks and franchisee agreements, acquired in a business combination are recognized at fair value at
the acquisition date. 'I'tademarks and licenses have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of trademarks and
licenses over their estimated useful lives.

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a business combination are recognized at tair value at the acquisition date. T'he
contractual customer relations have a finite uscful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated

impairment losses. Amortization is recognized over the expected life of the customer relationship.

All intangible asscts arc subject to impairment tests, as required by IAS 36-Tnpairment of Assets, if there are indications that the
assets may be impaired.

Impairment of asscts

Intangible asscts with an indefinite uscful life, for example goodwill, are not subject to amortization and are tested at least
annually for impairment.
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Intangible asscts with a definite uscful life are subject to amortization and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the
amount by which the asset’s carcying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. ‘The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to scll and value in use. Por the purposes of assessing impairment, intangible asscts arce grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Tntangible assets other than
goodwill are reviewed at each reporting date to assess whether there is an indication that an impairment loss tecognized in prior
periods may no longer exist ot has decreased. 1f such an indication exists, the loss is reversed and the carrying amount of the
assct is increased to its recoverable amount, which may not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no
impairment loss had been recorded. The reversal of an impairment loss is recorded in the consolidated statement of profit and
loss.

Financral assets
"T'he financial assets of the Group may fall into the following categories:
(a) Financial assets al fair value throngh profit and loss

Iinancial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also categorized as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category arce classified as current or non-current asscts based on their
maturity.

Transaction costs are immediately recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

After initial recognition, financial asscts at fair value through profit and loss are measured at their fair value cach reporting
period. Gains and losses deriving from changes in fair value are recorded in the consolidated statement of income fn the period
in which they occur. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profir or loss s recognized in the consolidated
statement of income as part of other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

() Loans and receivables

Loans and reccivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. ‘They are included in current asscts, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months or which are not expected
to be repaid within 12 months after the end of the reporting period. These are classificd as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and reccivables are comprised of trade and other receivables. Loans and receivables are initially measured at their fair
value plus transaction costs, After initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost, using the effective
interest method.

(<) Financial assets available for sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial asscts that are cither designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categorics. ‘They are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to
disposc of it within 12 months of the end of the reporting period. Minancial assets available for sale are initially measured at their
fair value plus transaction costs. After inital recognition, financial assets available for sale are carried at fair value. Any changes
in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income. Dividend income from financial assets held for sale 15 recognized in
the consolidated statement of income as part of other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

(d) Held to naturity investment

[leld to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates
that the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial recognition, held to marurity
investments are measured at amortised cost using the cffective interest method less any impairment.

A regular way purchase or sale of financial asscts is recognized using the settlement date.

Iinancial assets are derecognized when the rights to reccive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substandally all risks and rewards of ownership.

The fair value of listed financial instruments is based on the quoted price on an active market. If the market for a financial assct
is not active (or if it refers to non-listed sccuritics), the Group defines the fair value by urilizing valuation techniques. ‘These
techniques include using recent arms-length market transactions beeween knowledgeable willing parties, if available, reference to
the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flows analysis, and pricing models
bascd on obscrvable market inputs, which ace consistent with the instruments under valuation.
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"I'he valuation techniques arce primarily based on obscrvable market data as opposed to internal sources of information.

At cach reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is objective cvidence that a financial asset is impaiced. Tn the casc of
investments classificd as financial assees held for sale, a prolonged or significant decline in the fair value of the investment
below its cost is also considered an indicator that the asset is impaired. If any such evidence exists for an available-for-sale
financial asset, the cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the cost of acquisition and the current fair value, net any
impairment loss previously recognized in the consolidated statement of income, is removed from cquity and recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss,

Any impairment loss recognized on an investment classificd as an available-for-sale financial assct is not reversed.
Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are accounted for in accordance with TAS 39-Financial Instruments: Recoguition and Measurement.

At the date the derivative contract is entered into, derivative instruments are accounted for at their fair value and, if they are not
designated as hedging instruments, any changes in fair valuc after initial recognition arc recognized as components of net
income for the year. If, on the other hand, derivative instruments meet the requirements for beiog classified as hedging
instruments, any subsequent changes in fair value are recognized according to the following criteria, as illustrated below.

The Group designates certain derivatives as instruments for hedging specific risks associated with highly probable transactions
(cash flow hedges).

TFor cach derivative financial instrument designated as a hedging instrument, the Group documents the relationship between the
hedging instrument and the hedged item, as well as the risk management objectives, the hedging strategy and the methodology
to measure the hedging effectiveness. 1'he hedging cffectivencess of the instruments is assessed both at the hedge inception date
and on an ongoing basis. A hedging instrument is considered highly effective when both at the inception date and during the
life of the instrument, any changes in faic value of the derivative instrument offset the changes in fair value or cash flows
attributable to the hedged items.

If the derivative instruments are cligible for hedge accounting, the following accounting criteria are applicable:

»  Fair valne bedge-when a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of a
recognized assct or liability (“hedged iten1™), both the changes in fair value of the derivative instrument as well as changes
in the hedged item are recorded in the consolidated statement of income. The gain or loss related to the incffective portion
of the derivative instrument is recognized in the consolidated statement of income as Other-net.

«  Cash flow hedge-when a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the exposure to variability in future cash
flows of recognized assets or liabilities or highly probable foreeasted transactions (“cash flow hedge”), the effective portion
of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is recognized dicectly in other comprchensive income (“OCI?).
‘I'he cumulative gain or loss is removed from OCT and recognized in the consolidated statement of income at the same
time as the cconomic effect arising from the hedged item affects income. I'he gain or loss related to the incffective portion
of the derivative instrument is recognized in the consolidated statement of income as Other-net. When a forecasted
transaction 1s no longer cxpected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the consolidated statement of income to Other-net. When a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in OCI at that time remains in equity, and 15 recognized when the
cconomic effect arising from the hedged item affects income. I'he Group utilizes derivative financial instruments, primarily
Taterest Rate Swap and Currency Swap contracts, as part of its risk management policy in order to reduce its exposure to
interest rate and exchange rate fluctuations. Despite the fact that certain currency swap contracts are used as an cconomic
hedge of the exchange rate risk, these instruments may not fully meet the criteria for hedge accounting pursuant to 1AS 39.
If so, the instruments are marked to market at the end of cach reporting period and changes in fair value are recognized in
the consolidated statement of income.

Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
supplicrs. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilitics if payment is due within one year or less from the reporting date.
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Accounts payable are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest

mecthod.
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Long-term debt

Tong-term debt is initially recorded art fair value, less directly attributable transaction costs, and subsequently measured at its
amortized cost by applying the effective intercst method. 1f there is a change in expected cash flows, the carrying amount of the
long term debt is recaleulated by computing the present value of estimated future cash flows at the financial instrument’s
original effective interest rate. Long-term debt is classified under non-current labilities when the Group retains  the
unconditional right to defer the payment for at Jeast 12 months after the statement of financial position date and under current
liabilitics when payment is duc within 12 months from the statement of financial position date.

long-term debt s removed from the statement of financial position when it is extinguished, i.c. when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Current and deferred taxes
The tax expense for the perfod comprises current and deferred tax.

Tax cxpenses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income, except to the extent that they relate to ttems recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively. The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substan tially
enacted at the statement of financial position date in the countrics where the Group operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and cstablishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities. Interest and penaltics associated with these positions ate included in “provision for income taxes” within the
consolidated statement of income.

Deferred income tax is recognized on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and habilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. JTowever, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from inidal recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deterred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted as of the statement of financial position date and arc expected to apply when the related deferred income tax assct is
realized or the deferred income tax liability is scttled. Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the exteat that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred income tax
is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred tax liabilities
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax asscts against current tax liabilitics and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxcs levied by the same taxation authority on cither the same taxable entity or different raxable entitics where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Employee benefits
“I'he Group has both defined benefit and defined contribution plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity, The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund docs not hold suffictent assets to pay all
cmployees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan. T'ypically, defined benefit plans define an
amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive upon retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as
age, years of service and compensation. The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position in respect of
defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the
faic value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrccognized past-service costs. ‘The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds
that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms
ot the related pension obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses duc to changes in actuarial assumptions or to changes in the plan’s conditions ace recognized as
incurred in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
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For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognized as employce benefits expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized
as an assct to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

Provisions for risks

Provistons for risks are recognized when:

. the Group has a presceat obligation, legal or constructive, as a result of a past cvent;
. it is probable that the outflow of tesources will be required; and
. the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured ar the present value of the expenditures expected 1o be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision duc to passage of time is recognized as interest expense. Risks that are possible are disclosed in the notes. Risks
that are remote are not disclosed or provided for.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a number of cquity-scttled, share-based compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employces as consideration for equity instruments (options). I'he fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognized as an expense. The toral amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted.

T'he total expense is recognized over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions
are (o be satsfied. At the end of cach reporting period, the Company revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognizes the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated statement of income, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Recognition of revenucs

Revenue is recognized in accordance with TAS 18-Revesse. Revenue includes sales of merchandise (both wholesale and rerail),
insurance and administrative fees associated with the Group’s managed vision care business, eye cxams and related professional
services, and sales of merchandise to franchisces along with other revenues from franchisces such as royalties based on sales
and initial franchise fee revenues.

Wholesale Division revenues are recognized from sales of products at the time of shipment, as title and the risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods are assumed by the customer at such tfime. The products arc not subject to formal customer acceptance
provisions. In some countrics, the customer has the right to return products for a limited period of time after the sale.
However, such right of return does not impact the timing of revenue recognition. Accordingly, the Group records an accrual
for the estimated amounts to be returned. This estimate is based on the Group’s right of retuen policies and practices along with
historical data and sales trends. ‘There are no other post-shipment obligations. Revenues teceived for the shipping and handling
of goods arc included in sales and the costs associated with shipments to customers are included in operating expenses.

Retail Division revenues are recognized upon receipt by the customer art the retail location or, for internet and cataloguce sales,
when goods are shipped to the customer. Tn some countrics, the Group allows retail customers to return goods for a period of
time and, as such, the Group records an accrual for the estimated amounts to be returned. This accrual is based on the historical
return rate as a percentage of net sales and the timing of the returns from the original transaction date. There are no other post-
shipment obligations. Additionally, the Retail Division enters into discount programs and similar relationships with third parties
that have terms of twelve or more months. Revenues under these arrangements are recognized upon receipt of the products or
services by the customer at the retail Jocation. Ior internet and caralogue sales, advance payments and deposits from customers
arc not recorded as revenues until the product is delivered, T'he Retail Division also includes managed vision care revenues
consisting of both fixed fee and fee-for-service managed vision cace plans. or fixed-fee-plans, the plan sponsor pays the Group
a monthly premium for each enrolled subscriber. Premium revenue is recognized as earned during the benefit coverage period.
Premiums are generally billed in the month of benefit coverage. Any uncarned premium revenue is deferred and recorded
within other current liabilities on the consolidated statement of financial position. Hor fee for service plans, the plan sponsor
pays the Company a fce to process its claims. Revenue is recognized as the services ate rendered. This revenuc is presented as
thied party administrative services revenue. lor these programs, the plan sponsor is responsible for funding the cost of claims.
Accruals are established for amounts due under these relationships estimated to be uncollectible,
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Iranchisc revenues based on sales by franchisces (such as royaltics) are accrued and recognized as carned. Tnitial franchise fees
are recorded as revenue when all material scrvices or conditions relating to the sale of the franchise have been substantially
performed or satisfied by the Group and when the related store begins operations. Allowances are established for amounts due
under these relationships when they are determined to be uncollectible.

The Group licenscs to third parties the rights to certain intcllectual property and other proprietary information and recognizes
royalty revenues when carned.

‘The Wholesale and Retail Divisions may offer certain promotions during the year. 'ree frames given to customers as part of a
promotional offer are recorded in cost of sales ar the time they are delivered to the customer. Discounts and coupons tendered
by customers are recorded as a reduction of revenue at the date of sale. Volume rebates are accrued as reduction of sales when
they become carned by the customer.

Use of accounting estimates

‘I'he preparation of financial statements in conformity with 11'RS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and
assumptions which influence the value of assets and liabilities as well as revenues and costs reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position and in the consolidated statement of income, respectively or the disclosures included in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements in relation to potential assets and liabilitics existing as of the date the consolidated
financial statements were authorized for issuance.

istimates are based on historical experience and other factors. The resulting accounting estimates could differ from the related
actual results. Iistimates are periodically reviewed and the effects of cach change are reflected in the consolidated statement of
income in the period in which the change occurs.

The current cconomic and financial crisis has resulted in the need to make assumptions on future trends that are characterized
by a significant degree of uncertainty and, therefore, the actual results in future years may significantly differ from the estimate.

‘I'he most significant accounting principles which require a higher degree of judgment from management are illustrated below.

(@) Valuation of receivables. Reccivables from customers are adjusted by the related allowance for doubtful
accounts in order to take into account their recoverable amount. The determination of the amount of write-downs requires
judgment from management based on available documentation and information, as well as the solvency of the customer, and
based on past expericnce and historical trends;

(b) Valuation of inventorics. Inventorics which are obsolete and slow moving are periodically evaluated and
written down in the case that their recoverable amount is lower than their carrying amount. Write-downs are calculated on the
Dbasis of management assumptions and cstimates which are derived from experience and historical results;

(©) Valuation of deferred tax asscts. The valuation of deferred tax asscts is based on forecasted results which
depend upon factors that could vary over time and could have significant effects on the valuation of deferred tax assets;

(d) Income taxes. 'The Group is subject to different tax jurisdictions. I'he determination of tax liabilities for the
Group requires the use of assumptions with respect to transactions whose fiscal consequences are not yet certain at the end of
the reporting period. The Group recognizes Habilitics which could result from future inspections by the fiscal authoritics on the
basis of an estimatc of the amounts cxpected to be paid to the taxation authoritics. If the result of the abovementioned
inspections differs from that estimated by (Group management, there could be significant effects on both current and deferred
taxes;

(¢ Valuation of goodwill. Goodwill is subject to an annual impairment test. "This calculation requires
management’s judgment based on information avaitable within the Group and the market, as well as on past experience;

(H Benefit plans. ‘I'he Group participates in benefit plans in various countries. “I'he present value of pension
liabilities is determined using actuacial techniques and certain assumptions. These assumptions include the discount rate, the
cxpected return on plan asscts, the rates of futurc compensation increases and rates relative to mortality and resignations. Any
change in the abovementioned assumptions could result in significant cffects on the employee benefit liabilities.
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Treasury Shares

Treasury shares are recorded as a reduction of stockholders’ cquity. The original cost of treasury shares, as well as gains or
losses on the putchase, sale or cancellation of treasury shares, are recorded in the consolidated statement of Stockholders’
equity.

2. NEW ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

New and amended accounting standards and interpretations, if not carly adopted, must be adopted in the financial statements
issued after the applicable effective date.

New standards and amendments which are cffective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

Amendments to IAS 19—Iimployce benefits. The amendments to the standard require that the expense for a funded benefit
plan include net interest expense or income, calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit asset or liability.
Furthermore actuarial gains and losscs are recognized immediately in the OCI and will not be recycled to profit and loss in
subscquent periods.

‘I'he amendments, endorsed by the Furopean Union in 2012, arce applied retrospectively to all periods presented. As a result of
the application of this new standard, in 2012 income from operations and net income atteibutable to Luxottica stockholders
decreased by Furo 11,9 million and liuro 7,3 million, respectively, and OCI increased by Furo 7,3 million.

Amendments to TAS 1—I%nancial statements presentation regarding other comprehensive income. The amendments require
separate presenfation of items of other comprehensive income that are reclassified subsequently to profit ot loss (recyclable)
and thosc that are not reclassified to profit or loss (non-recyclable). The amendments do not change the existing option to
present an entity’s performance in two statements and do not address the content of performance statements. The amendments
were endorsed by the Huropean Union in 2012. 'I'he new presentation requirements have been applied to all periods presented.

I1RS 13—Jiair value measurements. ‘I'he standard provides a precise definition of fair value and a single source of fair value
measurement, The requirements do not extend the use of fair value accounting but provide guidance on how it should be
applied where its usc is alteady required or permitted by other standards within IIFRS. 'I'he standard, published by the 1ASB in
May 2011, was endorsed by the luropean Union in 2012, The standard had no significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group as the methodologies o calculate the fair value introduced by the new standard do not differ from
those already used by the Group.

Amendments to THRS 7—liinancial Instruments: Disclosures on offsetting financial asscts and financial liabilities. T'he
amendments enhance current offsetting disclosures  in order to facilitate the comparison between those entities that prepare
IIRS financial statements and those that prepare financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles in the United States (US GAAP). The standard, published by the TASB in December 2011, was endorsed by the
European Union in 2012. The standard had no significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

On May 17, 2012 the TASI issued the following IFRS amendments, which had no significant impact on consolidated financial
statements of the Group. The amendments were endorsed by the Furopean Union in March 2013.

= IFRS 1—First tinie adoption.

o LAS 1—Financial statement presentation.

s LAS 16—Property, plant and equipmeit.

s LAS 32—Financial instruments: Presentation.
o IAS 34—Intesim financial reporting.

New standards and amendments which are effective for reporting periods beginning after 1 Januacy 2014 and early
adopted.

II'RS 10—Consolidated financial statements. ‘The standard builds on existing principles by identifying the concept of control as
the determining factor in whether an entity should be included within the consolidated financial statements. The Standacd
provides additional guidance to assist in determining control. The standard, published in May 2011, had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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IT'RS 11—Joint ventures. The standard focuses on the rights and obligations of the arrasgement, rather than on its legal form.
There are two types of joint arrangements. Joint operations arise where the joint operators have rights and obligations related to
the arrangements. Joint ventures arise where the joint operators have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. ‘T'he standard
builds on existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the determining factor in whether an catity should be
included within the consolidated financial statements. T'he Standard provides additional guidance to assist in detcrmining
control. Proportionate consolidation is no longer allowed. The standatrd, published in May 2011, had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

IFRS 12—1Disclosures of interests in other entities. 'I'he standard includes disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in
other entities. ‘I'he standard, published in May 2011, had no significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

Amendments to TI'RS 10, 11 and 12. The amendments provide guidelines on the comparative information. The standard,
published in [uly 2012, had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

1AS 27 (revised 2011) Separate financial statements. 'I'he standard includes the provisions on separate financial statements that
are left atter the control provisions of 1AS 27 have been included in the new 11FRS 10. "I'he standard, published in May 2011,
had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

TAS 28 (revised 2011) Associates and Joint ventures. The standard includes the requirements for joint ventures, as well as
associates, to be accounted using the equity method following the issue of IFRS 11. The standard, published in May 2011, had
no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Amendments and interpretations of existing principles which are effective for reporting periods beginning after 1
January 2014 and not carly adopted.

II'RS 9—I¥inancial instruments, issued in November 2009. The standard is the fist step in the process to replace IAS 39—
Iinancial instruments: recognition and measurement. II'RS 9 introduces new requirements for classifying and mceasuring
financial asscts. The new standard reduces the number of categorics of financial assets pursuant to IAS 39 and requires that all
financial assets be: (i) classified on the basis of the model which a company has adopted in order to manage its financial
activitics and on the basis of the cash flows from financing activities; (if) initially measured at fair value plus any transaction
costs in the case of financial asscts not measured at fair value through profit and loss; and (ifi) subsequently measured at their
fair value or at the amortized cost. IFRS 9 also provides that embedded derivatives which fall within the scope of IFRS 9 must
no longer be separated from the primary contract which contains them and states that a company may decide to dircetly
record—within the consolidated statement of comprehensive income—any changes in the fair value of investments which fall
within the scope of IITRS 9. The standard is not applicable until 1 January 2015, but is available for carly adoption. The Group is
assessing the full impact of adopting 11'RS 9.

Amendments to TAS 32—Financial instruments. ‘[he amendments clarify some of the requirements for offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities on the balance sheet. ‘['he standard, published in December 2011, is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014, The adoption of the standard will not have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

Amendments to TAS 36—Impairment of assets. The amendments address the disclosure of information about the recoverable
amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less cost of disposals. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. ‘The adoption of the standard will not have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

3. FINANCIAL RISKS

Group activitics arc exposed to various types of financial risk: market risk (which includes exchange rate risk, interest rate risk in
connection with fair valuc and cash flow), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s risk management strategy is designed to
stabilise the Group’s results by minimising the potential cffects due to volatility on financial markets. Hxchange rate risk is
mitigated by recourse to derivative instruments.

The Group is mainly exposed to interest rate and liquidity risk. The holding has dicect control of these risks only for the
companics not listed in onc stock exchange.
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a) Liquidity Risk

The Group has dircet control of risk management. In particular, liquidity risk is prudently managed by maintaining an adequate
level of cash and available funds in the form of credit lines.

"I'he following tables include a summary, by maturity date, of assets and labilities at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.
The reported balances are contractual and undiscounted figures. With regards to forward foreign currency contracts, the fables
relating to assets report the flows relative to only reccivables. These amounts will be counterbalanced by the payables, as

reported in the tables relating to liabilitics.

Less than From 1 to From 3 to 5 Over 5
1year 3 years years years
At 31 December 2012
Cash and cash equivalents 864.029 = =
Derivatives recetvable 6.048 E
Accounts receivable 700.470 =
Other current asscts 114.425 - _
Less than From 1to From 3 to 5 Over 5
1ycar 3 years years years
At 31 December 2013
Cash and cash equivalents 676.156
Derivatives receivable 6.039
Accounts reccivable 680.938 -
Other current assets 194.428 = = -
Less than From 1 to From3to5 Over 5
1year 3 years years years
At 31 December 2012
Debt owed to banks and
other financial institutions 1.471.019 | 1.107.256 229.120 1.086.670
Derivatives payable 1.119 =
Accounts payables 684.123 - -
Orther current liabilities 766.891 - - =
Less than From 1 to From3to5 Over 5
1yecar 3 years years years
At 31 December 2013
Debt owed to banks and
other financial institutions 1.452.202 613.565 191.511 894.470
Derivatives payable 1.471
Accounts payables 682.986
Other current liabilities 874.506

In 2013 the 'DR bonds were reclassified from fixed asscts
Company sold a significant part of them.

b) Interest rate risk

"The interest rate risk to which the Group is exposed originates mainly from long-term financial payables. These payables are

subject to a floating rate.

to current asscts available for sale because during the year the
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Simulations show that the impact on net income of an increase or decrease of 100 basis points, when all other variables are held
constant, would cause a maximum increasc of Euro 14,2 million (Euro 14,8 million at 31 December 2012) or a decrease of
Furo 14,3 million ([luro 14,8 million at 31 December 2012).

To provide complete information about the financial risks, the following table shows a reconciliation between classes of
financial assets and liabilities and the types of financial assets and liabilities identified pursuant to the requirements of IFRS 7 (in
thousands of Furo):

Financial H 7 Financial
I assets Investments LIl liabilitics at Hedai Ot
31 December 2013 (VESIMERE e Loans and held until Aneats falr value cdging JERRE. Total
in associates receivables : available dorivatives linbilities
value through maturity foe wiile through
profit and loss ' profit and loss
Cash and cash 676.156 676.156
equivalents
Accounts receivable 680.938 680.938
Other current assots 6.039 170.651 113.283 2689.973
Other non-current 1.403.996 58.147 20,000 1.839.939 3.322.082
assets
Short-term borrowings 1.162.158 1,162,158
Current portion of 318100 318.100
long-term debt
Accounts payable 682.986 682.986
Other current liabililies 455971 1471 85742
Tong-teem debt 1176410 1.716.410
Other non-curcent 71.688 71.688
liabilitics
Financial Financial |"I't|t‘ll}l:i:l|
Investment assets Loans and Invest:m?nta assels l.{“.h'lm“ L Hedging (her -
31 December 2012 . . ac fair . held vndil (air value g T T'otal
in associates receivables g available 4 detivatives  linbilities
value through maturity faiaite through
profit and loss profit and loss
Cash and cash 864029 864.029
equivalents
Accounts receivable - - 700470 - - 700470
Other cuceent asscts - 6.048 56.572 60.000 4.243 126.863
Other non-current 1.334.665 - 63.506 180.000 1.096.193 - - 2.674.364
assets
Short-term horrowings - - 1.144.766 1.14H.766
Current portion of - - 310,072 3oz
long-term debt
Accounts payable GB4.123 684.123
Other current liabilities . . 681 438 767.762 T68.881
Long-term debt . . . . 2,052.105 2.052.105
Other non-current - - 52.702 52,702
liabilitics

¢) air value
In order to determine the fair value of financial instruments, the Group utilizes valuation techniques which are based on
observable market prices (Mark to Model). These techniques therefore fall within Level 2 of the hierarchy of Fair Values
identified by II'RS 13.
IFRS 13 refers to valuation hicrarchy techniques which are based on three levels:

. Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices in an active market for identical assets or liabilitics;

. Level 2: Inputs used in the valuations, other than the prices listed in Level 1, are observable for each financial asset or
liability, both ditectly (prices) and indirectly (derived from prices); and

. 1.evel 3: Unobservable inputs used when observable inputs are not available in situations where there is little, if any,
market activity for the assct or liability.

Delfin 8.4 r.l. - Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2013 Page 26 of 86



Document émis électroniquement

In order to sclect the appropriate valuation techniques to utilize, the Group complies with the following hicrarchy:

a) Utilization of quoted prices in an active market for identical assets or liabilities (Comparable Approach);
b) Utlization of valuation techniques that are primarily based on observable market prices; and
c) Utilization of valuation techniques that are primarily based on non-observable market prices.

‘The Group determined the fair value of the derivatives existing on 31 December 2013 through valuation techniques which are
commonly used for instruments similar to those traded by the Group. The models applied to value the instruments are based
on a calculation obtained from the Bloomberg information scrvice. The input data used in these models are based on
observable market prices (the Furo and USD interest rate curves as well as official exchange rates on the date of valuation)
obtained from Bloomberg.

The following table summarizes the financial assets and liabilities of the Group valued at fair value (in thousands of Luro):

Classification within the Consolidated Fair Value Measurements at
Statement of’ 31 December Reporting Date Using:
Description Financial Position 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Foccign Lixchange Contracts Other current assels 6.039 - 6.039 -
Interest Rate Derivatives Other non-current liabilities
Toreign lixchange Contracts and Interest Rate Denvatives Odber cureent liabilities 1471 1471
Classification within the Consolidated Fair Value Measurements at
Statement of 31 December Reporting Date Using:
Description Financial Position 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Forcign Exchange Contracts Other current asscts 6048 6.048
Interest Rate Derivatives Other non-cureent liabilities
Toreipgn Exchanpe Contracts and Interest Rate Derivatives Other current habilities 1119 1119

As of 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group did not have any J.evel 3 fair value measurements,

‘Ihe Group maintains policics and procedures with the aim of valuing the fair value of asscts and liabilities using the best and
most relevant data available.

The Group portfolio of foreign exchange derivatives includes only forward foreign exchange contracts on the most traded
currency pairs with maturity less than onc year. The fair value of the portfolio is valued using internal models that use
observable market inputs including Yield Curves and Spot and Forward prices.

FINANCIAL RISKS OF LUXOTTICA GROUP S.P.A.

"I'he financial risks of the subsidiary Luxottica Group S.p.A. arc material and have thus been reported.

"T'he assets of the Luxottica Group are exposed to different types of financial risk: market risk (which includes exchange rate
risks, interest rate risk relative to fair value variability and cash flow uncertainty), credic risk and liquidity risk. ‘I'he risk
management strategy of the Luxottica Group aims to stabilize the results of the Tuxottica Group by minimizing the potential
cffects due to volatility in financial markets. 'I'he Luxottica Group uses derivative financial instruments, principally interest rate
and currency swap agreements, as part of its risk management strategy.

Iinancial risk management is centralized within the [reasury department which identifics, evaluates and implements financial
tisk hedging activitics, in compliance with the Dinancial Risk Management Policy guidelines approved by the Board of
Directors, and in accordance with the Group operational units. 'The Policy defines the guidclines for any kind of risk, such as
the exchange rate risk, the interest rate risk, credit risk and the utilization of derivative and non-derivative instruments. T'he
Policy also specifies the management activities, the permitted instruments, the limits and proxies for responsibilitics.
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() [ixchange rate risk

The Group operates at the international level and is therefore exposed to cxchange rate risk related to the various
currencies with which the Group operates. T'he Group only manages transaction risk. The transaction exchange rate risk derives
from commercial and financial transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of the Group, ic., the Luro.

The primary exchange rate to which the Group is exposed is the Luro/USD cxchange rate.

‘The exchange rate risk management policy defined by the Group’s management states that transaction exchange rate
risk must be hedged for a percentage between 50% and 100% by trading forward currency contracts or permitted option
structures with third parties.

‘This exchange rate risk management policy is applied to all subsidiaries, including companics which have been recently
acquired,

If the 1Zuro/USD exchange rate increases by 10% as compared to the actual 2013 and 2012 average exchange rates
and all other variables remain constant, the impact on net income and equity would have been a decrease of Euro 72,8 million
and luro 56,7 million, in 2013 and 2012, respectively. 1f the Furo/USD exchange rate decreases by 10% as compared to the
actual 2013 and 2012 average exchange rates and all other variables remain constant, the impact on net income and equity
would have been an increase of Furo 89,0 million and lluro 69,3 million in 2013 and 2012, respectively. Liven if exchange rate
derivative contracts arc stipulated to hedge future commercial transactions as well as asscts and liabilities previously recorded in
the financtal statements in foreign currency, these contracts, for accounting purposes, may not be accounted for as hedging
mnstruments.

) Price risk

‘The Group is generally exposced to price risk associated with investments in bond sccurities which are classificd as
assets at fair value through profit and loss. As of 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group investment portfolio was fully
divested. As a result, there was no exposure to price risk on such dates.

(© Credit risk

Credit risk exists in relation to accounts receivable, cash, financial instruments and deposits in banks and other
financial institutions.

1) The credit risk related to commercial counterpattics is locally managed and monitored by a group credit control
department for all entities included in the Wholesale distribution segment. Credit risk which originates within the retail segment
is locally managed by the companices included in the retail segment.

Losses on reccivables are recorded in the financial statements if there are indicators that a specific risk exists or as
soon as risks of potential insolvency atise, by determining an adequate accrual for doubtful accounts.

"The allowance for doubtful accounts used for the Wholesale segment and in accordance with the credit policy of the
Group is determined by assigning a rating to customers according to the following categories:

e “GOOD” (active customers), for which no accrual for doubtful accounts is recorded for accounts receivable overdue
for less than 90 days. Beyond 90 days overdue a specific accrual is made in accordance with the customer’s credit
worthiness (customers “GOOD UNDIER CONTROL”); and

e “RISK” (no longer active customers), for which the outstanding accounts receivable are fully provided. The following
are examples of events that may fall into the definition of RISK:

iR Significant financial difficulties of the customers;

b. A material contract violation, such as a general breach or default in paying interest or principal;

c. “I'he customer declares bankruptey or is subject to other insolvency proceedings; and

d. All cases in which there is documented proof certifying the non-recoverability of the receivables

(i.e., the inability to trace the debtor, scizures).
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Jrurthermore, the assessment of the losses incurred in previous years is taken into account to determine the balance of
the bad debt provision.

"T'he Group does not have significant concentrations of credit risk. In any casc, there are proper procedures in place to
ensure that the sales of products and scrvices are made to reliable customers on the basis of their financial position as well as
past expericnce and other factors. Credit limits are defined according to internal and external evaluations that are based on
thresholds approved by the Board of Directors.

‘The utilization of the credit limits is regularly monitored through automatic controls.

Morcover, the Group has entered into an agreement with an insurance company in order to cover the credit risk
associated with customers of Luxottica '['tading and Jiinance 1.td. in those countries where the Group does not have a dirceet
presence.

c2) With regards to credit risk related to the management of financial resources and cash availabilities, the risk is
managed and monitored by the Group Treasury Department through financial guidelines to ensure that all the Group
subsidiarics muaintain rclations with primary bank counterparties. Credit limits with respect to the primary financial
counterpartics are based on evaluations and analyses that are implemented by the Group "I'reasury Department.

Within the Group there are various shared guidelines governing the relations with the bank counterpartics, and all the
companics of the Group comply with the “Tfinancial Risk Policy” directives.

Usually, the bank counterparties are sclected by the Group Treasury Department and cash availabilities can be
deposited, over a certain limit, only with counterpartics with clevated credit ratings (A rating from S&P and A2 rating from
Moody’s), as defined in the policy.

Operations with derivatives are limited to counterpartics with solid and proven experience in the trading and execution
of derivatives and with clevated credit ratings, as defined in the policy, in addition to being subordinate to the undersigning of
an ISDA Master Agreement. Tn particular, counterparty risk of derivatives is mitigated through the diversification of the
counterparty banks with which the Group deals. In this way, the exposure with respect to cach bank is never greater than 25%
of the total notional amount of the derivatives portfolio of the Group.

During the course of the year, there were no situations in which credit limits were exceeded. Based on the information

available to the Group, there were no potential losses deriving from the inability of the abovementioned counterpartics to meet
their contractual obligations.

(d) Liquidity risk
The management of the liquidity risk which originates from the normal operations of the Group involves the
maintenance of an adequate level of cash availabilitics as well as financial availabilities through an adequate amount of

committed credit lines.

With regards to the policies and actions that are used to mitigare liquidity tisks, the Group takes adequate actions in
order to mect its obligations. In particular, the Group:

—  utilizes debt instruments or other credit lines in order to meet liquidity requirements;

— utilizes different sources of financing and, as of 31 December 2013, had unused lines of credit of approximatcly
[uro 1.242,6 million (of which Furo 500,0 million arec committed lines);

—  is not subject to significant concentrations of liquidity risk, both from the perspective of financial assets as well as
in terms of financing sources;

— utilizes different sources of bank financing bur also a liquidity reserve in order to promptly mecet any cash
requircments;

~  implements systems to concentrate and manage the cash liquidity (Cash Pooling) in order to more efficiently

manage the Group financial flows, thereby avoiding the dispersal of liquid funds and minimizing financial
charges; and
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—  monitors, through the Treasury Department, forecasts on the utilization of liquidity reserves of the Group based
on cxpected cash flows.

The following tables include a summary, by maturity date, of assets and Jiabilitics at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,
The reported balances are contractual and undiscounted figures. With regards to forward foreign currency contracts, the tables
relating to assets report the flows relative to only receivables. These amounts will be counterbalanced by the payables, as
reported in the tables relating to liabilitics.

Less than From 1 to From 3 to Beyond
(Amounts in thousands ol liuro) 1 year 3 years 5 years 5 years
As of 31 December 2013
Cash and cash equivalents 617.995 - -
Derivatives receivable 6.039
Accounts receivable 680.296
Other current assets 81.546
Less than From 1 to From 3 to Beyond
(Amnounts in thousands of Iluro) 1 year 3 years 5 years 5 years
As of 31 December 2012
Cash and cash cquivalents 790.093
Derivatives receivable 6.048
Accounts receivable 698.755
Other current asscts 18377
Less than From 1 (10 From 3 10 Beyond
(Amounts in thousands of Fure) 1 year 3 years 5 years 5 years
As of 31 December 2013
Debt owed to banks and other financial institutions 331.964 613,563 191511 RO4.470
Derivatives payable 1471
Accounts payable 681,151
Other cuerent Jiabilities 473,411
T o Less than From 110 From 3 to Beyond
(Amounts in thousands of Euro) 1year 3 years 5 years 5 years
As of 31 December 2012
Debt owed to banks and other financial institutions 416.538 1.107.256 229120 1.086.670
Derivatives payables 1119 - - -
Accounts payable 082.588
Othee current liabilities 534.422 - - -
(© Tuterest rate risk

‘T'he intetest rate risk to which the Group is exposed primarily originates from long-term debt. Such debt accrues interest at
both fixed and floating rates.

With regard to the risk arising from fixed-rate debt, the Group does not apply specific hedging policies since it does not deem
the risk to be material.

Iloating-rate debt exposes the Group to a risk from the volatility of the interest rates (cash flow risk). In relation to this risk,
and for the purposes of the related hedging, the Group utilizes derivate contracts, specifically Interest Rate Swap (IRS)
agreements, which exchange the floating rate for a fixed rate, thereby reducing the risk from interest rate volatility.

The risk policy of the Group requires the maintenance of a percentage of fixed-rate debt that is greater than 25% and less than
75% of total debt. This percentage is managed by catering into fixed rate debt agreements or by utilizing IRS agreements, when
required.

On the basis of various scenarios, the Group calculates the impact of rate changes on the consolidated statement of income.
FFor cach scenario, the same interest rate change is utilized for all currencies. The various scenarios only include those liabilities
at floating rates that are not hedged with fixed interest rate swaps. On the basis of these scenarios, the impact as of
31 December 2013 and nct of tax cffect of an increase/decrease of 100 basis points on net income, in a situation with all other
variables unchanged, would have been a maximum decrease of Kuro 3,0 million (Furo 3,0 million as of 31 December 2012) or a
maximum increase of Buro 3,0 million (Buro 3,0 million as of 31 December 2012).

AIIIRS agreements expired as of 29 May 2013. As of 31 December 2012, in the event that interest rates increased/decreased by
100 basis points, with all other variables unchanged, the stockholders” cquity reserves would have been greater/(lower) by
liuro 0,2 million, net of tax effect in connection with the increase/decrease of the fair value of the derivatives used for the cash
flow hedges.

Delfin 8.4 1.1. - Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2013 Page 30 of 86



Document émis électroniquement

As of 31 December 2013 Plus 100 basis points Minus 100 basis points
(Amounts in millions of Euro) Netincome  Reserve Netincome  Reserve
Liabilities 3,0 -

Hedging derivatives (cash flow hedges)

(3.0

As of 31 December 2012 Plus 100 basie points Minus 100 basis points
(Amounts in millions of Euro) Netincome  Reserve Netincome  Reserve
Liabilities (3,0) 3,0

Hedging derivatives (cash flow hedges) - 0,2 - =

For the purposes of fully disclosing information about financial risks, a reconciliation between classes of financial assets and
liabilities and the types of financial assets and liabilities identified on the basis of IFRS 7 requirements is reported below (in
thousands of Euro):

Financial
Pinancial liabilities at
assets Financial fair value
at fair Investments assets through
value through Loans and held until available profit and Hedging
profit and loss receivables maturity for sale loss derivatives Total
31 December 2013
Cash and cash equivalents — 617,995 — — — — 617,995
Accounts receivable — 680,296 — — —_ — 680,296
Other current assets 6,039 84,546 — — — —_ 90,856
Other non-current assets — 57,390 —_ — — — 57,390
Short-term borrowings — 44,921 — — — —_ 44,921
Cutrent portion of long-term debt — 318,100 — — — — 318,100
Accounts payable — 681,151 — — — — 681,151
Other current liabilities — 473,411 — — 1471 474,882
Long-term debt — 1,716,410 — — — — 1,716,410
Other non-current liabilities — 71,688 — — — — 71,688
Financial
Financial liabilities at
asscts Financial fair value
at fair Investments assets through
value through Loans and held until available  profit and Hedging
profit and loss receivables maturity for sale loss derivatives Total
31 December 2012
Cash and cash equivalents 790.093 790.093
Accounts receivable 698.755 . - - . 698.755
Other current assets 6.048 48.377 - 54.425
Other non-current assets 62.718 62.718
Short-term borrowings 90.284 - - - . 90.284
Current portion of long-term debt 310.072 310.072
Accounts payable 682.588 - - - - 682.588
Other current liabilities 534.422 = 681 438 535.541
Long-term debt 2.052.107 . 2,052,107
Qther non-current liabilities 52.702 = 52.702
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6] Defantt risk: negative pledges and financial covenants

The financing agreements of the Luxottica Group could require compliance with negative pledges and financial covenants, as
set forth in the respective agreements, with the exception of our bond issues dated 10 November 2010 and 19 March 2012,
which require compliance only with negative pledges.

With regards to negative pledges, in general, the clauses prohibit the Company and its subsidiarics from granting any liens or
sccurity interests on any of their asscts in favor of third pattics without the consent of the lenders over a threshold equal to 30%
of the Group consolidated stockholders” equity. In addition, the sale of assets of the Company and its subsidiaries is limited to a
maximum threshold of 30% of consolidated assets.

Default with respect to the abovementioned clauses—and following a grace period during which the default can be remedied—
would be considered a material breach of the contractual obligations pursuant to the financing agreements of the Group.

Pinancial covenants require the Group to comply with specific levels of financial ratios. The most significant covenants
establish a threshold for the ratio of net debt of the Group to EBITDA (larnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization) as well as EBIT'DA to financial charges and priority debt to share cquity. The covenants ate repotted in the
following table:

Net Financial Position/Pro forma EBITDA <3,5x
EBITDA/Pro forma financial charges >5x
Priority Debt/Share Equity <20 x

In the case of a failure to comply with the abovementioned ratios, the Luxottica Group may be called upon to pay the
outstanding debt if it does not correct such default within a period of 15 business days from the date of reporting such default.

Compliance with these covenants is monitored by the Group at the end of cach quarter and, as of 31 December 2013, the
Group was fully in compliance with these covenants. The Group also analyzes the trend of these covenants in order to monitor
its compliance and, as of today, the analysis indicates that the ratios of the Group are below the thresholds which would result
in default.

) Fair valne
In order to determine the fair value of financial instruments, the Group utilizes valuation techniques which are based on
observable market prices (Mark to Model). These techniques therefore fall within Level 2 of the hierarchy of Iair Values

identified by IFRS 13.

11'RS 13 refers to valuation hicrarchy techniques which are based on three levels:

. Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices in an active market for identical assets or labilitics;
. Level 2: Inputs used in the valuations, other than the prices listed in Tevel 1, are observable for each financial asset or

liability, both directly (prices) and indirectly (derived from prices); and

. Level 3: Unobservable inputs used when observable inputs are not available in situations where there is little, if any,
market activity for the asset or liability.

Tn order to select the appropriate valuation techniques to utilize, the Group complies with the following hierarchy:

a) Utilization of quoted prices in an active market for identical assets or liabilities (Comparable Approach);
b) Utilization of valuation techniques that are primanrily based on observable market prices; and
9] Utilization of valuation techniques that are primarily based on non-observable market prices.

‘I'he Luxottica Group determined the fair value of the derivatives existing on 31 December 2013 through valuation technigues
which are commonly used for instruments similar to thosc traded by the Luxottica Group. The models applied to value the
instruments are based on a calculation obtained from the Bloomberg information service. "The inpur data used in these models
are based on observable market prices (the Huro and USD interest rate curves as well as official exchange rates on the date of
valuation) obtained from Bloomberg.
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T'he following table summarizes the financial asscts and liabilities of the Group valued at fair value (in thousands of Huro):

Classification within the

Fair Value Measurements at

Consolidated Statement of 31 December Reporting Date Using:
Description Financial Position 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
l'oreign Tixchange Conrracts Other current assets 6.039 - 6.039 -
Interest Rate Derdvatives Other non-cuerent liabilities - - - -
l'oreign Lixchange Contracts and Interest Rate Derivatives Other curtent liabilities 1.471 - 1.471 -

Classification within the

Fair Value Measurements at

Consolidated Statement of 31 December Reporting Date Using:
Description Financial Position 2012 Level 1 Level2  Level3
Loeeign lixchange Contracts Other current assets 6.048 6.048 -
Interest Rate Derivatives Other non-current liabilities
lroreign Fxchange Contracts and Interest Rate Derivatives Otther cureent hallines 1.119 1.119

As of 31 December 2013 and 2012, 1uxottica Group did not have any Level 3 fair value measurements.

‘The Luxottica Group maintains policies and procedures with the aim of valuing the fair value of assets and liabilities using the

best and most relevant data available.

The Luxottica Group portfolio of foreign exchange dervatives includes only forward foreign exchange contracts on the most
traded currency pairs with maturity less than one year. The fair value of the portfolio is valued using internal models that usc
observable market inputs including Yield Cutves and Spot and Forward prices.

4. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

On 23 January 2013, the Group completed the acquisition of Alain Mikli International, a French luxury and contemporary
eyewear company. The consideration for the acquisition was Furo 85,2 million. 'The purchase price paid in 2013, including the
assumption of approximately Huro 15,0 million of Alain Mikli’s net debt, totaled liuro 91.0 million, excluding advance
payments made in 2012 and receivables from Alain Miklic Net sales generated by Alain Mikli International in 2012 were
approximately [Luro 55,5 million. The acquisition furthers the Group’s strategy of continually strengthening of its brand

portfolio.

The valuation process to calculate the fair value of the acquired Alain Mikli net assets was concluded as of the date these

financial statements were authorized for issue.

The difference between the consideration paid and the net assets acquired was recorded as goodwill and intangible assets of
Luro 58,7 million and Luro 33,5 million, respectively. The goodwill is not tax deductible and primarily reflects the synergies that

the Group estimates it will derive from the acquisition.

"I'he following table summarizes the consideration paid, the fair value of assets acquired and liabilitics assumed at the acquisition

date (in thousands of l{uro):
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Consideration 85.179
Cash and cash equivalents acquired (3.771)
Decbt acquired 18.304
Total consideration 99.712
Recognized amount of net identifiable assets

Accounts receivable—net 9.975
Inventory 11.397
Other current receivables 4.156
Fixed assets 3.470
Trademarks and other intangible assets 33.800
Investments 113
Other long term receivables 6.642
Accounts payable (10.708)
Other current liabilities (5.590)
Income tax payable 231)
Deferred tax liabilities (9.014)
Other long-term liabilities (2.996)
Total net identifiable assets 41.012
Goodwill 58.700
Total 99.712

Transaction - related costs of approximately Euro 1,2 million were expensed as incurred.

On April 25, 2013, Sunglass [Tut Mexico (“SGI Mexico™), a subsidiary of Luxottica, acquired the sun business of Grupo
Devlyn S.AP.L de C.V. (“Devlyn”). As a result of the acquisition the sharcholders of Devlyn received a minority stake in SGH
Mexico of 20 percent and a put option to sell the shares to the Company, while the Company was granted a call option on the
minority stake. The cxercise price of the options was estimated based on the expected EBITDA, net sales and net financial
position at the end of the lock-up period identified in the contract. The acquisition of the Group’s interest in Devlyn was
accounted for as a business combination in accordance with IFRS 3. In particular, the Group recorded provisional goodwill of
approximately Ruro 6,0 million and a lability for the present value of the put option of approximately Huro 9,5 million. 'The
valuation of the nct assets acquired will be completed within the twelve-month period subsequent to the acquisition. The
transaction furthers the Group’s strategy of increasing its presence in Latin America.

5. INFORMATION BY BUSINESS SEGMENT AND GEOGRAFICAL AREA MAINLY RELATED THE
SUBSIDIARY LUXOTTICA GROUP SPA

In accordance with IFRS 8, Operating segments the Group operates in two main industry segments: (1) manufacturing and
wholesale distribution, and (2) retail distribution.

"The criteria applied to identify the reporting segments are consistent with the way the Group is managed. In particular, the
disclosures are consistent with the information periodically analysed by the Group’s Chief Executive Officer, in his role as Chief
Operating Decision Maker, to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance.
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Total asscts for each reporting segment are no longer disclosed as they are not regularly reported to the highest authority in the

Group’s decision-making process.

Inter-segment  Holding
Manufactuting transactions activitics
and Wholesale Retail and corporate

(Amounts in thousands of Euro) Distribution  Distribution  adjustments(®) Consolidated
2013

Net sales® 2.991.297 4.321.314 3.202 7.315.813
Income from operations(® 649.108 585.516 (178.951) (7.536) 1.048.137
Interest/income 57.234 57.234
Interest/losses (132.546) (132.546)
Other-net (1.757) (7.757)
Income (expenses) [rom associates 87.196 87.196
Income before provision for income laxes 1.052.265 1.052.265
Provision for income taxes (419.426) (419.426)
Net income 632.839 632.839
Of which attributable lo:

Delfin stockholders 419.611 419.611
Non-controlling intcrests 213.228 213.228
Capital expenditures 157.165 212.547 369.711
Depreciation and amortization 108.993 172.884 84.834 366.631
2012

Net sales® 2.773.073 4.313.069 3.509 7.089.651
Income from operations( 604.494 552.691 (187.046) (7.090) 963.050
Interest income - -- - 38.833 38.833
Interest expense - - (210.867) (210.867)
Other-net - - (6.428) (6.428)
Income (expenses) from associates (62.094) (62.094)
Income before provision for income taxes - - 722,494 722.494
Provision for income taxes - -- (312.467) (312.497)
Net income - - 410.027 410.027
Of which attributable to: - - -
Delfin stockholders - - - 201.805 201.805
Non-controlling interests - - 208.222 208.222
Capital expenditures ® 148.001 224.890 - 13.762 386.653
Depreciation and amortization 100.956 170.988 86.337 5.594 363.875

@

(b)

(b)

©
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Capital expenditures in 2012 include capital leases of the retail division of Euro 7,9 million. Capital expenditures
excluding the above-mentioned additions were Liuro 365,0 million in addition to euro 13,8 million for holding
activities.

Net sales of both the Manufacturing and Wholesale Distribution segment and the Retail Distribution segment include
sales to third- party customers only.

Income from operations of the Manufacturing and Wholesale Distribution segment is related to net sales to
third-party customers only, excluding the “manufacturing profit” generated on the inter-company sales to the Retail
Distribution segment. Income from operations of the Retail Distribution segment is related to retail sales, considering
the cost of goods acquired from the Manufacturing and Wholesale Distribution segment at manufacturing cost, thus
including the relevant “manufacturing profit” attributable to those sales.

Inter-segment transactions and corporate adjustments include corporate costs not allocated to a specific segment and
amortization of acquired intangible assets.
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Information by geographic area

The geographic segments include Europe, North America (which includes the United States of America, Canada and Caribbean
islands), Asia-Pacific (which includes Australia, New Zealand, China, ITong Kong, Singapote and Japan) and Other (which
includes all other geographic locations, including South and Central America and the Middle Fast). Sales are attributed to
geographic segments based on the customer’s location, whereas long-lived assets, net are the result of the combination of legal
entities located in the same geographic area.

Yeats ended 31 December Notrth Asia-

(Amounts in thousands of Furo) Europe America  Pacific  Other  Consolidated
2013

Net sales 1.445.991  4.123.783 917.762 828.277 7.315.813
Long-lived assets, net 392.453 587.462 220.139  48.656 1.239.710
2012

Net sales 1.320.241  4.122.889 897.491 748.430 7.089.051
Long-lived assets, net 401.219 591.358 213.401  45.241 1.251.219
CURRENT ASSETS

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following items:

At 31 December
(in thousands of euros) 2013 ] l 2012
Bank and postal accounts 665.659 853.619
Cheques 7.821 7.506
Cash and cash equivalents 2.676 2.904
Total 676.156 864.029

7. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Accounts receivable consist exclusively of trade receivables and are recognized net of allowances to adjust their carrying amount
to the estimated realizable value. Accounts receivable are due within 12 months:

At 31 December
(in thousands of euros) 2013 [ | 2012
Trade receivables 716.599 735.818
Allowances for doubtful accounts (35.661) (35.348)
Total net trade receivables 680.938 700.470
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The following table shows the allowance for doubtful accounts roll-forward:

At 31 December
(in thousands of euros) 2013 ] | 2012
Balance at 1 January 35.348 36.009
Increase 5.719 4.150
Decreascs (4.318) (4.221)
Translation difference and other changes (1.088) (590)
Balance at 31 December 35.661 35.348

The book value of the accounts receivable approximates their fair value.

As of 31 December 2013, the gross amount of accounts receivable was equal to Turo 716.599 thousand
(FFuro 735.818 thousand as of 31 December 2012), including an amount of Euro 23,4 million covered by insurance and other
guarantees (3,3% of gross reccivables). The bad debt fund as of 31 December 2013 amounted to Euro 35,7 million
(Euro 35,3 million as of 31 December 2012).

Write-downs of accounts reccivable are determined in accordance with the Group credit policy described in Note 3 “Financial
Risks.”

Accruals and reversals of the allowance for doubtful accounts are recorded within selling expenses in the consolidated statement
of income.

The maximum exposure to credit risk, as of the end of the reporting date, was represented by the fair value of accounts
receivable which approximates their carrying amount.

The Group believes that its exposure to credit risk does not call for other guarantees or credit enhancements.

The table below summarizes the quantitative information required by IFRS 7 based on the categories of receivables pursuant to
Group policies:

31/12/2013
(in thousands of euros) Gross Allowances Maximum Amount of Amount of Amount of
receivables | for doubtful exposure to overdue receivables 0-30 receivables
accounts credit risk receivables days overdue that | more than 30
that have not have not been days overdue
been written written down that have not
down been written
down

Receivables of the Wholesale Division

ClassifiedagiS ORI 543.789 (6.134) 537.655 41.298 31.060 10237
Receivables of the Wholesale Division
classified as GOOD - UNDER

CONTROL. 15.176 (2.224) 12951 21.046 5.752 15.294
Receivables of the Wholesale Division

classified as RISK 28530 (23.200) 5.330 4.599 255 4.343
Receivables of the Retail Division 128.033 (3.673) 124.360 14.173 5.590 4.586
Other receivables 1.071 (430) 642

Total 716.599 (35.661) 680.938 81.116 42.657 38.460
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3L/12/2012
(in thousands of euros) Gross Allowances for Maximum Amount of Amount of Amount of
receivables doubtful exposure to overdue receivables 0-30 receivables more
accounts credit risk receivables days overdue that than 30 days
that have not have not been overdue that have
been written written down not been written
down down
Receivables of the Wholesale 567.162 -9.530) 857.632 62.559 38.215 24344
Division classified as GOOD
Receivables of the Wholesale 12.224 -2.528 9.696 3.438 515 2.923
Division classificd as GOOD
UNDER CONTROL
Receivables of the Wholesale 20.071 -18.712 1.359 1.744 456 1.288
Division classified as RISK
Receivables of the Retail 134.397 -4.328 130.069 13.119 7.445 5.674
Division
Other receivables 1.964 -250 1.714 -
Total 735.818 -35.348 700.470 80.860 46.631 34.229

As of 31 December 2013, the amount of overdue receivables which were not included in the bad debt fund was equal to 11,3%
of gross receivables (11,0% as of 31 December 2012) and 11,9% of receivables net of the bad debt fund (11,5% as of
31 December 2012). The Group does not expect any additional losses over amounts already provided for.

8. INVENTORIES
Inventories are comprised of the following items :
At 31 December

(in thousands of curos) 2013 | | 2012
Raw materials 163.816 154.412
Work in progress 36.462 59.565
Finished goods 612.814 625.386
Inventory obsolescence reserve (114.135) (110.588)
Total 698.957 728.775

The movements in the allowance for inventories reserve is as follows:

. Balance at
(Amounts expressed in P - " e Balance at
thousands of Euro) begl;:::lg of Provision Other®d  Utilization end of year
2012 90.562 67.894 (3.930) (43.938) 110.588
2013 110.558 74.094 (355) (70.193) 114.135
[O)] Other includes translation differences for the year.
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9. FINANCIAL ASSETS

The financial assets are mainly composed by short terms loans for Euro 82.069 thousands (Euro 56.577 in 2012) and bonds
FDR for Ruro 109.882 (Kuro 0 in 2012). The bonds FDR have been reclassified from fixed assets to current assets because the
Company has sold a significant part of them. The short term loans are mainly versus shareholders of the Group.

The net book value of financial assets is approximately equal to their fair value and this value also corresponds to the maximum
exposure of the credit risk. The Group has no guarantees or other instruments to manage credit risk.

10. OTHER ASSETS

Other assets comprise the following items:

(in thousands of euros) As of 31 December
2013 2012
Sales taxes receivable 47.105 15.476
Accrued income 5.714 5.239
Other assets 71.899 53.720
Advances to suppliers 19.546 15.035
Prepaid expenses 51.953 74.450
‘Total other assets 196.217 163.920

Other assets include receivables from foreign currency derivatives amounting to Furo 6,0 million as of 31 December 2013
(Euro 6,0 million as of 31 December 2012), as well as other financial assets of the North America retail division totaling
Euro 12,1 million as of 31 December 2013 (Euro 13,2 million as of 31 December 2012).

Other assets include the short-term portion of advance payments made to certain designers for future contracted minimum
royalties totaling Euro 30,6 million as of 31 December 2013 (Huro 18,2 million as of 31 December 2012).

Prepaid expenses mainly include the loan fees and the timing of payments of monthly rental expenses incurred by the Group’s
North America and Asia-Pacific retail divisions.

The net book value of financial assets is approximately equal to their fair value and this value also corresponds to the maximum
exposure of the credit tisk. The Group has no guarantees or other instruments to manage credit risk.
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS

11 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Changes in items of property, plant and cquipment are reported below:

(in thousands of curos) Land and Plant, Aircraft Other Total
buildings, | machinery equipment
including and
leasehold industrial
improvements | equipment

ITistoric cost 961.895 984.801 38.087 600.147 2.584.930

Accumulated depreciation (424.563) (613.602) (8.776) (317.265)  (1.364.200)

Balance at 1 January 2012 537.332 371.199 29.311 282,882 1.220.724

Increascs 55.852 112.478 - 101.314 269.644

Decreascs (13.713) (74) - (15.304) (29.091)

Property, plant and equipment resulting

from business combinations 850 8.904 - 2.765 12.519

Translation difference and other changes 2.478 9.349 (18.820) (6.993)

Depreciation (60.299) (95.069) (1.561) (58.656) (215.585)

Balance at 31 December 2012 522.500 406.787 27.750 294.181 1.251.218

Iistoric cost 081.778 1.075.884 38.087 633.323 2.729.072

Accumulated depreciation (459.278) (669.097) (10.337) (339.142)  (1.477.854)

Total as of 31 December 2012 522.500 406.787 27.750 294.181 1.251.218

Increases 49.662 105.908 58 118.614 274.242

Decreases (4.235) ° (4.357) - 6.725 (15.317)

Property, plant and cquipment resulting

from business combinations 2.367 85 857 3.309

"I'ranslation difference and other changes (7.751) 12.423 (63.217) (58.545)

Depreciation (61.420) (94.146) (1555)  (58.076)  (215.197)

Balance at 31 December 2013 501.123 426.700 26.253 285.634 1.239.710

I listoric cost 979.129 1.109.444 38.147 629.941 2.756.656
Accumulated depreciation (478.006) (682.744) (11.894)  (344.307)  1.516.951
Balance at 31 December 2013 501.123 426.700 26.253 285.634 1.239.710

The 2013 increase in Property, plant and equipment due to business combinations was mainly due to the acquisition of Alain
Mikli, Please refer to Note 4 “Business Combinations” for further details on the Alain Mikli acquisition. The increase in 2012
was mainly due to the acquisitions of "I'ecnol and Sunplanet.

Of the total depreciation expense of Kuro 215,197 million (Iduro 215,58 million in 2012), Furo 72,3 million (Kuro 69,5 million
in 2012, respectively) is included in cost of sales, Buro 110,1 million (Jluro 114,8 million in 2012) in sclling expenses; Euro 5,3
million (Iuro 3,9 million in 2012) in advertising expenses; and Buro 25,0 million (Buro 24,8 million in 2012) in general and
administrative expenses.
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Capital expenditures in 2013 and 2012 mainly relate to routine technology upgrades to the manufacturing infrastructure,
opcening of new stores and the remodecling of older stores where the leases were extended during the year.

Other equipment includes 12uro 70.9 million for asscts under construction as of 31 December 2013 (Tluro 66,9 million as of 31

December 2012) mainly relating to the opening and renovation of North America retail stores.

Leaschold improvements totaled Buro 149,5 million and Iluro 153,1 million as of 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012

respectively.

12. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Changes in goodwill and intangible asscts as of 31 December 2013 and 2012 werc as follows:

(in thousands of curos) Goodwill Concessions, Distribution Customer Franchisee Other Total

licenses, and networks lists and contracts

trademarks contacts

At 1 January 2012
Tistoric cost 3.156.630) 1.576.008 287 229.734 22,181 477.317 5.509.099
Accumulated amortisation (1.004) (660.958) (270) (68.526) (7.491) (214.365) (999.557)
Balance at 1 January 2012 3.155.626 915.050 17 161.208 14.690 262.952 4.509.542
Increases 187 - 116.819 117.009
Decreases - (3.751) (3.751)
Tntangible fixed assets and
goodwill from business
combinations 107.123 12.057 21,807 11,146 152.133
"I'ranslation difference and other
changes (48.916) (6.573) (3.370) (254) (8.009) (67.121)
Amortisation (70.882) a8 (15.468) (A117)  (60.805)  (148.290)
Balance at 31 December 2012 3.213.833 849.839 - 164.177 13.319 318.352 4.559.523
Of which
Historic cost 3.214.837 1.563.447 288 247.730 21.752 546.966 5.595.023
Accumulated amortisation (1.004) (713.608) (288) (83.553) (8.433) (228.614)  (1.035.500)
Balance at 31 December 2012 3.213.833 849.839 = 164.177 13.319 318.352 4.559.523
Increases 44 - 100.764 100.806
Decreasces - (3.473) (3.473)
Intangible fixed asscts and
goodwill from business
combinalions 67.328 23.806 4.107 95.241
‘I'ranslation difference and other
changes (170.882) (44.110) (11.064) (536) (169) (226.761)
Amortisation (68.683) 14,640 (1.081) (69.498) (153.902)
Balance at 31 December 2013 3.110.279 760.896 138.473 11.072 350.086 4.371.436
Of which
Historic cost 3,111,283 1.490.811 231.621 20.811 624.493 5.479.019
Accumulated amortisation (1.004) (729.915) (93.148) (9109 (274407)  (1.107.583)
Balancc at 31 December 2013 3.110.279 760.896 138.473 11.702 350.086 4.371.436
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"T'he 2013 and 2012 increascs in goodwill and intangible asscts duc to business combinations were mainly due to the acquisition
of Alain Mikli (Furo 92,2 million ) and Tecnol (Furo 127,2 million). Please refer to Note 4 “Business Combinations” for further
details.

Of the total amortization expense of intangible assets of Luro 308 million (FRuro 153 million in 2012) FEuro 140,5 million
(Iluro 132,8 million in 2012) is included in general and administrative expenses, Euro 8,5 million (Curo 6,3 million in 2012) is
included in selling costs and Euro 4,9 million (uro 6,2 million in 2012) is included in cost of salcs.

Other intangible assets mainly includes internally generated assets of Huro 61.4 million  (Huro 57,4 million as  of
31 December 2012)."T'he increase in intangible asscts is mainly due to the implementation of a new I'l' infrastructure, which
started in 2008.

Impairment of goodwill

Pursuant to 1AS 36—Impairment of Assets, the Group has identified the following four cash-generating units (“CGUs™):
Wholesale, Retail North America, Retall Asia-Pacific and Retail Other. The cash-gencrating units reflect the distribution model
adopted by the Group. I'he CGUs arc periodically assessed based on the organizational changes that arc made in the Group.

There were no changes to the CGUs for fiscal 2013 and 2012.

The value of goodwill allocated to cach CGU is reported in the following table (amounts in thousands of Huro):

31/12/2013  31/12/2012

Wholesale 1.201.605 1.203.749
Retail North America 1.332.758 1.388.263
Retail Asia-Pacific 324,988 376.414
Retail other 185.865 180.344
Other 65.063 65.063
Total 3.110.279 3.213.833

The reduction in goodwill, mainly duc to the weakening of the Iluro which is the currency in which the Group operates
(Euro 170,2 million), was partially offsct by the increases duce to the acquisition of Alain Mikli for Euro 58,7 million and of
Devlyn for Euro 6,0 million.

"The information tequired by paragraph 134 of TAS 36 is provided below only for the Wholesale and Retail North America
CGUs, since the value of goodwill allocated to these two units s a significant component of the Group’s total goodwill.

‘I'he recoverable amount of cach CGU has been verified by comparing its net assets carrying amounts to its value in usc.
"I'he main assumptions for determining the value in use are reported below and refer to both cash gencrating units:

*  Growth rate: 2,0% (2,0% as of 31 December 2012)

*  Discount rate: 7,5% (7,8% as of 31 December 2012)

The above long-term average growth rate does not exceed the rate which is estimated for the products, industrics, and countries
in which the Group operates.

"I'he discount rate has been determined on the basis of market information on the cost of money and the specific risk of the
industry (Weighted Average Cost of Capital, WACC). In particular, the Group used a methodology to determine the discount
rate which was in line with that utilized in the previous year, considering the rates of return on long-term government bonds
and the average capital structure of a group of comparable companies.

‘T'he recoverable amount of cash-gencrating units has been determined by utilizing post-tax cash flow forecasts based on the
Group’s 2014-2016 three-year plan, on the basis of the results attained in previous years as well as management expectations—
split by geographical arca—regarding future trends in the cyewear market for both the Wholesale and Retail distribution
segments. At the end of the three-year projected cash flow period, a terminal value was estimated in order to reflect the value of
the CGU in future years. ‘I'he terminal values were calculated as a perpetuity at the same growth rate as described above and
represent the present value, in the last year of the forecast, of all future perpetual cash flows. 'I'he impairment test performed as
of the balance sheet date resulted in a recoverable value greater than the carrying amount (net operating assets) of the
abovementioned CGUs. In percentage terms, the surplus of the recoverable amount of the CGU over the carrying amount was
equal to 514% and 28% of the carrying amount of the Wholesale and Retail North America cash-generating units, respectively.
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A reduction in the recoverable amount of the cash gencrating unit to a value that cquals its carrying amount would require
cither of the following: (i) an increasc in the discount rate to approximately 32,7% for Wholesale and 9,05% for Retail North
America; or (i) the utilization of a negative growth rate for Wholesale and zero for Retail North America.

In addition, rcasonable changes to the abovementioned assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount (ie., growth

rate changes of +/-0,5 percent and discount rate changes of +/-0,5 percent) would not significantly affect the impairment test
results.

13. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

(in thousands of euros) Associated FDR Total
through Associate
Luxottica
Group
Balance at 1 January 2012 8.754 1.385.014 1.393.768
Increase 2.992 100.350 103.342
Decrease - (162.445) (162.445)
Balance at 31 December 2012 11.746 1.322.919 1.334.665
Increase 46.362 204.984 247.811
Decrease in value / Impairment (182.016) (178.481)
Balance at 31 December 2013 58.108 1.345.887 1.403.996

Tn regards to the associates owned by Luxottica Group, investments amounted to Huro 58.1 million (Huro 11,7 million as of 31
December 2012). The balance mainly related to the investment in Lycbiz Laboratorics Pty Limited for Turo 4,7 million
(Iluro 4,3 million as of 31 December 2012) and the acquisition of the 36,33% equity stake fn Salmoiraghi & Vigano, an lralian
optical retailer, which was valued at Buro 45,0 million and was completed on 25 March 2013, Transaction related costs of
[Turo 0,9 million were expensed as incurred. ‘The investment balance includes goodwill of 1Zuro 20,4 million and trademarks of
Ituro 14,7 million. The following tables provide a roll-forward of Group’s investment from the acquisition date as well as the
assets, liabilities and net sales of Salmoiraghi & Vigano.

"The increase in the cquity investment of the group Nonci¢re des Régions (IFDR) is mainly due to the profit of I'DR attributable
to Delfin and to the increase of the stake of DR, 'The decrease in the equity investment of the group Foncitre des Régions
(IFDR) is duce to the impairment at the NAV value done by the Company on the shares of IFDR. As at 31 December 2013,
Delfin owns 27,63% of DR (29,68% on 31 Deccember 2012). Profit of DR attributable to Delfin amounted to
liuro 33,63 million as of 31 December 2013 (33,63 million as of 31 December 2012).

[Tighlights from the consolidated financial statements of the associates 1foncié¢re des Régions, a leading Luropean group in the
rcal estate sector, with branches in 'rance, Italy and Germany, are illustrated as follows for the year ended 31 December 2013:

Asscts Turo 17180 million
Sharcholders” equity Turo 7.215 million
Liabilities Tiure 9.965 million
Revenuces [lure 832 million
Net income (loss) of group Furo 340 million
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14, FINANCIAL FIXED ASSETS

(in thousands of euros) Financial assets | Financial assets - | Loans and Held to Total
at fair value Available for sale receivables maturity
through profit financial assets
or loss

Balance at 01/01/12 - 742.722 51.190 150.000 943.912
Increases - 258.286 12.344 30.000 300.630
Decreases - (39.542) (38) - (39.500)
Adjustment to fair value - 134.727 10 = 134.737
Balance at 31/12/12 1.096.196 63.506 180.000 1.339.699
Increases - 256.240 20.000 276.240
Decreases - (5.333) (4.836) (10.167)
Adjustment to fair value . 453.109 453,109
Other variation 9.205 (150.000) (140.7935)
Balance at 31/12/13 - 1.814.747 58.175 45,164 1.918.086 |

The financial assets classified as available for sale are comprised mainly of investments in Unicredit S.p.A., Assicurazioni
Gencrali S.p.A. and Beni Stabili.

The increase recorded during 2013 was mainly due to (i) purchase of additional shares in Unicredit Spa (ii) subscription of
bonds of the subsidiaries Beni Stabili.

The held to maturity financial assets is composed mainly by bonds of subsidiaties companies listed in the market. Held to
maturity assets are composed by bonds that the Group will hold to maturity. The bonds are booked at cost price because the
value is substantially equal to the value calculated using the amortised cost.

The adjustment to fair value at the end of the year was recognised in the “reserve for valuation of AfS securities” net of the tax
effect and is mainly due to Assicurazioni Generali and Unicredit S.p.A.

Qther variation is the reclassification of the bonds FDR from financial fixed assets to financial current assets.

15, OTHER ASSETS

| As of 31 December
(Amounts in thousands of Euro) 2013 2012
Other assets 69.196 84.318
Total 69.193 84.318

Other assets primarily include advance payments made to certain licensees for future contractual minimum royalties totaling
Euro 69,2 million (Euro 73,8 million as of 31 December 2012).
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16. DEFERRED TAX

‘I'he balance of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of 31 IDecember 2013, 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2012 is as follows:

As of 31 As of 31 Asof1
December December January
(Amounts in thousands of Euro) 2013 2012 2012
Deferred tax assets 172.623 169.662 153.701
Deferred tax liabilitics 268.078 227.806 232.337
- Deferred tax liabilities (net) 95.455 58.144 78.636

"I'he analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within
the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

As of 31 December
Deferred tax assets (Amounts in thousands of Euro) 2013 2012
- Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than 12 months 163.907 187.602
- Deferred tax assets to be recovered within 12 months 190.813  212.561
354,720 400.163
- Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after more than 12 months 10.610 18.129
- Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered within 12 months 439.565 440.178
450.175 458.307
- Deferred tax liabilities (net) 95.455 58.144
The gross movement in the deferred tax accounts is as follows:
2013
As of 1 January 58.144
Hxchange rate difference and other movements 8.491
Business combinations 9.009
Statement of profit and loss (13.174)
T'ax charge/(credit) directly to equity 32,985
At 31 December 95.455

The movement of deferred tax asscts and liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances
within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

As of 1 Exchange rate Statement Tax As of 31

January difference and Business of profit  charged/(credited) December
Deferred tax assets 2013 other movements combinations  and loss to equity 2013
Inventorics 103.056 (5.4806) (16) 4.345 101.899
Insurance and other reserves 11.343 (431) - 907 - 11.819
Net operating loss carry forwards 6.459 481 387 8.368 15.695
Rights of return 16.082 1.714 1 (1.404) — 16.394
Deferred tax on derivatives 38 1 - - 83 (121) —
Employce related reserves 104.408 (10.608) - (5.875) (33.893) 54.032
Occupancy reserves 18.366 (1.730) (169) 1.240 — 17.707
Trade names 82.425 (8.700) 2.248 (5.033) — 70.939
Fixed assets 14.229 (3.318) 179 (292) — 10.798
Other 43,759 (3.421 (87) 8.344 - 55.437
Total 400.163 (24.456) 2.543 10.682 (34.014)  354.720
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As ofl Exchange rate Statement Tax

January difference and Business of profit  charged/(credited) As of 31
Deferred tax liabilities 2012 other mov ts combinati and loss to equity December2012
Dividends 5.563 - — 1.819 — 7.383
Trade names 233.957 (17.321) 11.529 (20.284) — 207.881
Fixed asscts 55.491 0.181) 41 5.548 — 51.899
Other intangibles 151.842 2.214 — 4.781 (6) 158.830
Other 11.454 8.125 (18) 5.645 (1.023) 24.181
Total 458.307 (16.163) 11.552 (2.491) (1.029) 450.175

Deferred tax assets are rccognized for tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realization of the related tax benefit
through future profit is probable. ‘The Group did not recognize deferred tax assets of Juro 52,2 million in respect of losses
amounting to Furo 201,9 million that can be carried forward against future taxable income. Additional losses of certain
subsidiaries amounting to Euro 25,9 million can be indefinitely carried forward. ‘The breakdown of the net operating losses by
expiration date is as follows:

Years ending 31 December:
(Amounts in thousands of Furo)

2014 20.866
2015 27.921
2016 19.077
2017 21.209
2018 24.033
Subscquent years 62.841
Total 175.946

The Company does not provide for an accrual for income taxes on undistributed earnings of its non-Italian operations to the
related Ttalian parent company of Furo 2,5 billion and Furo 2,0 billion in 2013 and 2012, respectively, that are intended to be
permanently invested. In connection with the 2013 earnings of certain subsidiaries, the Group has provided for an accrual for
income taxcs related to dividends from carnings to be paid in 2014,

17. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share capital

The share capital of Delfin S$.4 r.l. at 31 December 2013 was Euro 500.930 thousand (2012: Furo 500.930 thousand). The share
capital is represented by 20.037.198 ordinary shares with a par value of Euro 25 each and by 800.000 class A shares (PESCS)
with a par value of Huro 25 each, which are recognised under liabilities (total of liuro 20.000 thousand at 31 December 2013
and 2012), classified as subordinated debts, as envisaged by IFRS.

Legal reserve

The legal resetve of Euro 52.092 thousand represents the portion of the profits of the parent company Delfin S.a r.l. that
cannot be distributed as a dividend.

Available for sale securities valuation reserve

The available for sale securities valuation reserve, Furo 13.062 thousand (in 2012: Kuro (440.046) thousand), represents the
lower matket value at the end of the financial year, net of the tax effect, with respect to the value of the amortised cost of the
securities classified as available for sale. This reserve changes with the increases and decreases in the fair value of the sccurities
classificd as available for sale during the financial year. It is also reduced or increased by the portion for sccurities sold during
the year that is recognised on the statement of profit and loss as a financial expense or income.
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Other reserves

The account “other reserves” includes the results of subsidiarics not distributed as dividends and the sharcholders’ equity of
consolidated companies exceeding the corresponding book values of those investments. The values resulting from
consolidation adjustments are also recognised.

The account other reserves also contains the reserve for translation differences generated by translation into Ruro of financial
statements expressed in foreign currencies.

Sharcholders’ equity and other reserves are negative due to the resolution taken during the 30 June 2006 shareholders” meeting,
which allocated Euro 5.000.000 thousand of reserves to the class A shares (PHCS Account), which was recognised as the Class
A shares under liabilities, even if it is an equity reserve.

18. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

‘The minority interest in shareholders’ equity is Euro 1.585.422 thousand in 2013; in 2012 it was Euro 1.500.134 thousand.

19. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Short-term borrowings at 31 December 2013 reflect current account overdrafts with various banks as well as uncommitted
short-term lines of credits with different financial institutions. The intcrest rates on these credit lines are floating. The credit
lines may be used, if necessaty, to obtain letters of credit.

The book value of bank borrowings can be considered representative of their fair value.

The book value of short-term botrowings is approximately equal to their fair value.

As of 31 December 2013 and 2012, the subsidiary Luxottica had unused short-term lines of credit of approximately Euro 742,6
million and Euro 700,4 million, respectively.

The blended average interest rate on these lines of credit is approximately LIBOR plus spread that my range from 0% to 0,20%,
depending on the different lines of credit.

As of 31 December 2013 and 2012, Delfin and Aterno had unused short-term lines of credit of approximately Huro 384 million
and [luro 445 million, respectively.

The average interest rate on these lines of credit is approximately EURIBOR 1 month plus 1,05%.
The short-term line of credit of Delfin is secured by a pledge on one of the Company’s bank accounts.

‘I'be short-term line of credit of Aterno is secured by a pledge on certain financial assets of Aterno.

20. 'TRADE PAYABLES

Accounts payable consist of invoices reccived and not yet paid at the reporting date, in addition to invoices to be received,
accounted for on an accrual basis.

The carrying value of accounts payable is approximately equal to their fair value.
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21, TAX PAYABLES

The balance of income taxes payable is detailed below:

At 31 December
(in thousands of euros) 203 | [ 2012
Payables for income taxes 46.657 108.963
Tax prepayments (35.368) (41.913)
Total 11.289 67.050
22, PROVISIONS
The balance is detailed below:

Tax Other

(Amounts in thousands of Euro) Legal risk Self-insurance  provision risks Returns Total
Balance as of 31 December 2011 4.899 5.620 1.796 9.927 31.094 53.337
Increases 1.647 7.395 10.525 11.229 18.233  49.029
Decreases (5.981) (8.186) (132) (8.383) (12.736)  (35.419)
Business combinations — — - >t == —
Forcign translation difference reclassification
and other movements 14 (60) (39) (296) (534 (914)
Balance as of 31 December 2012 578 4.769 12.150 12.477 36.057  66.032
Increases 923 7.969 42,258 12.842 20.552 84.544
Decreases (909) (6.823) (11.089)  (10711)  (20.582) (50.114)
Business combinations - - - 1.848 1.848
Foreign translation difference reclassifications
and other movements 405 (381) 20.609 164 580 21.377
Balance as of 31 December 2013 997 5.535 63.928 14.772 38.455  123.687

The Company is self-insured for certain losscs relating to workers’ compensation, general liability, auto liability, and employee
medical benefits for claims filed and for claims incurred but not reported. The Company’s liability is estimated using historical
claims experience and industry averages; however, the final cost of the claims may not be known for over five years.

Legal risk includes provisions for vartious litigated matters that have occurred in the ordinary course of business.

The tax provision mainly includes the accrual related to a tax audit on Luxottica S.r.l. for fiscal years subsequent to 2007 of
approximately Euro 40,0 million.
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23. OTHER LIABILITIES

As of 31 December

(Amounts in thousands of Euro) 2013 2012

Premiums and discounts to suppliers 2.674 4.363
Debt versus sharcholders 400.919 251.225
Sales commissions - 683
Leasing rental 16.535 24.608
Insurance 10.008 9.494
Sales taxes payable 38.024 29.017
Salarics payable 229.095 245.667
Due to social secutity authorities 33.907 37.143
Sales commissions payable 9.008 8.569
Derivative financial liabilities 1.729 1.196
Royalties payable 3,742 2.795
Other liabilities 137.844 175.610
Total financial liabilities 883.485 790.370
Deferred income 15.863 9.458
Advances from customers 33.430 45.728
Other liabilities 5.591 5.727
Total liabilities 54.884 60.913
Total other cusrent liabilities 938.369 851.283

The debt versus sharcholders is mainly due to the dividends declared by Delfin in 2006 (Euro 79.510) and 2011 and 2013
(Euro 300.000 from the PESCS reserves classified for IFRS purposes under liabilities) and never paid to the sharcholders.

24. SUBORDINATED DEBT

Delfin S.a r.1. has issued 800.000 class A shares (called PIESCS) with a par value of Huro 25 each that are shares with voting
rights in the sharcholders’ meeting of the Company. These shates are classified as labilities since they do not satisfy 1AS
requirements for classification under shareholders’ cquity as per IFRS. In particular, they do not allow participation in company
reserves,

The shareholders’ meeting of Delfin S.4 r.l. resolved on 30 June 2006 to allocate Euro 5.000.000.000 to one equity reserve
linked to the class A shares. This equity reserve could be distributed to the shareholders that own class A preferred shares only.
In 2013, after a dividend declared by the shareholders’ meeting, 1luro 150.000.000 were reclassified from subordinated debt to
debt versus sharcholders in other liabilities.

In 2013 the amount allocated to the class A shares reserve is equal to Furo 10.131 thousand (2012: Huro 13.045 thousand) in
addition to the original allocation.
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Long-term debt was Furo 2.034,5 million and Euro 2.362,2 million as of 31 December 2013 and 2012.

The roll-forward of long-term debt as of 31 December 2013 and 2012, is as follows:

Other loans

with banks
Luxottica Credit and other
Group S.p.A. agrecment third parties, Delfin -
credit Credit with various intereat at credit
agreement Senior agreement (i 1 rates, g
with various unsecured with various ingtitutions payable in with
fi ial d I ) for Oakley inetal Mediob
notes neguisiii throngh 2014 | bounrg Total
Balance as of 1 Janunry 2003 367.743 1,723.235 45.664 174,922 50,623 - 2362177
Proceeds from new and existing loans 3254 5254
Repayments (70.000) (15.063) (45.500) (173.918) (22.587) (327.068)
Loans assumed in business combinations 16.073 16.073
Amorttization of fees and interests 735 18717 124 96 4419 7.251
Translation difference [260065) L 2A8) (1 (1.723) [ AR
Balance as of 31 December 2013 298.478 1.683.970 - - 52.061 2.034.510
Other loans
with banks
Luxottica Credit and other
Group S.p.A. agreement third parties, Delfin -
credit Credit with various interest at credit
agreement Senior agreement financial various rates, agreement
with various unsecured with various institutions payable in with
i to] e d P sl for Oaldey inatal Mediok
notes instil Isiti through 2014 Luxembourg Toaral
Balance as of 1 January 2012 487363 1.226.245 225,955 7743 30.572 A20.000 3162878
Proceeds from new and cxisting loans 500.000 FA038 5330133
Repayments (120.000) (181.149) (607.247) (38.159) #20,000)  (1.366.555)
Loans d in business combi 30.466 - 30:466
Amorlization of fees and interests 380 9.104 484 16 (4312 - 5.672
Foreign translation difference (1212 374 g1 LLuTh [ERAL
Balance ag of 31 December 2012 An7. M3 1.723.225 45,664 174,922 50,623 - 2362177

The Group uses debt financing to raise financial resources for long-term business operations and to finance acquisitions. T'he
Group continues to seek debt refinancing at favorable market rates and actively monitors the debt capital markets in order to
take action to issue debt, when appropriate. Qur debt agreements contain certain covenants, including covenants that limit our
ability to incur additional indcbtedness (for more details see note 3(f)—Default risk: negative pledges and financial covenants).

As of 31 December 2013, we were in compliance with these financial covenants.

The table below summarizes the main terms of the Group’s long-term debt.

Delfin S.4 r.1. - Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2013

Page 50 of 86



Document émis électroniquement

Ouistanding nierest rate as
wmeunt at the of 31 December
Type Set ks Jssuer/Rorrawer Tssue Date ({84 Amount repot ting date Cuupon / Peicing 2013 Matw Ity
2009 Term Luan Taxottia Group S A Novemler 11,2000 ENR JOUX 000 300000 000 Funbor + 1002 75% 123 November 30, 2014
Prvaie Placemeat " Tauxaltea US Toldings July 1, 2008 (IsD 127 00 000 127000 100 6920 6420% Tuly 1,2015
Boid (Listed on Luxembou g Stock
change) Lusaltica Group S p A November 102010 KUR i o o 500 0 000 10005 1000%  Novemher 102015
Trivute Placement )] Luanltica US loldigs Junuary 29,2010 ush RURNETED 30 000 ) 519 3190 Januwary 29, 2017
2012 Revalving Credil Facility Luxoltica Gioup S p A Apal 17 2012 EUR WL O O — Ermibim = 1 30°/2 23% — Apnil 10,2017
Private Placement G Lusaltica Group § p A Seplember 30,200 EUR 000K 50 001 00 37500 AI50Pe Seplember 15,2017
Private Plvcement S Tuxotiica US Ioldings Tuly 1, 2008 ush £ IR T 128 0600 M0 67 6770% July 1, 2018
Prvate Placement 3 Luxattica US Holdines Janviary 29, 2010 usn TEIRL ) 75 000 K0 5390 5390% January 29, 2019
Bond (Lisled on Luxemboury Steck
Ixehinge) Luxotiica Growp § p A 19 Maich 2012 LR 500 GIXI UK 500 000 00 3625% 3.625% 19 Maich 2019
Placemenl E Luxottica US Tinldings January 29, 2010 UsD 50 0K 01} 50,000 (0 57500 3750 Junuary 29, 2020
Prisate Placement H Lusuttica Group 8 p A September 30,2000 EUR 30,000 D00 50,000 Ui 42500 September 15, 2000

Trivide Pliccment ' T uxottca US Hiddings Tecember 152001 Ush 350 000 000 330 00hd Q) 4350k

December 15 2021

The floating rate measures under “Coupon/Pricing” are based on the corresponding Luribor (Libor for USD loans) plus a
margin in the range, indicated in the table, based on the “Net Debt/LEBITDA™ ratio, as defined in the applicable debt
agrecment.

Certain credit facilities that matured on or before 31 December 2013, including the USID ‘Term loan 2004—I'ranche B, Oakley
Term Loan 2007 Tranche 1D and “I'ranche I and Revolving Credit 1acility Intesa 250, were hedged by interest rate swap
agreements with various banks. The Tranche B swaps cxpired on 10 March 2012 and the Tranche D and I swaps expired on
12 October 2012. The Revolving Credit I'acility Intesa 250 swaps expired on 29 May 2013,

On 19 March 2012, the Group completed an offering in Furope to institutional investors of furo 500 million of senior
unsccured guaranteed notes due 19 March 2019. The Notes are listed on the luxembourg Stock lixchange under ISIN
XS50758640279. Interest on the Notes accrues at 3.625% per annum. The Notes are guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by
U.S. TToldings and Luxottica S.r.1. On 20 January 2014 the Notes werce assigned an A- credit rating by Standard & Poor’s.

On 29 April 2013, the Group Board of Directors authorized a Euro 2 billion “Euro Medium Term Note Programme” pursuant
to which Luxottica Group S.p.A. may from time to time offer notes to investors in certain jurisdictions (excluding the United
States, Canada, Japan and Australia). ‘I'he notes issued under this program are expected to be listed on the Luxembourg Stock
Iixchange.

On April 17, 2012, the Group and U.S. TToldings cntered into a multicurrency (uro/USD) revolving credit facility with a
group of banks providing for loans in the aggregate principal amount of uro 500 million (or the cquivalent in ULS. dollars)
guaranteed by Luxottica Group, Luxottica S.r.l. and U.S. Holdings. ‘T'he agent for this credit facility is Unicredit AG Milan
Branch and the other lending banks are Bank of America Securities Limited, Citigroup Global Markets Limited, Crédit Agricole
Corparate and Tnvestment Bank—Milan Branch, Banco Santander S.A., The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC and Unicredit S.p.A..
The facility matures on April 10, 2017 and was not drawn as of 31 December 2013,

The fair value of long-term debt as of 31 December 2013 was equal to Huro 2.144,9 million (luro 2.483,5 million as of 31
December 2012). 'The fair value of the debt equals the present value of future cash flows, calculated by utilizing the market rate
currently available for similar debt and adjusted in order to take into account the Group’s current credit rating, The above fair
value does not include capital Iease obligations.

On 31 December 2013, the Group had unused uncommitted lines (revolving) of Tiuro 500 million.

Long-term debt, including capital lease obligations, as of 31 December 2013, matures as follows:

Years ended 31 December
(Amounts in thousands of 1iuro)

2014 318.100
2015 613.565
2016 -
2017 98.745
2018 and subscquent years 987.236
liffect deriving from the adoption of the amortized cost method 16.864
‘Total 2.034.510

Long-term debt includes finance lease liabilities of Tiuro 25,6 million (Iluro 29,2 million as of 31 December 2012).
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{(Amounts in thousands of Kuro) 31/12/2013 31/12/2012
Gross finance leasc Habilitics:
- no later than 1 year 4.967 5.098
- later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 15.109 15.771
- later than 5 years 10.082 13.845
30.158 34.714
uture finance charges on finance lease labilitics 4.568 (5.472)
Present values of finance leasc liabilities 25.590 29.242
The present value of finance lease labilities is as follows:
(Amounts in thousands of Huro) 31/12/2013 31/12/2012
- no later than 1 year 3.799 3.546
- later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 12.338 12.703
- later than 5 years 9.453 12.993
25.590 29.242

26. LIABILITIES FOR TERMINATION INDEMNITIES

Employce benefits amounted to Juro 76,7 million (Buro 192 million as of 31 December 2012). The balance mainly included
liabilitics for termination indemnitics of Furo 46,8 million (Furo 49,3 million as of 31 December 2012), and liabilities for
employee benefits of the U.S. subsidiaries of the Group of I<uro 29,6 million (Buro 142,4 million as of 31 DDecember 2012). The
reduction is mainly due to the increase of the discount rates used to calculate the liability.

Liabilitics for termination indemnitics mainly include post-employment benefits of the Tralian companics’ employees
(hereinafter “ITR™), which at 31 December 2013 amounted to Lluro 38,1 million (Buro 39,7 million as of 31 December 2012).

liffective | January 2007, the TFR system was reformed, and under the new law, employees are given the ability to choose
where the TR compensation is invested, whereas such compensation otherwise would be directed to the National Social
Sceurity Institute or Pension unds. As a result, contributions under the reformed IR system are accounted for as a defined
contribution plan. The liability accrued until 31 December 2006 continues to be considered a defined benefit plan, Therefore,
cach year, the Group adjusts its accrual based upon headcount and inflation, excluding changes in compensation level.

"This liability as of 31 December 2013 represents the estimated future payments required to scttle the obligation resulting from
employece service, excluding the component related to the future salary increases.

Contribution cxpense to pension funds was liuro 19.4 million and Zuro 18,6 million for the years 2013 and 2012, respectively.

In application of TAS 19, the valuation of TI'R liability accrued as of 31 December 2006 was based on the Projected Unit Credit
Cost method. The main assumptions utilized are reported below:

2013 2012
LECONOMIC ASSUMPTIONS
Discount rate 3,15% 3,25%
Annual TTR increasc rate 3,00% 3,00%

‘I'hose determined by the General
Accounting Department of the

T'hose determined by the General
Accounting Department of the

Death probability:

Ttalian Government, named
RG48
Assuming the attainment of the
first of the retirement
requirements applicable for the
Assicurazione Generale
Obbligatoria (General Mandatory
Insurance)

Retirement probability:

Ttalian Government, named
RG48
Assuming the attainment of the
first of the retirement
requirements applicable for the
Assicurazione Generale
Obbligatoria (General Mandatory
Insurance)
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Movements in liabilities during the course of the year are detailed in the following table:

(Amounts in thowsands of L) o 2013 2012
Liabilities at the beginning of the year 39.969 36.482
Expenses for interests 1.286 1.674
Actuarial loss (income) (201) 4.532
Benefits paid (2.660)  (2.719)
Liabilities at the end of the year 38.095  39.969

Pension funds

Qualified Pension Plans—U.S. Holdings sponsors a qualified noncontributory defined benefit pension plan, the Tuxottica
Group Pension Plan (“Lux Pension Plan”), which provides for the payment of benefits to eligible past and present employees
of U.S. Holdings upon retirement. Pension benefits are gradually acerued based on length of service and annual compensation
under a cash balance formula. Participants become vested in the Lux Pension Plan after three years of vesting service as defined
by the Lux Pension Plan. 1n 2013, the Lux Pension Plan was amended so that employces hired on or after 1 January 2014 would
not be eligible to participate.

Nongqualified Pension Plans and Agrcements—U.S. [Holdings also maintains a nonqualified, unfunded supplemental exccutive
retirement plan (“Lux SERP”) for participants of its qualified pension plan to provide benefits in excess of amounts permitted
under the provisions of prevailing tax law. The pension liability and expense associated with this plan are accrued using the
same actuarial methods and assumptions as those used for the qualified pension plan. This plan’s benefit provisions mirror
those of the Lux Pension Plan.

U.S. [Toldings also sponsors the Cole National Group, Inc. Supplemental Pension Plan. This plan is a nonqualified unfunded
SERP for certain participants of the former Cole pension plan who were designated by the Board of Ditectors of Cole on the
recommendation of Cole’s chief exccutive officer at such time. ‘This plan provides benefits in excess of amounts permitted
under the provisions of the prevailing tax law. The pension lability and expense associated with this plan are accrued using the
same actuarial methods and assumptions as those used for the qualified pension plaa.

All plans operate under the U.S. regulatory framework. The plans are subject to the provisions of the Lmployee Retirement
Income Sccurity Act of 1974 (“JARISA), as amended. The Luxottica Group ERISA Plans Compliance and Investment
Committee controls and manages the operation and administration of the plans. ‘The plans expose the Company to actuarial
risks, such as longevity risk, currency risk, and interest rate risk. The Lux Pension Plan exposcs the Company to market
(investment) risk.

‘The following tables provide key information pertaining to the Lux Pension Plan and SERPs (amounts in thousands of Furo).

Lux Pension Plan Benetit Obligation Plan Assets Total
At 1 January 2012 483.738 (355.563) 128.175
Service Cost 22.366 2.958 25.323
Interest expense/(income) 24.189 (19.033) 5.156
Remeasurement;
Unexpected return on plan assets — (33.504) (33.504)
(Gain)/loss from financial assumption changes 59.781 — 59.781
(Gain)/loss  from demographic assumption
changes 310 — 310
Experience (gains)/losses (6.020) — (6.020)
LEmployer contributions — (48.898) (48.898)
Benefit payment (15.210) 15.210 —
_Translation difference 11.590 9.056 2.534
At 31 December 2012 557.564 (429.775) 127.789
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Lux Pension Plan Benefit Obligation Plan Assets Total
At 1 January 2013 557.564 _(429.775) 127.789
Service Cost 24.896 2.034 26.930
Interest expense/(income) 23.476 (18.822) 4.654
Remeasurement:
Unexpected return on plan assets — (56.886)- (56.886)
(Gain)/loss from financial assumption changes (51.367) —_ (51.367)
(Gain)/loss from demographic assumption
changes 240 — 240
_Experience (gains)/losses 5.086 — 5.086
Employer contributions — (38.566) (38.566)
Benefit payment (41.479) 41.479 —
Translation difference (22.679) 21.239 (1.439)
At 31 December 2013 495.737 (479.297) 16.440
SERP Benefit Obligation Plan Assets Total
At 1 January 2012 12.343 — 12.343
Service Cost 510 — 510
Interest expense/(income) 488 — 488
Remeasurement: —
Unexpected return on plan assets - —
(Gain)/loss from financial assumption changes 574 574
(Gain)/loss  from demographic assumption
changes 2 — 2
Experience (gains)/losses 578 — 578
Employer contributions — (3.915) (3.915)
Benefit payment (18) 18 —
Scitlements (3.897) 3.897 —_
Translation difference (192) — (192)
At 31 December 2012 10.388 - 10.388
SERP Benefit Obligation Plan Assets Total
At 1 January 2013 10.388 — 10.388
Service Cost 211 — 211
Interest expense/(income) 423 — 423
Remeasurement: —
Unexpected return on plan assets - —
(Gain)/loss from financial assumption changes (272) (272)
(Gain)/loss from demographic  assumption
changes 2 — 2
Experience (gains)/losses 619 — 619
Employer contributions — (2.281) (2.281)
Benefit payment (20) 20 —
Settlements (2.261) 2.261 e
Translation differcnce (401) — (401)
At 31 December 2013 8.689 — 8.689
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"T'he following tables show the main assumptions used to determine the period benefit cost and the benefit obligation.

Pension Plan SERPs

2013 2012 2013 2012
Weighted-average assumptions used
to determine benefit obligations:
Discount rate 5,10% 4,30% 5,10% 4,30%

Rate of compensation increase

6%/ 4%/3% 5%/3%/2%
Static 2012

Mortality "T"able Static 2013

6% /4%/3% 5%/3%/2%
Static 2013 Static 2012

US IToldings’ discount ratc is developed using a third party yicld curve derived from non-callable bonds of at least an Aa rating

by Moody’s Tavestor Services or at least an AA rating by Standard &

Poor’s. liach bond issue is required to have at least

USD 250 million par outstanding. The yicld curve compares the future expected benefit payments of the Lux Pension Plan to
these bond yiclds to determine an equivalent discount rate. US TToldings uses an assumption for salary increases based on a
graduated approach of historical experience. US Holdings” experience shows salary increases that typically vary by age.

"I'he sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the significant assumptions is (amounts in thousands):

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in Increase in assumption

Decrease in assumption

assumption
Pension Plan SERPs Pension Plan SERPs
Discount rate 1,0% (58.638) (587) 71.122 671
Rate of
compensation 1% for each age
increase group 6.190 323 (5.422) (238)

‘T'he sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this
is unlikely to occur. When caleulating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to significant actuarial assumptions, the
same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the Habilities recognized within the statements of financial position.

Plan Asscts—The Lux Pension Plan’s investment policy is to invest plan assets in a manner to ensure over a long-term
investment horizon that the plan is adequately funded; maximize investment return within reasonable and prudent levels of rsk;
and maintain sufficient liquidity to make timely benefit and administrative expense payments. T'his investment policy was
developed to provide the framework within which the fiduciary’s investment decisions are made, establish standards to measure
the investment manager’s and investment consultant’s performance, outline the roles and responsibilities of the various parties
involved, and describe the ongoing review process. The investment policy identifies target asser allocations for the plan’s assets
at 40% l.arge Cap U.S. Tiquity, 10% Small Cap U.S. liquity, 15% International Tiquity, and 35% FFixed Income Sccuritics, but an
allowance is provided for a range of allocations to these categories as described in the table below.

Assct Class as a Percent of

Total Assets
Asset Category Minimum Maximum
Large Cap U.S. Equity 37% 43%
Small Cap U.S. Equity 8% 12%
International Equity 13% 17%
Fixed Income Securities 32% 38%
Cash and Equivalents 0% 5%
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The actual allocation percentages at any given time may vary from the targeted amounts due to changes in stock and bond
valuations as well as timing of contributions to, and benefit payments from, the peasion plan trusts. The Lux Pension Plan’s
investment policy intends that any divergence from the targeted allocations should be of a short duration, but the appropriate
duration of the divergence will be determined by the Investment Subcommittee of the Luxottica Group Imployee Retirement
Income Sceurity Act of 1974 (“IERISA”) Plans Compliance and Investment Committee with the advice of investment managers
and/or investment consultants, taking into account current market conditions. During 2013, the Committee reviewed the Tux
Pension Plan’s asset allocation monthly and if the allocation was not within the above ranges, the Committee re-balanced the
allocations if appropriate based on current market conditions.

Plan asscts are invested in diversified portfolios consisting of an array of asset classes within the above target allocations and
using a combination of active and passive strategies. Passive strategics involve investment in an exchange-traded fund that
closcly tracks an index fund. Active strategies cmploy multiple investment management firms. Risk is controlled through
diversification among agset classes, managers, styles, market capitalization (equity investments) and individual sccurities. Certain
transactions and securities are prohibited from being held in the Lux Pension Plan’s trusts, such as ownership of real estate
other than real estate investment trusts, commodity contracts, and American Depositary Receipts (“ADR”) or common stock
of the Group. Risk is further controlled both at the assct class and manager level by assigning benchmarks and excess return
targets. ‘I'he investment managers are monitored on an ongoing basis to cvaluate performance against the established market
benchmarks and return targets.

Quoted market prices are used to measure the fair value of plan assets, when available. 1f quoted market prices are not available,
the inputs utilized by the fund manager to derive net asset value are observable and no significant adjustments to net assct value
were necessary.

Contributions—U.S. Holdings expects to contribute luro 48.5 million to its pension plan and lluro 1.5 million to the SIERP in
2014.

Duration ~ T'he weighted average duration of the pension defined benefit obligation is 12,9 years while the weighted average
duration of the SFERPs is 8,9 years. The following table provides the undiscounted cstimated future benefit payments (amounts
in thousands):

Estimated Future Benefit Payments Pension Plan SERPs
2014 14.009 1.521
2015 16.658 199
2016 19.364 199
2017 22.785 469
2018 25.066 725
2019 - 2023 176.241 3.415

Other Beacefits—U.S. [Toldings provides certain post-employment medical, disability and life insurance benefits. ‘The Group’s
accrued lability related to this obligation as of 31 December 2013 and 2012, was Furo 1,1 million and Furo 1,2 million,
respectively.
U.S. TToldings sponsors the following additional benefit plans, which cover certain present and past employecs of some of its
US subsidiaties:

(@) U.S. Holdings provides, under individual agreements, post-employment benefits for continuation of health
care benefits and life insurance coverage to former employees after employment. As of each of 31 December 2013 and 2012,
the accrued liability related to these benefits was Euro 0,5 million.

b) U.S. IToldings maintains the Cole National Group, Inc. Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan, which
provides supplemental retirement benefits for certain highly compensated and management employees who were previously
designated by the former Board of Directors of Cole as participants. This is an unfunded noncontributory defined contribution
plan. Tsach participant’s account is credited with interest carned on the average balance during the year. This plan was frozen as
to future salary credits on the effective date of the Cole acquisition in 2004. The plan liability was Buro 0,6 million and
[uro 0,7 million at 31 December 2013 and 2012, respectively.

U.S. Tloldings sponsors certain defined contribution plans for its United States and Pucrto Rico employees. The cost of
contributions incurred in 2013 and 2012 was Jluro 6,3 million and Euro 8,4 million, respectively, and was recorded in gencral
and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of income. (1S, Holdings also sponsors a defined contribution plan
for all .S, Qakley associates with at least six months of service. The cost for contributions incurred in 2013 and 2012 was
Fuaro 2,2 million and 1lure 1,8 million, respectively.
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The Group continucs to participate in supcrannuation plans in Australia and ITong Kong, The plans provide bencfits on a
defined contribution basis for cmployces upon retitement, resignation, disablement or death. Contributions to defined
contribution superannuation plans are recognized as an expense as the contributions are paid ot become payable to the fund.
Contributions are accrued based on legislated rates and annual compensation.

Health Benefit Plans—1U.S. Holdings partially subsidizes health care benefits for eligible retirees. Iimployees gencrally become
cligible for retirce health care benefits when they retire from active service between the ages of 55 and 65. Benefits arc
discontinued at age 65. During 2009, U.S. IToldings provided for a onc-time special clection of carly retirement to certain
associates age 50 or older with 5 or more years of service. Benefits for this group are also discontinued at age 65 and the
resulting special termination benefit is immaterial.

The plan liability of [turo 3,2 million and liuro 3,5 million at 31 December 2013 and 2012, respectively, is included in other
non-current liabilities on the consolidated statement of financial position,

"The cost of this plan in 2013 and 2012 as well as the 2014 expected contributions are immateral,

For 2014, a 8,5%(9,0% for 2013) increasc in the cost of covered health care benefits was assumed. This rate was assumed to
decrease gradually to 5% for 2021 and remain at that level thereafter. The health care cost trend rate assumption could have a
significant effect on the amounts reported. A 1,0% increase or decrease in the health care trend rate would not have a material
impact on the consolidated financial statements. T'he weighted—average discount rate used in determining the accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation was 5,1% at 31 December 2013 and 4,3% at 31 December 2012,

27. LONG TERM PROVISIONS

The balance is detailed below (amounts in thousands of Furo):

Legal Self- Tax Other

risk insurance provision risks Total
Balance as of 31 December 2012 9.777 24.049 60.907 26.507 121.240
Increases 4.299 9.014 6.987 436 20.736
Decreascs (2.297) (8.586) (285) 6.870 (4.368)
Business combinations 383 240 623
Translation difference and other movements (1.069) (997) (22,073) (14.808) (38.947)
Balance as of 31 December 2013 11.093 23.480 45.556 19.155 99.284

Other risks include () accruals for risks related to sales agents of certain Italian companices of l{uro 5,8 million (furo 6,7 million
as of 31 December 2012) and (i) accruals for decommissioning the costs of certain subsidiarics of the Group operating in the
Retail Segment of Euro 3,1 million (Buro 2,8 million as of 31 December 2012).

The Group is self-insured for certain types of losscs (please refer to Note 22 “Provisions” for further details).

28. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

‘['he balance of other non-current liabilities was Furo 74,2 million and liuro 52,7 million as of 31 December 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

The balance mainly includes “Other liabilitics” of the North American retail division of Euro 40,3 million and Euro 40,6 million
as of 31 December 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

29. NET FINANCIAL (EXPENSES)/INCOME

Financial income and expenses are broken down as follows:

FINANCIAL EXPENSES 2013 2012
(in thousands of euros)

Interest expense on bank overdrafts (13005) (17.432)
Interest expense on loans (87.605) (131.256)
Interest expense on derivatives (7.548) (10.595)
Interest expenses on securities - (26.157)
Other interest expense (24.343) (25.427)
Total interest expenses (132.546) (210.867)
FINANCIAL INCOME

(in thousands of euros)

Interest income on bank accounts 7.193 16.513
Interest income on securities 47.689 19.684
Interest on derivatives 1.070 1.689
Interest income on loans 1.258 928
Other income 14 19
‘Total interest income 57.234 38.833

Other - net from derivative financial instruments and translation

differences (7.951) (1.109)
Other - net 194 (5.318)
Total net other income/(expenses) (7.757) (6.427)
NET FINANCIAL INCOME (EXPENSES) (83.069) (178.461)

30. INCOME TAXES

The income taxes charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss are illustrated as follows:

INCOME TAXES 2013 2012
(in thousands of curos)

Current income taxes (432.589) (341.377)
Deferred income taxes 13.163 28.910
Net income taxes (419.426) (312.467)

T'he parent company as well as the other Luxembourg companies are holding companies that are subject to tax rates that are
different than the ones of Luxottica Group that is an industrial group.
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T'or the purpose of building these consolidated financial statements, the management believes that the most representative tax
reconciliation is the onc of Luxottica group that represents for 2013 Luro 407,5 million of the total taxes and for 2012
liuro 305,8 million of the total taxes.

The taxes at the level of the l.uxemburg companies are mainly related to withholding taxes on dividends equal to
Tiuro 6,7 million in 2013 and l{uro 6,5 million in 2012 plus other taxes paid in Luxembourg for the difference.

Please find below the reconciliation between the talian statutory tax rate applicable to Luxottica Group Spa and the effective
tax rate of Luxottica as follows:

As of 31
December
2013 2012
Italian statutory tax rate 314%  31,4%
Aggregate cflect of different tax rates in foreign jursdictions 5% 3,3%
Non - deductible impairment loss = =
Accrual for tax inspection on Luxottica S.r.l. (fiscal year 2007) 7% 1,2%
Aggregate other cffects (0,8)% 0,4%
Iiflective rale 42,6%  36,3%

31. COMMITMENTS AND RISKS

Licensing agreements

The Group has entered into licensing agreements with certain designers for the production, design and distribution of
sunglasses and prescription frames.

Under these licensing agreements—which typically have terms ranging from 3 to 10 years—the Group is required to pay a
royalty generally ranging from 5% to 14% of net sales. Certain contracts also provide for the payment of minimum annual
guaranteed amounts and a mandatory marketing contribution (the latter typically amounts to between 5% and 10% of ncet sales).
These agreements can typically be terminated early by cither party for a varicty of reasons, including but not limited to non-
payment of royaltics, failure to reach minimum sales thresholds, product alteration and, under certain conditions, a change in
control of Luxottica Group S.p.A..

Minimum payments requited in cach of the years subscquent to 31 December 2013 are detailed as follows (amounts in
thousands of Luro):

Years ending 31 December:

2014 99.643
2015 87.763
2016 71.691
2017 62.412
2018 53.912
Subsequent years 161.520
Total 536.941

Rentals, leasing and licenses

The Group leases through its worldwide subsidiarics various retail stores, plants, warchouses and office facilities as well as
certain of its data processing and automotive cquipment under operating lease arrangements. These agreements expire between
2014 and 2026 and provide for renewal options under various conditions. The lease arrangements for the Group’s U.S. retail
locations often include escalation clauses and provisions requiring the payment of incremental rentals, in addition to any
established minimums contingent upon the achievement of specified levels of sales volume. The Group also operates
departments in various host stores, paying occupancy costs solely as a percentage of sales. Certain agreements which provide for
operations of departments in a major retail chain in the United States contain short-term cancellation clauscs.

Total rental expense for cach year ended 31 December is as follows:
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(Amounts in thousands of Euro)

2013 2012

Minimum lease payments
Additional lease payments
Sublease payments

Total

359479  360.082
126.400  99.377
(22.871)  (25.754)
463.008 _ 433.705

Future rental commitments, including contracted rent payments and contingent minimums, are as follows:

Year ending 31 December
(Amounts in thousands of Euro)

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
Subsequent years

Total

290.405
247.900
203.001
150.397
111.217
222,600
1.225.521

Other commitments

The Group is committed to pay amounts in future periods for endorsement contracts, supplier purchase and other long-term
commitments. Endorsement contracts are entered into with selected athletes and others who endorse Oakley products. Oakley
is often required to pay specified minimal annual commitments and, in certain cases, additional amounts based on performance
goals. Certain contracts provide additional incentives based on the achicvement of specified goals. Supplier commitments have
been entered into with various suppliers in the normal course of business. Other commitments mainly include auto, machinery

and equipment lease commitments.

Future minimum amounts to be paid for endorsement contracts and supplier purchase commitments at 31 December 2013 are

as follows:

Year ending 31 December
(Amounts in thousands of Euro)

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
Subsequent years

Total

Endorsement Supply Other
contracts commitments commitments

12.007 24.870 10.131
8.087 12.262 5.358

5.689 7.827 1.243

3.437 7.971 106

236 8.147 —

372 12,395 —

29.827 73.473 16.838
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Guarantces

The United States Shoe Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary within the Group, has guaranteed the lease payments for five
stores i the United Kingdom. These lease agreements have varying termination dates through 30 June 2017. At
31 December 2013, the Group’s maximum liability amounted to [uro 1,7 million (liuro 2,6 million at 31 December 2012).

A wholly-owned (.8, subsidiary guaranteed future minimum lease payments for lease agreements on certain stores. The lease
agreements were signed directly by the franchisces as part of certain franchising agreements. Total minimum guaranteed
payments under this guarantee were Furo 1,1 million (USD 1,5 million) at 31 December 2013 (Huro 1,0 million at 31 December
2012). The commitments provided for by the guarantee arise if the franchisce cannot honor its financial commitments under
the lease agreements. A liability has been acerued using an expected present value calculation. Such amouat is immaterial to the
consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2013 and 2012.

Litigation
French Competition Authority Investigation

Our I'rench subsidiary Luxottica Irance S.ALS., together with other major competitors in the Irench eyewear industry, has been
the subject of an anti-competition investigation conducted by the I'rench Competition Authority relating to pricing practices in
such industry. “The investigation is ongoing and, to date, no formal action has yet been taken by the Ifrench Competition
Authority. As a consequence, it is not possible to estimate or provide a range of potential liability that may be involved in this
matter. The outcome of any such action, which the Group intends to vigorously defend, is inherently uncertain, and there can
be no assurance that such action, if adversely determined, will not have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

Other proceedings

‘I'he Company and its subsidiaries are defendanrs in vardous other lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of business. It is the
opinion of the management of the Company that it has meritorious defenses against all such outstanding claims, which the
Company will vigorously pursuc, and that the outcome of such claims, individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Credit lincs

As of 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group had unused committed short-teem lines of credit of approximately Huro 1.126,6
million and Furo 1.145,4 million, respectively.

The subsidiary Luxottica S.r.l. maintains lines of credit with primary banks for an aggregate maximum credit of Iluro 1.242,6

million (of which curo 500 million are committed lincs).

32. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

On 14 September 2004, Luxottica announced that its principal sharcholder, 1.conardo el Veechio, had allocated 2,11% of
Group shares, equal to 9,6 million shares held by him through the company lLa Leonardo IMinanziaria S.el. - now owned
through Delfin S.a r.l. - a holding company owned by the 1Del Veechio family, to a stock options plan to be granted to the top
management of the Company. ‘The options became excercisable on 30 June 2006, when certain financial targets were met, and
consequently the holders of the stock options may exercise them beginning on that date until their expiration in 2014, During
2013, 3.100 thousand options (3.900 thousand in 2012) from this grant were exercised. As of 31 December 2013, 330 thousand
options were outstanding.
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Share based payment approved by Luxottica Group Spa (Luxottica)

Beginning in April 1998, certain officers and other key employees of the Company and its subsidiaries were pranted stock
options of Luxottica Group S.p.A. under the Company’s stock option plans (the “plans™). In order to strengthen the loyalty of
some key employees—with respect to individual targets, and in order to enhance the overall capitalization of the Company—
the Company’s stockholders meetings approved three stock capital increases on 10 March 1998, Scptember 20, 2001 and
June 14, 2006, respectively, through the issuance of new common shares to be offered for subscription to employees. On the
basis of these stock capital increases, the authorized share capital was equal to Tiuro 29.457.295,98. These options become
exercisable at the end of a three-year vesting period. Certatn options may contain accelerated vesting terms if there is a change
in ownership (as defined in the plans).

The stockholders’ mecting has delegated the Board of Directors to effectively execute, in one or more installments, the stock
capital increases and to grant options to ecmployees. ‘The Board can also:

- establish the terms and conditions for the underwriting of the new sharces;
- request the full payment of the shares at the time of their underwriting;
- identify the employees to grant the options based on appropriate criteria; and

- regulate the effect of the termination of the employment relationships with the Company or its subsidiarics and the
cffects of the employce death on the options granted by specific provision included in the agreements entered into with the
employees.

Upon exccution of the proxy received from the Stockholders’ meceting, the Board of Directors has granted a total of 55.909.800
options of which, as of 31 December 2013, 27.060.673 have been exercised.

In total, the Board of Directors approved the following stock option plans:

Plan Granted Exercised
1998 Ordinary Plan 3.380.400 2.716.600
1999 Ordinary Plan 3.679.200 3.036.800
2000 Ordinary Plan 2.142.200 1.852.533
2001 Ordinary Plan 2.079.300 1.849.000
2002 Ordinary Plan 2.348.400 2.059.000
2003 Ordinary Plan 2.397.300 2.199.300
2004 Oxrdinary Plan 2.035.500 1.988.000
2005 Oxdinary Plan 1.512.000 1.305.000
2006 Ordinary Plan (*) 1.725.000 70.000
2007 Ordinary Plan (*) 1.745.000 15.000
2008 Ordinary Plan 2.020.500 1.405.300
2009 Ordinary Plan 1.050.000 609.500
2009 Ordinary Plan: reassignment of options granted under the 2006 and 2007 ordinary plans

to non-US beneficiarics 2.060.000 1.416.500
2009 Oxdinary Plan: reassignment of options granted under the 2006 and 2007 ordinary plans

to US beneficiarics 825.000 559.500
2001 Performance Plan 1.170.000 -
2004 Performance Plan 1.000.000 1.000.000
2006 Performance Plan - US beneficiaries (*) 3.500.000 -
2006 Performance Plan - non-US beneficiardes (*) 9.500.000 1.000.000
2009 Performance Plan: reassignment of options granted under the 2006 performance plans to

non-US domiciled beneficiaries 4.250.000 1.800.000
2009 Performance Plan: reassignment of options granted under the 2006 performance plans to

US domiciled beneficiaries 1.450.000 1.200.000
2010 Ordinary Plan 1.924.500 873.340
2011 Ordinary Plan 2.039.000 5.000
2012 Ordinary Plan 2.076.500 -
Total 55.909.800 27.060.673
*) The plan was reassigned in 2009.
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On 13 May 2008, a Performance Shares Plan for senior managers within the Company as identified by the Board of Directors
(the “Board”) of the Company (the “2008 PSP”) was adopted. The beneficiaries of the 2008 PSP are granted the right to receive
ordinary shares, without consideration, if certain financial targets set by the Board are achieved over a specified three-year
period. The 2008 PSP, which cxpired in 2013, had a term of five years, during which time the Board authorized the issuance of
five grants to the 2008 PSP beneficiarics.

Pursuant to the PSP plan adopted in 2008, on April 28, 2011, the Board granted certain of our key employees 665.000 rights to
receive ordinary shares (“PSP 2011”), which can be increased by 15% up to a maximum of 764.750 units, if certain consolidated
cumulative earnings per share targets are achieved over the three-year period from 2011 through 2013. Management believes
that Group will reach 90% of the target. As of 31 December 2013 120,750 units granted had been forfeited.

Pursuant to the PSP plan adopted in 2008, on 7 May 2012, the Board granted certain of our key employees 601.000 rights to
receive ordinary shares (“PSP 2012”), which may be increased by 20% up to a maximum of 721.200 units, if certain
consolidated cumulative earning per share targets are achicved over the three-year perdod from 2012 through 2014.
Management expects that the target will be met. As of 31 December 2013, 67.200 unites granted had been forfeited.

On 29 April 2013, a Performance Shares Plan for senior managers within the Company as identified by the Board (the “2013
PSP”) was adopted. The beneficiaries of the 2013 PSP are granted the right to receive ordinary shares, without consideration, if
certain financial targets set by the Board are achieved over a specified three-year period.

On the same date, the Board granted cettain of our key employees 1.067.900 rights to receive ordinary shares which may be
increased by 20% up to 2 maximum of 1.281.480 units, if certain consolidated cumulative earning per share targets are achieved
over the three-year period from 2013 through 2015. Management expects that the target will be met. As of 31 December 2013,
none of the 22.440 units granted had been forfeited.

The information requited by TFRS 2 on stock option plans is reported below.

The fair value of the stock options was estimated on the grant date using the binomial model and following weighted average
assumptions:

PSP 2013
Share price at the grant date (in Euro) 40,82
Expected option life 3 years
Dividend yield 1,92%

The fair value of the units granted under the 2013 PSP was [iuro 38,56 per unit.
Movements reported in the varous stock option plans in 2013 are reported below
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N° of options

N° of options

Exercise outstanding as of Granted Forfeited Exercised Expired outstanding as of
price Currency 31 December 2012 options oplions options oplions 31 December 2013

2004 Ordinary Plan 13.79 Euro 21,300 — — (21,300) — —
2005 Ordinary Plan 16 89 Euro 225 000 — —_ (198.000) —_ 27.000
2006 Performance Plan B 2099 Euro 1.100.000 — — (1.100 000) —
2007 Ordtnury Plan 24.03 Euro 15.000 — — (10.000) — 5.000
2008 Ordinary Plan 18 08 Euro 608 470 —_ —_ (344.770) — 263 700
2009 Ordinary plan for citizens

not resident in the U.S. 1345 Euro 136 500 — — (87.000) —_ 49.500
2009 Ordinary plan for citizens

resident in the U S, 14.99 Euro 236 000 — — (105.000) — 131.000
2009 Plan—reassignment of

2006/2007 plans for citizens

not resident in the U.S 1345 Euro 792 566 — — (369 066) — 423.500
2009 Plan—reassignment of

2006/2007plans for citizens

resident in the U.S 15.03 Eura 212 000 —_ — (131.500) —_ 80.500
2009 Plan—reassignment of

STR 2006 plens for citizens

not resident in the U.S. 13.45 Euro 3.500.000 — — (1050.000) — 2.450.000
2009 Plan—reassignment of

STR 2006 plans for citizens

resident in the U.S. 1511 Euro 187 500 — —_ (37.500) —_ 150.000
2010 Ordinary Plan—for

citizens not resident in the

us 2072 Ewo 1121 500 - (43.000) (645.500) - 433 000
2010 Ordinary Plan—for

citizens resident in the U.S 2123 Euro 515500 — (18,000) (222.840) — 274.660
2011 Ordinary Plan—tor

cilizens not resident in the

us 22,62 Euro 1.277.000 —_ (57.000) — —_ 1.220.000
2011 Ordinary Plan—for

citizens resident in the U.S 2318 Euro 598 500 — (81.000) — — 517.500
2012 Ordinary Plan—for

citizens not resident in the

uUs 2832 Euro 1.389 000 — (27 000) — —_ 1362 000
2012 Ordinary Plan—for

citizens resident in the U S. 26.94 Euro 657 000 — (71.000) — — 586.000
Total 12.592.836 — _ (297.000) (4.322.476) — 7.973.360

Options cxercisable on 31 December 2013 are summarized in the following table:

Number of options
exercisable as of
31 December 2013

2005 Plan 27.000
2007 Plan 5.000
2008 Plan 263.700
2009 Ordinary plan—for citizens not resident in the U.S. 49.500
2009 Ordinary plan—for citizens resident in the U.S. 131.000
2009 Plan—reassignment of 2006/2007 plans for citizens not resident in the U.S. 423.500
2009 Plan—reassignment of 2006/2007 plans for citizens resident in the U.S. 80.500
2009 Plan—reassignment of 2006 plans for citizens not resident in the U.S. 2.450.000
2009 Plan—reassignment of 2006 plans for citizens resident in the U.S. 150.000
2010 Plan—for citizens not resident in the U.S. 433.000
2010 Plan—for citizens resident in the U.S. 274.660
Total 4.287.860
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The remaining contractual life of plans in effect on 31 December 2013 is highlighted in the following table:

Remaining contractual
life in years

2005 Ordinary Plan 0,08
2006 Ordinary Plan 1,08
2006 Performance Plan B 1,57
2007 Otrdinary Plan 2,18
2008 Ordinary Plan 3,20
2009 Ordinary plan for citizens not resident in the U.S. 4,35
2009 Ordinary plan for citizens resident in the U.S, 4,35
2009 Plan—reassignment of 2006/2007 plans for citizens resident in the U.S. 3,25
2009 Plan—reassignment of 2006/2007 plans for citizens not resident in the U.S. 4,35
2009 Plan—reassignment of 2006 plans for citizens not resident in the U.S. 4,35
2009 Plan—rcassignment of 2006 plans for citizens resident in the U.S. 4,45
2010 Ordinary Plan—for citizens not resident in the U.S. 5,33
2010 Ordinary Plan—for citizens resident in the U.S. 5,33
2011 Ordinary Plan—for citizens not resident in the U.S. 6,33
2011 Ordinary Plan—for citizcns resident in the U.S, 6,33
2012 Ordinary Plan—for citizens not resident in the U.S. 7,35
2012 Ordinary Plan—for citizens resident in the U.S. 7,35

With regards to the options exercised during the course of 2013, the weighted average share price of the shares in 2013 was
equal to Furo 38,27.

The Group has recorded an expense for the ordinaty stock option plans of Euro 9,5 million and Euro 10,8 million in 2013 and
2012, respectively. For the extraordinary plan as well as for the 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013 PSPs , the Group recorded an
expense of Huro 18,7 million and Furo 30,5 million in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The stock plans outstanding as of 31 December 2013 are conditional upon satisfying the service conditions. The PSP plans are
conditional upon satisfying service as well as performance conditions.

33. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTION

Licensing Agreements

The Group executed an exclusive worldwide license for the production and distribution of Brooks Brothers brand eyewear. The
brand is held by Brooks Brothers Group, Inc. (“BBG”), which is owned and controlled by a director of the Company, Claudio
Del Vecchio. The license expires on 31 December 2014 but is renewable until 31 December 2019. Royalties paid under this
agreement to BBG were Euro 0,8 million in 2013 and Euro 0,7 million in 2012.

Service Revenues
During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 and U.S. Holdings performed consulting and advisory services relating to
risk management and insurance for Brooks Brothers Group, Inc. Amounts received for the services provided for those years

were Furo 0,1 million in each year. Management believes that the compensation received for these services was fair to the
Company.
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Incentive Stock Option Plans

On 14 September 2004, the Company announced that its primary stockholder, Leonardo Del Vecchio, had allocated 2.11% of
the shares of the Company—equal to 9,6 million shates, owned by him through the company La Leonardo Finanziaria S.t.l. and
currently owned through Delfin S r.l, a financial company owned by the Del Vecchio family, to a stock option plan for the
senior management of the Company. The options became exercisable on 30 June 2006 following the meeting of certain
cconomic objectives and, as such, the holders of these options became entitled to exercise such options beginning on that date
until their termination in 2014. During 2013, 3,1 million options (3,9 million in 2012) from this grant were exercised. As of 31
December 2013, 0,3 million options were outstanding.

Total remuneration due to key managers amounted to approximately Euro 24,4 million and Euro 43,2 million in 2013 and 2012,
respectively

Related Parties

A summaty of related patty transactions as of 31 December 2013 and 2012, is provided below.

Related parties Consolidated Statement Consolidated Statement
As of 31 December 2013 of Income of Financial Position
{Amounts in thousands of Fura) Revenues Costs Assets Liabilities
Brooks Brothers Group, Inc. 9.553 L.aon (i 254
Type 20 Sl 82 3401

Cav. Leonardo Del Vecchio 2.294 78.667 401.225
Eyebiz Laboratories Pty Limited 1.667 45.814 6.922 9.415
Salmoiraghi & Vigand 13.812 53.245

Others 597 1.115 2.943 426
Total 28.005 47.929 145.246 411.320
Related parties Consolidated Statement Consolidated Statement
As of 31 December 2012 of Income of Financial Position
(Amounts in thousands of Buro) Revenues Costs Assets Liabilities
Brooks Brothers Group, Inc. = 802 13 40
Type 20 511 84 - 4.243 :
Cav. Leonardo Del Vecchio 1.888 - 51.486 251.225
Multiopticas Group - - -
Eyebiz Laboratories Pty Limited 1.194 44.862 7.898 9.086
Others 665 764 1.234 72
Total 3.831 46,428 64.874 260.423

"Total remuneration due to key managers amounted to approximately Euro 24,4 million and Furo 43,2 million in 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

34. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivatives are classified as current or non-current assets and liabilities. The fair value of derivatives is classified as a long-term
asset ot liability for the portion of cash flows expiting after 12 months, and as a current assct or liability for the portion expiring
within 12 months.
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The table below shows the asscts and liabilities related to derivative contracts in effect as of 31 December 2013 and 2012
(amounts in thousands of Euro):

2013 2012

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilitics
Interest rate swaps-cash flow hedge (438)
Forward contracts-cash flow hedge 6.039 (1.471) 6.048 (GSI)
Total 6.039 (1.471) 6.048 (1.119)
of which:
Non-current portion
Interest rate swaps-cash flow hedge
Forwatd contracts-cash flow hedge
"l'otal
Current portion 6.039 (1.471) 6.048 (1.119)

The table below shows movements in the stockholders’ equity due to the reserve for cash flow hedges (amounts in thousands
of Kuro):

Balance as of 1 January 2012 (14.018)
IFair value adjustment of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges 3.163
Tax cffect on fair value adjustment of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges (2.512)
Amounts reclassified to the consolidated statement of income 17.044
Tax effect on amounts reclassified to the consolidated statement of income (3.995)
Balance as of 31 December 2012 318

Tfair value adjustment of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges (129)
Tax effcct on fair value adjustment of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges 35
Amounts reclassified to the consolidated statement of income 567
Tax cffect on amounts reclassified to the consolidated statcment of income (155)

Balance as of 31 December 2013 =

Interest rate swaps

As of 31 Decetmber 2013 interest rate swap instruments have all expired.

35. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

January

On 20 January 2014 the Group received an upgrade of its long-term credit rating from BBB+ to A- by Standard & Poor’s. The
rating A- also applies to our EMTN program and all our outstanding notes, including the Furobonds due November 10, 2015
and 19 March 2019.

On 31 January 2014 the Group completed the acquisition of Glasses.com from Well Point Inc.. The purchase price was
approximately USID 40 million.

February

On 10 February 2014, the Group completed an offering in Furope to institutional investors of Furo 500 million of senior
unsecured guaranteed notes due 10 February 2024, Interest on the notes accrues at 2,625% per annum (ISIN X§1030851791).
The bond reccived a rating A-.

July
On July, Delfin S.a rl. and Aterno S.4 r.]. extended the credit lines for an additional year until 30 June 2014.

Delfin S.a r.1. has a credit line for Euro 1,2 billion and Aterno S.4 r.l. for Euro 0,3 billion.
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November

On 12 November 2014 Mr. Del Vecchio subscribed to the capital increase of the Company Delfin 8.4 rl. for the amount of
Luro 162.030.050.

During the subsequent months of 2014 the Company has continued its activity of acquiring and selling participations and other
securities. Moreover, the company has received dividends from its financial fixed assets and paid dividends to its Sole
Shareholder.

36. DATE OF ISSUANCE

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Managers on Luxembourg on 22 January 2015.

The Managers
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SCHEDULE 1

List of Significant Investments Owned by the Parent Company

The table shows the cquity investments owned by the parent company that exceed 10% of the share capital in listed and

unlisted corporations.

SUBSIDIARY OR ASSOCIATE |OWNER Registered office Pesrcentage Share capital

LUXOTTICA GROUP S.P.A. DELFIN Sarl Milan - Piazzale Luigi 61,902% 28.653.640
Cadorna 3

REDFERN S. r.l. DILFIN Sa rl. Luxembourg 100% 12.500

ATERNO Sar.l REDFERN S.a rl. Luxembourg 100% 12.500

DFR HOLDING S.arl DELFIN Sar.l Luxembourg 100% 1.000.000

DFR INVESTMENT S8.i r.l. DFR HOLDING S.4 r.l. |[Luxembourg 100% 900.000

FONCIERE DES REGIONES ATERNO S.4 ). / DFR |France 27,63% 188.991.333

INVESTMENT S.4 r.l.

PARTIMMO S.R.I. DELFIN Sl Belluno (Ttaly) 100% 100.000

SCI LA LEONINA PARTIMMO S.R.L. Beaulieu sur Mer (France) 99% 12.195.921,38

PORTO SAN ROCCO S.P.A. DELFIN S.ar.l. Muggia (TS) - Strada del 98,19% 5.000.000
lazzaretto n. 2

SCHEMA PARTECIPATION DELFIN S. r.l. Germany 100% 50.000

GmbH - in liquidation

DELFIN FINANCE S.A. DELFIN S.ar.l. Luxembourg 100% 1.000.000
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SCHEDULE 2

List of Significant Investments Owned by the subsidiary Luxottica Group S.p.A.

The table shows the cquity investments owned by Luxottica Group S.p.A. that exceed 10% of the share capital in listed and

unlisted corporations and limited liability companies.

) o, i
Subsidiaries Registered office Holding Owne/‘;'ship Ao(jv';,oeudpl Capital Stock cag:::;::;‘:k

1242 PRODUCTIONS INC TUMWATER-WASHINGTON OAKLEY INC 100,00 100.00 100.000,00 | USD
SUNGLASS HUT

AIR SUN MASCON-OHIO TRADING LLC 70,00 70.00 1,00 | USD

ALAIN MIKLI LUXOTTICA

INTERNATIONAL SAS PARIS GROUP SPA 100,00 100,00 4.459.786,64 | EUR
ALAIN MIKLI

ALAIN MIKLI SCHWEIZ AM INTERNATIONAL

AG LUPFIG SAS 100,00 100,00 100.000,00 | CHF
LUXOTTICA US

ARNETTE OPTIC ILLUSIONS HOLDINGS

INC IRVINE-CALIFORNIA CORP 100,00 100,00 1,00 | USD
ALAIN MIKLI

AUTANT POUR VOIR QUE INTERNATIONAL

POUR ETRE' VUES SARL PARIS SAS 100,00 100,00 15.245,00 | EUR
SPV ZETA

BEIJING SI MING DE Optical Trading

TRADING CO LTD * BELJING (Beijing) Co Ltd 100.00 100,00 30.000,00 | CNR
LUXOTTICA
RETAIL

BUDGET EYEWEAR AUSTRALIA PTY

AUSTRALIA PTY LTD MACQUARIE PARK-NSW LTD 100.00 100.00 341,762,00 | AUD
BUDGET
EYEWEAR

BUDGET SPECS AUSTRALIA PTY

(FRANCHISING) PTY LTD MACQUARIE PARK-NSW LTD 100,00 100,00 2,00 | AUD
THE UNITED

CENTRE PROFESSIONNEL STATES SHOE

DE VISION USSC INC MISSISSAUGA-ONTARIO CORPORATION 100,00 100,00 1,00 | CAD

COLE VISION SERVICES EYEMED VISION

INC DOVER-DELAWARE CARE LLC 100,00 100,00 10,00 | USD

COLLEZIONE LUXOTTICA

RATHSCHULER SRL AGORDO GROUP SPA 100,00 100,00 10,000,00 | EUR

DAVID CLULOW BRIGHTON LUXOTTICA

LIMITED {**) LONDON RETAIL UK LTD 50,00 50,00 2,00 | GBP

DAVID CLULOW COBHAM LUXOTTICA

LIMITED (**) LONDON RETAIL UK LTD 50,00 50,00 2,00 | GBP

DAVID CLULOW CROUCH LUXOTTICA

END LIMITED {* LONDON RETAIL UK LTD 50.00 50.00 2,00 | GBP

DAVID CLULOW LOUGHTON LUXOTTICA

LIMITED (**) LONDON RETAIL UK LTD 50.00 50.00 2,00 | GBP

DAVID CLULOW MARLOW LUXOTTICA

LIMITED (**) LONDON RETAIL UK LTD 50,00 50,00 2.00 | GBP

DAVID CLULOW NEWBURY LUXOTTICA

LIMITED {**) LONDON RETAIL UK LTD 50,00 50.00 2,00 | GBP

DAVID CLULOW OXFORD LUXOTTICA

LIMITED (**) LONDON RETAIL UKLTD 50,00 50,00 2,00 | GBP

DAVID CLULOW RICHMOND LUXOTTICA

LIMITED LONDON RETAIL UKLTD 100,00 100,00 2,00 | GBP

DAVID CLULOW LUXOTTICA

WIMBLEDON LIMITED (**) LONDON RETAIL UKLTD 50, 50,00 2,00 | GBP
LUXOTTICA
RETAIL NORTH

DEVLYN OPTICAL LLC (** HOUSTON AMERICA INC 30,00 30,00 100,00 | USD
LUXOTTICA

ENTERPRISES OF RETAIL NORTH

LENSCRAFTERS LLC MARION-OHIO AMERICA INC 100,00 100.00 1.000.00 | USD

EYE SAFETY SYSTEMS INC | DOVER-DELAWARE OAKLEY INC 100.00 100,00 1,00 | USD
LUXOTTICA
RETAIL

EYEBIZ LABORATORIES AUSTRALIA PTY

PTY LIMITED (**) MACQUARIE PARK-NSW LTD 30.00 30.00 10.000.005,00 | AUD
LUXOTTICA US

EYEMED INSURANCE HOLDINGS

COMPANY PHOENIX-ARIZONA CORP 100,00 100,00 250.000,00 | USD

Delfin S.a r.l. - Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2013

Page 70 of 86




Document émis électroniquement

0, 0 H
Subsidiaries Registered office Holding own e’“rship "o‘i’;’:d’” Capital Stock c"cp‘:‘:::e:;;c"

THE UNITED

EYEMED VISION CARE HMO STATES SHOE

OF TEXAS INC HOUSTON-TEXAS CORPORATION 100,00 100,00 1.000,00 | USD

EYEMED VISION CARE IPA EYEMED VISION

LLC NEW YORK-NEW YORK CARE LLC 100,00 100,00 1,00 | USD
LUXOTTICA
RETAIL NORTH

EYEMED VISION CARE LLC | DOVER-DELAWARE AMERICA INC 100,00 100,00 1,00 | USD

EYEMED/ LCA - VISION LLC EYEMED VISION

9 RENO-NEVADA CARE LLC 50,00 50,00 2.00 | USD
THE UNITED

EYEXAM OF CALIFORNIA STATES SHOE

INC IRVINE-CALIFORNIA CORPORATION 100,00 100,00 10,00 | USD

FIRST AMERICAN EYEMED VISION

ADMINISTRATORS INC PHOENIX-ARIZONA CARELLC 100,00 100,00 1,000,00 | USD

GIBE AND BEEMAN PTY OPSM GROUP

LIMITED MACQUARIE PARK-NSW PTY LIMITED 100,00 100,00 399.219,00 | AUD
LUXOTTICA

GUANGZHOU MING LONG (CHINA)

OPTICAL TECHNOLOGY CO INVESTMENT

LTD GUANGZHOU CITY COLTD 100,00 100,00 | 360.500.000,00 | CNR

JUST SPECTACLES

{FRANCHISOR) PTY LTD | MACQUARIE PARK-NSW OF PTY LTD 100,00 100,00 200,00 | AUD

JUST SPECTACLES PTY

LTD MACQUARIE PARK -NSW | OF PTY LTD 100,00 100,00 2.000,00 | AUD
LUXQTTICA
RETAIL

LAUBMAN AND PANK PTY AUSTRALIA PTY

LTD MACQUARIE PARK-NSW LTD 100,00 100,00 2.370.448,00 | AUD
THE UNITED

LENSCRAFTERS STATES SHOE

INTERNATIONAL INC MARION-OHIO CORPORATION 100,00 100,00 500,00 | USD
LUXOTTICA US
HOLDINGS

LEONARDO OPTICAL CORP | CLEVELAND-OHIO CORP 100.00 100,00 100,00 | USD
LUXOTTICA
RETAIL NORTH

LRE LLC MARION-OHIO AMERICA INC 100,00 100,00 1,00 | USD
ALAIN MIKLI
(NTERNATIONAL

LUNETTES BERLIN GMBH BERLIN SAS 100,00 100,00 25.000,00 | EUR
ALAIN MIKL]

LUNETTES HONG KONG (NTERNATIONAL

LIMITED HONG KONG SAS 100,00 100,00 10.000,00 | HkD
ALAIN MIKLI
INTERNATIONAL

LUNETTES TAIPEI LTD TAIPEI SAS 100,00 100,00 5,000,000,00 | TWD
LUXOTTICA
TRADING AND

LUXOTTICA (CHINA) FINANCE

INVESTMENT CO LTD SHANGHAI LIMITED 100,00 100,00 |  934.458.960,05 | CNR

LUXOTTICA (SHANGHAI) LUXOTTICA

TRADING COLTD SHANGHAI HOLLAND BV 100,00 100,00 1.000.000.00 | EUR

LUXOTTICA LUXOTTICA

(SWITZERLAND) AG ZURIGO GROUP SPA 100,00 100,00 100.000,00 | CHF

LUXOTTICA ARGENTINA TUXOTTICA

SRL BUENOS AIRES GROUP SPA 94,00 100,00 700.000,00 | ARS

LUXOTTICA ARGENTINA

SRL BUENOS AIRES LUXOTTICA SRL 6,00 100,00 700.000,00 | ARS

LUXOTTICA AUSTRALIA OPSM GROUP

PTY LTD MACQUARIE PARK-NSW PTY LIMITED 100,00 100,00 1.715.000,00 | AUD

LUXOTTICA BELGIUM NV LUXOTTICA

BERCHEM GROUP SPA 99,00 100,00 62.000,00 | EUR

[UXOTTICA BELGIUMNV | BERCHEM LUXOTTICA SRL 1.00 100,00 62,000,00 | EUR

TUXOTTICA BRASIL

PRODUTOS OTICOS E OAKLEY

ESPORTIVOS LTDA SANPAOLO CANADA ING 42,01 100,00 |  588.457.587,00 | BRL

LUXOTTICA BRASIL

PRODUTOS OTICOS E LUXOTTICA

ESPORTIVOS LTDA SAN PAOLO GROUP SPA 57.99 100.00 HhAa8.457,587 00 | BRL

LUXOTTICA BRASIL

PRODUTOS OTICOS E

ESPORTIVOS LTDA SAN PAOLO LUXOTTICA SRL 0.00 100,00 |  588.457.587.00 | BRL
CUXOTTICA

LUXOTTICA CANADA ING | TORONTO-ONTARIO GROUP SPA 100,00 100.00 200,00 | CAD

CUXOTTICA CENTRAL LUXOTTICA

EUROPE KFT BUDAPEST HOLLAND BV 100,00 100,00 3,000.000.00 | HUF
LUXOTTICA

LUXOTTICA COMMERCIAL TRADING AND

SERVICE (DONGGUAN) CO | DONGGUAN CITY, FINANCE

LTD GUANGDONG LIMITED 100,00 100,00 3.000.000,00 | CNR
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0, 0, H
Subsidiaries Registered office Holding Own::'ship Aoa'::dpl Capital Stock Cag::?ler?‘t:;ck

LUXOTTICA
TRADING AND
FINANCE

LUXOTTICA EXTRA LIMITED | DUBLINO 2 LIMITED 100,00 100,00 1,00 | EUR

LUXOTTICA FASHION LUXOTTICA

BRILLEN VERTRIEBS GMBH | GRASBRUNN GROUP SPA 100,00 100,00 230,081,35 | EUR

LUXOTTICA FRAMES LUXOTTICA

SERVICE SA DE CV CITTA' DEL MESSICO GROUP SPA 0.02 100,00 2.350.000,00 | MXN

LUXOTTICA FRAMES LUXOTTICA

SERVICE SA DE CV MEXICO SA DE

CITTA' DEL MESSICO Ccv 99,98 100,00 2.350.000,00 | MXN

LUXOTTICA

LUXOTTICA FRANCE SAS VALBONNE GROUP SPA 100,00 100.00 534.000,00 | EUR
LUXOTTICA
RETAIL

LUXOTTICA FRANCHISING AUSTRALIA PTY

AUSTRALIA PTY LIMITED MACQUARIE PARK-NSW LTD 100,00 100,00 2,00 | AUD
LUXOTTICA
NORTH
AMERICA

LUXOTTICA FRANCHISING DISTRIBUTION

CANADA INC MISSISSAUGA-ONTARIO LLC 100,00 100,00 1.000,00 | CAD

LUXOTTICA GOZLUK

ENDUSTRI VE TICARET LUXOTTICA

ANONIM SIRKETI CIGLI-IZMIR HOLLAND BV 0,00 100,00 10.390.459,89 | LTL

LUXOTTICA GOZLUK

ENDUSTRI VE TICARET LUXOTTICA

ANONIM SIRKETI CIGLI-IZMIR LEASING SRL 0,00 100,00 10.390.459,89 | LTL

LUXOTTICA GOZLUK

ENDUSTRI VE TICARET

ANONIM SIRKETI CIGLI-IZMIR LUXOTTICA SRL 0,00 100,00 10.390.459,80 | LTL

LUXOTTICA GOZLUK

ENDUSTRI VE TICARET LUXOTTICA

ANONIM SIRKET/ CIGLI-IZMIR GROUP SPA 64,84 100,00 10.390.459,89 | LTL

LUXOTTICA GOZLUK SUNGLASS HUT

ENDUSTRI VE TICARET NETHERLANDS

ANONIM SIRKETI CIGLI-IZMIR BV 35,16 100,00 10,390.459.89 | LTL
LUXOTTICA

LUXOTTICA HELLAS AE PALLINI GROUP SPA 70,00 70,00 1.752,900,00 | EUR
LUXOTTICA

LUXOTTICA HOLLAND BV AMSTERDAM GROUP SPA 100,00 100,00 45.000,00 | EUR
LUXOTTICA
TRADING AND

LUXOTTICA HONG KONG FINANCE

WHQLESALE LIMITED HONG KONG-HONG KONG LIMITED 100,00 100,00 10.000.000,00 | HKD
LUXOTTICA

LUXQTTICA IRERICA SA BARCELI ONA GROUP SPA 100,00 100,00 1.382.901,00 | EUR

LUXOTTICA INDIA

EYEWEAR PRIVATE LUXOTTICA

LIMITED GURGAON-HARYANA LEASING SRL 0,00 100,00 787.400.00 | RUP

LUXOTTICA INDIA

EYEWEAR PRIVATE LUXOTTICA

LIMITED GURGAON-HARYANA HOLLAND BV 100.00 100,00 787.400,00 | RUP
LUXOTTICA

LUXOTTICA ITALIA SRL AGORDO GROUP SPA 100,00 100,00 5.000.000.00 | EUR
LUXOTTICA

LUXOTTICA KOREA LTD SEQUL GROUP SPA 100,00 100,00 120.000.000,00 | KRW
LUXOTTICA

LUXOTTICA LEASING SRL AGORDO GROUP SPA 100,00 100.00 36.000.000.00 | EUR

LUXOTTICA MEXICO SA DE LUXOTTICA

C\ CITTA' DEL MESSICO GROUP SPA 86,00 100,00 342.000,000,00 | MXN

LUXOTTICA MEXICO SA DE

(%Y CITTA' DEL MESSICO LUXOTTICA SRL 4.00 100,00 342.000.000,00 | MXN

LUXOTTICA MIDDLE EAST LUXOTTICA

FZE DUBAI GROUP SPA 100,00 100,00 1.000,000.00 | AED

LUXOTTICA NEDERLAND LUXOTTICA

BV HEEMSTEDE GROUP SPA 51,00 51,00 453.780,22 EUR
LUXOTTICA

LUXOTTICA NORDIC AB STOCKHOLM GROUP SPA 100.00 100,00 250.000,00 | SEK
LUXOTTICA

LUXQTTICA NORGE AS KONGSBERG GROUP SPA 100,00 100,00 100.000.00 | NOK

LUXOTTICA NORTH

AMERICA DISTRIBUTION LUXOTTICA USA

LLC DOVER-DELAWARE LLC 100.00 100.00 1,00 | USD
LUXOTTICA

LUXQTTICA OPTICS LTD TEL AVIV GROUP SPA 100,00 100,00 43,50 | ILS

LUXOTTICA POLAND SP LUXOTTICA

200 CRACOVIA GROUP SPA 25,00 100,00 390.000,00 | PLN

LUXOTTICA POLAND SP LUXOTTICA

200 CRACOVIA HOLLAND BV 75,00 100,00 390.000,00 | PLN
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Subsidiaries Registered office Holding Owneﬁ'ship /"O?Vr::dpl Capital Stock Ca:::"a:;;(:k
LUXOTTICA PORTUGAL- LUXOTTICA
COMERCIQ DE OPTICA SA | LISBONA GROUP SPA 99.79 100,00 700.000,00 | EUR
LUXOTTICA PORTUGAL-
COMERCIO DE OPTICA SA [ LISBONA LUXOTTICA SRL 0.21 100,00 700.000,00 | EUR
LUXOTTICA RETAIL OPSM GROUP
AUSTRALIA PTY LTD MACQUARIE PARK-NSW PTY LIMITED 100,00 100,00 307.796,00 | AUD ]
THE UNITED
LUXOTTICA RETAIL STATES SHOE
CANADA INC TORONTO-ONTARIO CORPORATION 43,82 100,00 12.671,00 | CAD
LUXOTTICA
LUXOTTICA RETAIL RETAIL NORTH
CANADA INC TORONTO-ONTARIO AMERICA INC 3.27 100,00 12.671.00 | CAD
LENSCRAFTERS
LUXOTTICA RETAIL INTERNATIONAL
CANADA INC TORONTO-ONTARIO INC 52,01 100,00 12.671,00 | CAD
LUXOTTICA
LUXOTTICA RETAIL RETAIL
FRANCHISING AUSTRALIA AUSTRALIA PTY
PTY LIMITED MACQUARIE PARK-NSW LTD 100,00 100,00 2,00 | AUD
PROTECTOR
SAFETY
LUXOTTICA RETAIL HONG INDUSTRIES
KONG LIMITED HONG KONG-HONG KONG PTYLTD 100,00 100,00 149.127.000.00 | HKD
PROTECTOR
SAFETY
LUXOTTICA RETAIL NEW INDUSTRIES
ZEALAND LIMITED AUCKLAND PTYLTD 100,00 100,00 58.200.100,00 | NZD
THE UNITED
LUXOTTICA RETAIL NORTH STATES SHOE
AMERICA INC MARION-OHIO CORPORATION 100,00 100,00 1,00 | USD
ST ALBANS- SUNGLASS HUT
LUXOTTICA RETAIL UK LTD | HERTFORDSHIRE TRADING LL.C 0,86 100,00 24.410.765,00 | GBP
ST ALBANS- SUNGLASS HUT
LUXOTTICA RETAIL UK LTD | HERTFORDSHIRE OF FLORIDA INC 31,14 100,00 24,410.765,00 | GBP
ST ALBANS- LUXOTTICA
LUXOTTICA RETAIL UK LTD | HERTFORDSHIRE GROUP SPA 68,00 100,00 24.410.765,00 | GBP
SUNGLASS HUT
NETHERLANDS
LUXOTTICA RUS LL.C MOSCOW BV 99,00 100,00 123,000.000,00 | RUB
LUXOTTICA
LUXOTTICARUS LLC MOSCOW HOLLAND BV 1,00 100.00 123.000.000,00 | RUB
LUXOTTICA SOUTH AFRICA | CAPE TOWN - LUXOTTICA
PTYLTD OBSERVATORY GROUP SPA 100,00 100,00 2.200.02 | ZAR
LUXOTTICA SOUTH EAST LUXOTTICA
ASIA PTE LTD SINGAPORE HOLLAND BV 100,00 100,00 1.360.000.00 | SGD
LUXOTTICA SOUTH LUXOTTICA
EASTERN EURQPE LTD NOVIGRAD HOLLAND BV 100,00 100,00 1.000.000,00 | HRK
LUXOTTICA SOUTH
PACIFIC HOLDINGS PTY LUXOTTICA
LIMITED MACQUARIE PARK-NSW GROUP SPA 100,00 100,00 232.797.001,00 | AUD
LUXOTTICA
SOUTH PACIFIC
LUXOTTICA SOUTH HOLDINGS PTY
PACIFIC PTY LIMITED MACQUARIE PARK-NSW LIMITED 100,00 100,00 460,000,001,00 | AUD
LUXOTTICA
LUXOTTICA SRL AGORDO GROUP SPA 100.00 100,00 10.000.000.00 | EUR
LUXOTTICA US
LUXOTTICA SUN HOLDINGS
CORPORATION DOVER-DELAWARE CORP 100,00 100,00 1,00 | USD
LUXOTTICA TRADING AND LUXOTTICA
FINANCE LIMITED DUBLINO GROUP SPA 100,00 100,00 626,543.403.00 | EUR
LUXOTTICA TRISTAR
{DONGGUAN) OPTICAL CO LUXOTTICA
LTD DON GUAN CITY HOLLAND BV 100,00 100,00 96.000.000,00 | USD
S. ALBANS- LUXOTTICA
LUXOTTICA UK LTD HERTFORDSHIRE GROUP SPA 100,00 100,00 90.000,00 | GBP
LUXOTTICA US HOLDINGS LUXOTTICA
CORP DOVER-DELAWARE GROUP SPA 100,00 100.00 100.00 | USD
ARNETTE OPTIC
LUXOTTICA USALLC NEW YORK-NY ILLUSIONS INC 100,00 100,00 1,00 | USD
LUXOTTICA
VERTRIEBSGESELLSCHAFT LUXOTTICA
MBH VIENNA GROUP SPA 100,00 100.00 508.710.00 | EUR
LUXOTTICA WHOLESALE
{THAILAND) LTD BANKOK LUXOTTICA SRL 0,00 100,00 100,000,000,00 | THB
LUXOTTICA WHOLESALE LUXOTTICA
(THAILAND) LTD BANKOK GROUP SPA 100,00 100,00 100.000.000,00 | THB
LUXOTTICA WHOLESALE LUXOTTICA
(THAILAND) LTD BANKOK HOLLAND BV 0,00 100.00 100.000.000.00 | THB
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LUXOTTICA
NORTH
AMERICA
DISTRIBUTION

LVD SOURCING LLC DOVER-DELAWARE LLC 51,00 51,00 5.000,00 | USD
ALAIN MIKLI

MDD OPTIC DIFFUSION INTERNATIONAL

GMBH MUNICH SAS 100,00 100,00 25.000,00 | EUR
ALAIN MIKL]
INTERNATIONAL

MDE DIFUSION OPTIQUE SL | BARCELONA SAS 100,00 100,00 4.000,00 | EUR
ALAIN MIKLI

MDI DIFFUSIONE OTTICA INTERNATIONAL

SRL AGORDQ SAS 100,00 100,00 10.000.00 | EUR
ALAIN MIKLI

MIKLI (HONG KONG) INTERNATIONAL

LIMITED HONG KONG SAS 100,00 100,00 1.000.000,00 | HKD
ALAIN MIKLI
INTERNATIONAL

MIKLI ASIA LIMITED HONG KONG SAS 100,00 100,00 10.000,00 | HKD
MIKLI ASIA

MIKLI CHINA LTD SHANGHAI LIMITED 100,00 100,00 1.000.000,00 | CNR
ALAIN MIKLI

MIKLI DIFFUSION FRANCE INTERNATIONAL

SAS PARIS SAS 100,00 100,00 1.541,471,20 | EUR
ALAIN MIKLI
INTERNATIONAL

MIKLI JAPON KK TOKYO SAS 100,00 100,00 85.800.000,00 | JPY

MIKLI MANAGEMENT MIKLI ASIA

SERVICES LIMITED HONG KONG LIMITED 100,00 100,00 1.000.000,00 | HKD
MIKLI ASIA

MIKLI TAIWAN LTD TAIPEI LIMITED 100,00 100,00 5.000.000,00 | TWD
LUXOTTICA

MIRARI JAPAN CO LTD TOKYO GROUP SPA 15,83 100,00 473.700,000,00 | JPY
LUXOTTICA

MIRARI JAPAN CO LTD TOKYO HOLLAND BV 84,17 100,00 473.700.000,00 | JPY
ALAIN MIKLI
INTERNATIONAL

MKL MACAU LIMITED MACAU SAS 99.00 100,00 100.000,00 | MOP
LUXOTTICA

MKL MACAU LIMITED MACAU GROUP SPA 1,00 100,00 100.000,00 { MOP .
OLIVER

MY-OP (NY) LLC DOVER-DELAWARE PEOPLES INC 100,00 100,00 1,00 | USD

OAKLEY (SCHWEIZ) GMBH | ZURIGO OAKLEY INC 100,00 100,00 20.000,00 | CHF
OAKLEY SALES

OAKLEY AIR JV CHICAGO-ILLINOIS CORP 70,00 70,00 1,00 | USD

OAKLEY CANADA INC SAINT LAUREN-QUEBEC OAKLEY INC 100,00 100,00 10,107.907,00 | CAD

QAKLEY EDC INC TUMWATER-WASHINGTON OAKLEY INC 100,00 100,00 1.000.00 | USD
OAKLEY

OAKLEY EUROPE SNC ANNECY HOLDING SAS 100,00 100,00 25,157.390,20 | EUR

OAKLEY GMBH MONACO OAKLEY INC 100,00 100,00 25.000,00 | EUR

OAKLEY HOLDING SAS ANNECY OAKLEY INC 100,00 100,00 6.129.050.00 | EUR
LUXOTTICA
TRADING AND
FINANCE

OAKLEY ICON LIMITED DUBLIN 2 LIMITED 100,00 100,00 1,00 | EUR
LUXOTTICA US
HOLDINGS

OAKLEY INC TUMWATER-WASHINGTON | CORP 100,00 100,00 10,00 | USD

QAKLEY IRELAND OPTICAL

LIMITED DUBLIN 2 OAKLEY INC 100.00 100,00 225,000.00 | EUR

OAKLEY JAPAN KK TOKYO OAKLEY INC 100,00 100,00 10,000.000,00 | JPY

OAKLEY SALES CORP TUMWATER-WASHINGTON | OAKLEY INC 100,00 100,00 1.000,00 | USD
OAKLEY ICON

OAKLEY SCANDINAVIA AB STOCKHOLM LIMITED 100.00 100,00 100.000,00 | SEK

OAKLEY SOUTH PACIFIC OPSM GROUP

PTYLTD VICTORIA-MEIL BOURNE PTY LIMITED 100,00 100.00 12,00 | AUD
OAKLEY ICON

OAKLEY SPAIN SL BARCELLONA LIMITED 100,00 100,00 3.100,00 | EUR

ST ALBANS-

OAKLEY UK LTD HERTFORDSHIRE OAKLEY INC 100,00 100,00 1.000,00 | GBP
LUXOTTICA
RETAIL

MACQUARIE PARK-NEW AUSTRALIA PTY
OF PTY LTD SOUTH WALES LTD 100,00 100,00 35,785,000,00 | AUD
OLIVER PECPLES INC IRVINE-CALIFORNIA OAKLEY INC 100,00 100,00 1,00 | USD

Delfin S.a r.l. - Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2013

Page 74 of 86




Document émis électroniquement

LUXOTTICA
SOUTH PACIFIC

OPSM GROUP PTY LIMITED | MACQUARIE PARK-NSW PTY LIMITED 100,00 100,00 67.613.043,50 | AUD
LUXOTTICA

OPTICAL PROCUREMENT RETAIL NORTH

SERVICES LLC DOVER AMERICA INC 100,00 100.00 100,00 | USD
LUXOTTICA

OPTICAS GMO CHILE SA | COMUNA DE HUECHURABA | GROUP SPA 0,00 100,00 4.129.182,00 | CLP
SUNGLASS HUT

OPTICAS GMO CHILE SA | COMUNA DE HUECHURABA | IBERIA S.L. 100,00 100,00 4.129.182,00 | CLP

OPTICAS GMO COLOMBIA SUNGLASS HUT

SAS BOGOTA' IBERIA S.L. 100,00 100,00 | 14.813.033.000,00 | COP

OPTICAS GMO ECUADOR OPTICAS GMO

SA GUAYAQUIL PERU SAC 0,00 100,00 8.000.000,00 | USD

OPTICAS GMO ECUADOR SUNGLASS HUT

SA GUAYAQUIL IBERIA S.L. 100,00 100,00 8.000,000,00 | USD
SUNGLASS HUT

OPTICAS GMO PERU SAC | LIMA IBERIA S.L. 100,00 100.00 11,201,141,00 | PEN
OPTICAS GMO

OPTICAS GMO PERU SAC | LIMA ECUADOR SA 0,00 100,00 11.201.141,00 | PEN

ST ALBANS- LUXOTTICA
OPTIKA HOLDINGS LIMITED | HERTFORDSHIRE RETAIL UK LTD 100,00 100,00 699.900,00 | GBP
ST ALBANS- LUXOTTICA

OPTIKA LIMITED HERTFORDSHIRE RETAIL UK LTD 100,00 100,00 2,00 | GBP
LUXOTTICA

OY LUXQTTICA FINLAND AB | ESPOO GROUP SPA 100,00 100,00 170.000,00 | EUR

PROTECTOR SAFETY OPSM GROUP

INDUSTRIES PTY LTD MACQUARIE PARK-NSW PTY LIMITED 100,00 100,00 2.486.250,00 | AUD
THE UNITED

RAY BAN SUN OPTICS STATES SHOE

INDIA LIMITED BHIWADI CORPORATION 0,00 100,00 | 228.372.710.00 | RUP
LUXOTTICA
TRADING AND

RAY BAN SUN OPTICS FINANCE

INDIA LIMITED BHIWADI LIMITED 0,00 100,00 | 228.372.710,00 | RUP

RAY BAN SUN OPTICS ARNETTE OPTIC

INDIA LIMITED BHIWADI ILLUSIONS INC 0,00 100,00 | 228.372.710.00 | RUP
LUXOTTICA US

RAY BAN SUN OPTICS HOLDINGS

INDIA LIMITED BHIWADI CORP 100,00 100,00 228.372.710,00 | RUP

RAY BAN SUN OPTICS LUXOTTICA

INDIA LIMITED BHIWADI HOLLAND BV 0,00 100,00 | 228.372.710,00 [ RUP

RAY BAN SUN OPTICS LUXOTTICA SUN

INDIA LIMITED BHIWADI CORPORATION 0.00 100,00 | 228.372.710,00 | RUP

RAY BAN SUN OPTICS SUNGLASS HUT

INDIA LIMITED BHIWADI TRADING LLC 0,00 100,00 |  228.372.710,00 | RUP

RAYBAN AR AGORDO LUXOTTICA SRL 36,96 100,00 8,210.624,62 | EUR
LUXOTTICA

RAYBAN AR AGORDO GROUP SPA 63.04 100,00 8.210.624,62 | EUR
SUNGLASS HUT

RAYS HOUSTON MASON-OHIO TRADING LLC 51,00 51,00 1.00 | USD

SALMOIRAGHI & VIGANO' LUXOTTICA

SPA (*") MILANO GROUP SPA 36,33 36,33 11,919,861,00 | EUR
LUXOTTICA
TRADING AND

SGH BRASIL COMERCIO DE FINANCE

OCULOS LTDA SAN PAOLO LIMITED 0.01 100,00 61,720.000,00 | BRL

SGH BRASIL COMERCIO DE LUXOTTICA

OCULOS LTDA SAN PAOLO GROUP SPA 99.99 100,00 61,720.000,00 | BRL
LUXOTTICA
RETAIL

SGH OPTICS MALAYSIA AUSTRALIAPTY

SDN BHD KUALA LAMPUR LTD 100,00 100,00 3.000.002.00 | MYR

SPV ZETA OPTICAL LUXOTTICA

COMMERCIAL AND (CHINA)

TRADING (SHANGHAI) CO INVESTMENT

LTD SHANGHAI COLTD 100,00 100,00 137.734.713,00 | USD
LUXOTTICA
(CHINA)

SPV ZETA Oplical Trading INVESTMENT

(Beijing) Co Ltd BEING coLTD 100,00 100,00 |  549.231.000,00 | CNR

SUNGLASS DIRECT LUXOTTICA

GERMANY GMBH GRASBRUNN GROUP SPA 100,00 100,00 200.000,00 | EUR

SUNGLASS DIRECT ITALY LUXOTTICA

SRL MILANO GROUP SPA 100,00 100,00 200,000.00 | EUR

SUNGLASS FRAMES LUXOTTICA

SERVICE SA DE CV CITTA' DEL MESSICO GROUP SPA 0,02 7252 | 2.350.000,00 [ MXN
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SUNGLASS HUT

SUNGLASS FRAMES DE MEXICO

SERVICE SA DE CV CITTA' DEL MESSICO SAPI DE CV 99,98 72,52 2.350,000,00 | MXN

SUNGLASS HUT (South East LUXOTTICA

Asia) PTE LTD SINGAPORE HOLLAND BY 100,00 100,00 10.100.000,00 | SGD
SUNGLASS HUT
RETAIL SOUTH

SUNGLASS HUT AIRPORTS | CAPE TOWN - AFRICA (PTY)

SOUTH AFRICA (PTY) LTD * | OBSERVATORY LTD 45,00 45,00 1.000,00 | ZAR

SUNGLASS HUT OPSM GROUP

AUSTRALIA PTY LIMITED MACQUARIE PARK-NSW PTY LIMITED 100,00 100,00 46.251.012,00 | AUD

SUNGLASS HUT DE LUXOTTICA

MEXICO SAPI DE CV CITTA DEL MESSICO GROUP SPA 72,52 72,52 315,770,00 | MXN
LUXOTTICA
TRADING AND

SUNGLASS HUT DE FINANCE

MEXICO SAPI DE CV CITTA DEL MESSICO LIMITED 0,00 72,52 315.770,00 | MXN
PROTECTOR
SAFETY

SUNGLASS HUT HONG INDUSTRIES

KONG LIMITED HONG KONG-HONG KONG PTY LTD 100,00 100,00 1156.000.002,00 | HKD

SUNGLASS HUT HONG OPSM GROUP

KONG LIMITED HONG KONG-HONG KONG PTY LIMITED 0.00 100,00 115.000.002,00 | HKD
LUXOTTICA

SUNGLASS HUT IBERIA S.L. | BARCELONA GROUP SPA 100,00 100,00 8.147.795,20 | EUR

SUNGLASS HUT IRELAND LUXOTTICA

LIMITED DUBLINO RETAIL UKLTD 100,00 100,00 250,00 | EUR

SUNGLASS HUT LUXOTTICA

NETHERLANDS BV AMSTERDAM GROUP SPA 100,00 100,00 18.151.20 | EUR
LUXOTTICA US

SUNGLASS HUT OF HOLDINGS

FLORIDA INC WESTON-FLORIDA CORP 100,00 100,00 10,00 | USD

SUNGLASS HUT PORTUGAL LUXOTTICA

S.A LISBONA GROUP SPA 47,92 100,00 3.043.129.00 | EUR

SUNGLASS HUT PORTUGAL SUNGLASS HUT

S.A. LISBONA IBERIA S.L. 52,08 100,00 3.043.129,00 | EUR
SUNGLASS HUT
RETAIL SOUTH

SUNGLASS HUT RETAIL AFRICA (PTY)

NAMIBIA (PTY) LTD WINDHOEK LTD 100,00 100,00 100.00 | NAD
LUXOTTICA

SUNGLASS HUT RETAIL CAPE TOWN - SOUTH AFRICA

SOUTH AFRICA (PTY) LTD OBSERVATORY PTY LTD 100,00 100,00 900,00 | ZAR
LUXOTTICA US

SUNGLASS HUT TRADING HOLDINGS

LLC DOVER-DELAWARE CORP 100,00 100,00 1.00 | UsD
LUXOTTICA

SUNGLASS HUT TURKEY TRADING AND

GOZLUK TICARET ANONIM FINANCE

SIRKETI CIGLI-IZMIR LIMITED 100,00 100,00 13.000.000,00 | LTL

SUNGLASS TIME (EUROPE) | ST ALBANS- LUXOTTICA

LIMITED HERTFORDSHIRE RETAIL UKLTD 100,00 100.00 10.000,00 | GBP
SUNGLASS HUT

SUNGLASS WORLD AUSTRALIA PTY

HOLDINGS PTY LIMITED MACQUARIE PARK-NSW LIMITED 100,00 100,00 13.309.475,00 | AUD

THE OPTICAL SHOP OF

ASPEN INC IRVINE-CALIFORNIA OAKLEY INC 100.00 100,00 1,00 | USD

THE UNITED STATES SHOE LUXOTTICA USA

CORPORATION DOVER-DELAWARE LLC 100,00 100,00 1.00 | USD
LUXOTTICA
RETAIL
AUSTRALIA PTY

WAS BE RETAIL PTY LTD MACQUARIE PARK-NSW LTD 100,00 100,00 110,00 | AUD
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SCHEDULE 3

Exchange Rates Applied To Translation Of Financial Statements Not Expressed In Euro

Average exchange rale  Final exchange rate Average exchange rale  Final exchange rate
as of December 31,2013 as of December 31,2013 as of December 31,2012 as of December 31,2012

Argentine Peso 72718 8,9891 5,8403 6,4864
Australian Dollar 1,3766 1,5423 1,2407 1,2712
Brazilian Real 2,8662 3,2576 2,5084 2,7036
Canadian Dollar 1,3679 1,4671 1,2842 1,3137
Chilean Peso 657,9055 724,7690 624,7870 631,7290
Chinese Renminbi 8,1630 8,3491 8,1052 8,2207
Colombian Peso 2.482,2448 2.664,4199 2.309,5708 2.331,2300
Croatian Kuna 7,5787 7,6265 71,5217 7,5575
Great Britain Pound 0,8492 0,8337 0,8109 0,8161
Hong Kong Dollar 10,2988 10,6933 9,9663 10,2260
Hungarian Forint 296,9317 297,0400 289,2494 292,3000
Indian Rupee 77,8649 85,3660 68,5973 72,5600
Israeli Shekel 4,7938 4,7880 4,9536 4,9258
Japanese Yen 129,5942 144,7200 102,4919 113,6100
Malaysian Ringgit 4,1838 4,5221 3,9672 4,0347
Mexican Peso 16,9551 18,0731 16,9029 17,1845
Namibian Dollar 12,8251 14,5660 10,5511 11,1727
New Zealand Dollar 1,6199 1,6762 1,5867 1,6045
Norwegian Krona 7,8044 83630 74751 7,3483
Peruvian Nuevo Sol 3,5896 3,8586 3,3901 3,3678
Polish Zloty 4,1974 4,1543 4,1847 4,0740
Russian Ruble 43,8514 45,3246 N/A N/A
Singapore Dollar 1,6613 1,7414 1,6055 1,6111
South African Rand 12,8251 14,5660 10,5511 11,1727
South Korean Won 1.453,6873 1.450,9301 1.447,6913 1.406,2300
Swedish Krona 8,6492 8,8591 8,7041 8,5820
Swiss Franc 1,2310 1,2276 1,2053 1,2072
Taiwan Dollar 39,4168 41,1400 37,9965 38,3262
Thai Baht 40,8032 45,1780 39,9276 40,3470
Turkish Lira 2,5319 2,9605 2,3135 2,3551
U.S. Dollar 1,3277 1,3791 1,2848 1,3194
United Arab Emirates Dirham 4,8768 5,0654 4,7190 4,8462
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DELFIN S.a r.1.

7, rue de la Chapelle
1-1325 Luxembourg
Share capital Euro 682.960.000
R.C.S. Luxembourg: B117.420

2013 CONSOLIDATED REPORT ON OPERATIONS

Dear Partners of Delfin S.a rl.,

We submit the consolidated financial statements of the Delfin S.a r.l. Group at 31 December 2013 for your examination.

GROUP PROFILE

The Group’s result largely reflects the activities of the Group's operating companies in the spectacles business and the financial
activities of its parent company.

OPERATING PERFORMANCE AND SIGNIFICANT EVENTS IN 2013

Delfin S.2 r.1. and its financial subsidiaries, did not operate commercial or production activities during 2013. ‘T'he principal object
of the parent company and its subsidiaries was the simple ownership of equity investments and operation of financial activities
on their own behalf. These holding companies own and manage strategic and non-strategic investments and manage liquidity.
Just as in previous years, almost all of the parent company’s revenues are generated by financial income, consisting principally of
dividends paid by the subsidiaries and associated companies.

In 2013, the company carried out a number of important financial transactions.

Specifically, Delfin S.a r.l.:

- engaged in trades of certain equity investments that it owned, by buying or selling shares on the market;
- engaged in trading of certain financial instruments that it owned;

- increasced its equity investment in Fonciére des Régions (FDR) in several increments;

- played an important role in the drafting the new governance of FDR;

- increased and renewed some of its own loans reccived from Luxembourg banks;

- increased its equity investment in Unicredit Group;

- sale and purchase shares of Luxottica Group.

E arl p

The 2013 consolidated financial statements closed with a profit for the Group of Iiuro 405.028 thousand,
compared to a profit of Euro 201.805 thousand in 2012. Operating income was Euro 1.048 million, against
Euro 963 million in 2012.

Excluding the eyewear sector, the Group’s activity during the year concentrated on managing the liquid assets
generated over the previous financial years and investment thereof.

‘The majority of financial income was represented by dividends, interest income and the capital gains realised by the parent
company, from which must be subtracted the costs, capital losses and interest expenses of the Luxottica Group and its parent
company. The account “Income and expenses from associates” largely reflects the impairment of the equity investment held in
the company Fonciére des Regions, which was consolidated according to the equity method.

"The Group’s tax burden for the year increased in 2012, from Huro 312 million to Euro 419 million in 2013.
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ANALYSIS OF RELEVANT PARTICIPATIONS

At the end of the financial year, the company dircetly owned 293.048.525 shares of luxottica Group S.p.A., equivalent to
61,902% of the share capital. Luxottica is fully consolidated in Delfin.

Luxottica is a global leader in the design, manufacture and distribution of fashion, luxury, sport and performance cyewear.

Thanks to the strong growth cnjoyed throughout 2013, total net sales reached a record Buro 7,3 billion, net income increased to
more than luro 544 million (part of group 61,902%), headcount approximated 70.000 employees and the Company enjoyed a
strong global presence.

IFounded in 1961 by Leonardo Del Vecchio, the Group is now a vertically integrated organization whose manufacturing of
prescription frames, sunglasses and lenses is backed by a wide-reaching wholesale and retail distribution network comprising
6.417 retail locations, as of 31 December 2013, mostly in North America, Asia-Pacific and China.

Product design, development and manufacturing take place in six production facilitics in Ttaly, two wholly owned factories in
China and two sports sunglasses production facilities in the United States. Luxottica also has a small plant in India serving the
local market.

The design and quality of our products and the strong and well-balanced brand portfolio are known around the world.

House brands include Ray-Ban, one of the world’s best-known sun brands, Oakley, Vogue, Persol, Oliver Peoples, Arnctte and
REVO, and the license brands include Bvlgari, Burberry, Chanel, Dolce & Gabbana, [Donna Karan, Polo Ralph Lauren, Paul
Smith, Prada, Stella McCartney, Tiffany, Tory Burch, Versace, Coach and starting from 2013 Armani.

The Luxottica’s wholesale distribution network, covering 130 countrics across five continents, has 18 distribution centers and
over 40 commercial subsidiarics providing direct operations in key markets. ‘The Group is currently sccking to penctrate
cmerging markets and is exploring new channels of distribution such as department stores, airports and railway stations.

Direct wholesale operations are complemented by an extensive retail network. Luxottica is a leader in the prescription business
in North America with its LensCrafters and Pearle Vision retail brands, in Asfa-Pacific with OPSM, Laubman & Pank and
Budget Fyewcar, and in China with LensCrafters. In the retail sun business, the Group operates approximately 2.480 retail
locations in North America, Asia-Pacific, South Africa, llurope and the Middle 1ast, mainly through the Sunglass Iut brand.

In North America, Luxottica operates the points of sale for its licensed brands, with over 1.140 stores under the Sears Optical
and Target Optical brands. Tn addition, Luxottica is onc of the largest Managed Vision Care operators in the United States,
through FEycMed, and the second biggest lens finisher, having a nctwork of five central laboratories and over 900 on-site labs at
LensCrafters stores.

"I'he OQakley brand provides a powerful wholesale and retail (“O stores™) presence in both the performance optics and the sport
chanacls. In the O store locations, the Group offers a varicty of Oakley-branded products in addition to the Qakley sunglass
styles. Oakley-branded products include men’s and women’s apparel, footwear, backpacks and accessories designed for surf,
snow, golf, outdoor, motor sport, mountain bike and other athletic lifestyles.

“I'he company owns at the end of 2013 a relevant stake, 27,63%, in the I'rench real estate company Fonciére des Régions (I11DR)
that 15 consolidated with the equity method.

Foncitre des Régions (IFDR), based in France, is today the leading office property company in Europe. A specialist in “key
account”partnerships and long leases, it currently has asscts of Tiuro 10 billion leased to large companics, including France
"I'élécom, Thalés, Accor, BIDI, Dassault Systémes, Sucz Environnement, TBM, ‘T'clecom Ttalia and “T'ecnimont. Tts recognised
expertise has cnabled Fonciere des Régions to develop long-term real estate and financial partnerships and grow as a key player
in the real estate sector.

It has also successfully launched its business model in other sectors of activity such as business premises (through Foncicre des
Murs (I'DM, listed in Paris)) and in the residential sector as main sharcholder in Fonciere Développement Logements (KDDL,
listed in Paris).

IFDR’s Tfigures as at 31 December 2013:

IZuro 10 billion in asscts (Group sharc)

[luro 502 million in reatal income (Group share)
290 employees

NAV Luro 77,7

LTV 452%

Breakdown of portfolio by type of assets 63% offices, 19% tesidential, 9% service scctor
Iy y p > >
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Breakdown of portfolio by country 62% Iirance, 21% in Ttaly, 16% Germany
I'irm residual lease term 5,7 years
Occupancy rate 96%

lts partnership culture and long-term vision made lionciére des Régions enthusiastic about committing to an ambitious
approach to sustainable development, where the cnvironmental aspect takes pride of place and supplements social and
corporate actions.

lonciére des Régions has a consistent global strategy suited to the direct and indirect issucs and impact associated with its real
estate activity,

TREASURY STOCK

Delfin S.a 1.l does not own treasury stock.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND
BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Jannary

On 20 January 2014 the Group received an upgrade of its long-term credit rating from BBB+ to A- by Standard & Poor’s. The
rating A- also applies to our LM TN program and all our outstanding notes, including the lurobonds due November 10, 2015
and 19 March 2019,

On 31 January 2014 the Group completed the acquisition of Glasses.com from Well Point Inc.. The purchase price was
approximately USD 40 million.

February

On 10 lebruary 2014, the Group completed an offering in Europe to institutional investors of Kuro 500 million of senior
unsecured guaranteed notes due 10 licbruary 2024, Taterest on the notes accrues at 2,625% per annum (ISIN X81030851791).
The bond received a rating A-.

July

On July, Delfin S.a r.l. and Aterno S .. extended the credit lines for an additional year until 30 June 2014.
Delfin S.a 1.l has a credit line for Furo 1,2 billion and Aterno S.a r.l. for uro 0,3 billion.

November

On 12 November 2014 Mr. Del Veechi subscribed to the capital increase of the Company Delfin 8.4 rl. for the amount of
162.030.050.

During the subsequent months of 2014 the Company has continued its activity of acquiring and sclling participations and other

securities. Morcover, the company has received dividends from its financial fixed asscts and paid dividends to its Sole
Sharcholder.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES TO WHICH THE GROUP IS EXPOSED

Ttuture operating results and financial condition of the Group may be affected by various factors, including those set forth
below.

Risks Relating to Our Industry and General Economic Conditions

1 crvent cconomic conditions: deteriarate, demand for our products gaﬂ,{l{f be r.frff‘r‘agegr g,zp.rw .fm’ acess [0 credit :N;"." 4"_{ mfm m‘ and anr un!gmm and

olfiers with which we do bustuess will suflér frneaneial landidy,
operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Our operations and performance depend significantly on worldwide cconomic conditions. Uncestainty about global cconomic
conditions poscs a risk to our business because consumers and businesses may postpone spending in response to tighter credit
markets, unemployment, negative financial news and/or declines in income or asset values, which could have a material adverse
cffect on demand for our products and services. Discretionary spending is affected by many factors, including genceral business
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conditions, inflation, interest rates, consumer debt levels, unemployment rates, availability of consumer credit, conditions in the
real estate and mortgage markets, currency exchange rates and other matters that influence consumer confidence. Many of these
factors are outside our control. Purchases of discretionary items could decline during periods in which disposable income is
lower or prices have increased in response to rising costs or in periods of actual or perceived unfavorable cconomic conditions.
If this occurs or if unfavorable economic conditions continue to challenge the consumer environment, our business, results of
operations, financial condition and cash flows could be materially adversely affected.

In the event of financial turmoil affecting the banking system and financial markets, additional consolidation of the financial
services industry or significant failure of financial services institutions, there could be a tightening of the credit markets,
decreased liquidity and extreme volatility in fixed income, credit, currency, and equity markets. In addition, the credit crisis
could continuc to have material adverse cffects on our business, including the inability of customers of our wholesale
distribution business to obtain credit to finance purchases of our products, restructurings, bankruptcies, liquidations and other
unfavorable cvents for our consumers, customers, vendors, supplicrs, logistics providers, other service providers and the
financial institutions that are counterpartics to our credit facilitics and other derivative transactions. The likelihood that such
third partics will be unable to overcome such unfavorable financial difficultics may increase. If the third parties on which we
tely for goods and services or our wholesale customers are unable to overcome financial difficulties resulting from the
deterioration of worldwide economic conditions or if the counterpartics to our credit facilitics or our derivative transactions do
not perform their obligations as intended, our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows could be
materially adversely affected.

i et

We cutrently operate worldwide and have begun to expand our operations in many countries, including certain developing
countries in Asia, South Amecrica and Africa. Thercfore, we are subject to various risks inherent in conducting business
internationally, including the following:

. exposure to local economic and political conditions;

. export and import restrictions;

. currency exchange rate fluctuations and currency controls;

. cash repatriation restrictions;

. application of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and similar laws;

. difficulty in enforcing intellectual property and contract rights;

. distuptions of capital and trading markets;

. accounts receivable collection and longer payment cycles;

. potential hostilitics and changes in diplomatic and trade relationships;

. legal or regulatory requirements;

. withholding and other taxes on remittances and other payments by subsidiarics;

. local antitrust and other market abuse provisions;

. investment restrictions or requirements; and

. local content laws requiring that certain products contain a specified minimum percentage of domestically produced
components.

The likelihood of such occurrences and their potential cffect on us vary from country to country and are unpredictable, but any
such vccurrence may result in the loss of sales or increased costs of doing business and may have a material adverse effect on
our business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.
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e sl alfernatives fncrease, onr

Q;ufcmbgﬁ \ m)‘n’ suffer throngh a n;a’m tion of siales a.[ I f;mmﬁfmﬂ evenrar prodiets, uclding fepses aud dcessorics.

Our business could be negatively impacted by the availability and acceptance of vision correction alternatives to prescription
cyeglasses, such as contact lenses and refractive optical surgery.

Increased use of vision correction alternatives could result in decreased use of our prescription eyewear products, including a
reduction of sales of lenses and accessories sold in our retail outlets, which could have a material adverse impact on our
business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

For certain risks, we do not maintain insurance coverage because of cost and/or availability. Because we retain some portion of
our insurable risks, and in some cases sclf-insure completely, unforeseen or catastrophic losses in excess of insured limits could
materially adverscly affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Risks Relating to Our Business and Operations

"I'he mid- and premium-price categorics of the prescription frame and sunglasses markets in which we compete are particularly
vulnerable to changes in fashion trends and consumer preferences. Qur historical success s attriburable, in part, to our
introduction of innovative products which are perceived to represent an improvement over products otherwise available in the
market and our ability to develop and defend our brands, especially our Ray-Ban and Oakley proprictary brands. Our future
success will depend on our continued ability to develop and introduce such innovarive products and continued success n
building our brands. 1f we are unable to continue to do so, our future sales could decline, inventory levels could rise, leading to
additional costs for storage and potential write-downs relating to the value of excess inventory, and there could be a negative
impact on production costs since fixed costs would represent a larger portion of total production costs duc to the decline in
quantitics produced, which could materially adversely affect our results of operations.

nroftaliety aud arondth

m///rl be at 1isk.

As part of our growth strategy, we have made, and may continue to make, strategic business acquisitions to cxpand or
complement our business. Our acquisition activitics, however, can be disrupted by overtures from competitors for the targeted
candidates, governmental regulation and rapid developments in our industry. We may face additional cisks and uncertainties
following an acquisition, including (i) difficulty in integrating the newly acquired business and operations in an cfficient and
¢ffective manner, (i) inability to achicve strategic objectives, cost savings and other benefits from the acquisition, (i) the lack of
success by the acquired business in its markets, (iv) the loss of key employees of the acquired business, (v) a decreasc in the
focus of senior management on our operations, (vi) difficulty integrating human resources systems, operating systens, inventory
management systems and assortment planning systems of the acquired business with our systems, (vii) the cultural differences
between our organization and that of the acquired business and (viii) liabilitics that were not known at the time of acquisition or
the need to address tax or accounting issucs.

If we fail to timely recognize or address these matters or to devote adequate resources to them, we may fail to achicve our
growth strategy or otherwise realize the intended benefits of any acquisition. liven if we are able to integrate our business
operations successfully, the integration may not result in the realization of the full benefits of synergies, cost savings, innovation
and operational cfficiencies that may be possible from the integration or in the achicvement of such bencefits within the
forecasted period of time.

1 wwe are wnable to ackiore and mranage growth, operating warping way be reduced as a result of decreased o

In order to achicve and manage our growth cffectively, we are required to increase and streamline production and implement
manufacturing efficiencies where possible, while maintaining strict quality control and the ability to deliver products to our
customers in a timely and cfficient manner. We must also continuously develop new product designs and features, expand our
information systems and operations, and train and manage an increasing number of management level and other employees. If
ly affected and we could lose

we are unable to manage these matters effectvely, our distribution process could be advers
market share in affected regions, which could materially adversely affect our business prospects.
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pregsine prodiects and profifalility could

‘I'he fashion and consumer products industries in which we operate are cyclical. Downturns in general cconomic conditions or
uncertainties regarding future economic prospects, which affect consumer disposable income, have historically adversely
affected consumer spending habits in our principal markets and thus made the growth in sales and profitability of
premium-priced product categorics difficult during such downturns. Therefore, future economic downturns or uncertainties
could have a material adverse cffect on our business, results of operations and financial condition, including sales of our
designer and other premium brands,

The industry is also subject to rapidly changing consumer preferences and future sales may suffer if the fashion and consumer
products industries do not continuc to grow or if consumer preferences shift away from our products. Changes in fashion could
also affect the popularity and, therefore, the value of the fashion licenses granted to us by designers, Any event or circumstance
resulting in reduced market acceptance of one or more of these designers could reduce our sales and the value of our models
from that designer. Unanticipated shifts in consumcr preferences may also result in excess inventory and underutilized
manufacturing capacity. In addition, our success depends, in large part, on our ability to anticipate and react to changing fashion
trends in a timely manner. Any sustained failure to identify and respond to such trends could materially adversely affect our
business, results of operations and financial condition and may result in the write-down of excess inventory and idle
manufacturing facilitics.

We have entered into license agreements that enable us to manufacture and distribute prescription frames and sunglasses under
certain designer names, including Chanel, Prada, Miu Miu, Dolce & Gabbana, Bvlgari, Tiffany & Co., Versace, Burberry, Polo
Ralph lauren, Donna Karan, DKNY, Paul Smith, Brooks Brothers, Stella McCartney, T'ory Burch, Coach, Armani and Starck
Iiyes. These license agreements typically have terms of between three and ten years and may contain options for rencwal for
additional periods and require us to make guaranteed and contingent royalty payments to the licensor. We believe that our
ability to maintain and negotiate favorable license agrecments with leading designers in the fashion and luxury goods industries
is essential to the branding of our products and, therefore, material to the success of our business. Accordingly, if we are unable
to negotiate and maintain satisfactory license arrangements with leading designers, our growth prospects and financial results
could materially suffer from a reduction in sales or an increase in advertising costs and royalty payments to designers. IFor the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, no single license agreement represented greater than 5% of total sales.

L5 e aperate in a comipless infernatiaual enironnent, i vew buvs, reenlations or policies of povernneental prganizations, or changes lo existing ones,

oenr and cangol be praased efficiently, the vty vonld ,"!rm’ i Mesative impact o onr aperations, e abiity fo compele ur onr futute financipl rz‘.l.rfﬁ.\'

Compliance with Huropcan, U.S. and other laws and regulations that apply to our international operations increases our costs of
doing business, including cost of compliance, in certain jurisdictions, and such costs may risc in the future as a result of changes
in these laws and regulatdons or in their interpretation or entforcement. We have implemented policies and procedures designed
to facilitate our compliance with these laws and regulations, but there can be no assurance that our employces, contractors or
agents will not violate such laws and regulations or our policics. Any such violations could individually, or in the aggregate,
materially adversely affect our financial condition or operating results.

Additionally, our Oakley and Iiye Safety Systems subsidiaries are U.S. government contractors and, as a result, we must comply
with, and are affected by, U.S. laws and regulations related to conducting business with the U.S. government. "These laws and
regulations, including requirements to obtain applicable governmental approvals, clearances and certain export licenses, may
imposc additional costs and risks on our business. We also may become subject to audits, reviews and investigations of our
compliance with these laws and regulations.
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additional costy to defend spch rights.

We rely on trade secret, unfair competition, trade dress, trademark, patent and copyright laws to protect our rights to certain
aspects of our products and services, including product designs, proprictary manufacturing processes and technologies, product
research and concepts and goodwill, all of which we believe are important to the suceess of our products and seeviees and our
competitive position. [Towever, pending trademark or patent applications may not in all instances result in the issuance of a
registered trademark or patent, and trademarks or patents granted may not be effective in thwarting competition or be held
ralid if subscquently challenged. In addition, the actions we take to protect our proprictary rights may be inadequate to prevent
imitation of our products and services. Our proprictary information could become known to competitors, and we may not be
able to meaningfully protect our rights to proprictary information. IFurthermore, other companies may independently develop
substantially cquivalent or better products or scrvices that do not infringe on our intellectual property rights or could assert
tights in, and ownership of, our proprictary rights. Moreover, the laws of certain countries do not protect proprictary rights to
the same extent as the laws of the United States or of the member states of the uropean Union.

Consistent with our strategy of vigorously defending our intellectual property rights, we devote substantial resources to the
enforcement of patents issued and trademarks granted to us, to the protection of our trade secrets or other intellectual property
rights and to the determination of the scope or validity of the proprictary rights of others that might be asserted against us.
However, if the level of potentially infringing activitics by others were to increase substantially, we might have to significantly
increase the resources we devote to protecting our rights. rom time to time, third partics may assert patent, cop)ught
trademark or similar rights against intellectual property that is important to our business. The resolution or compromise of any
litigation or other legal process to enforce such alleged third party rights, regardless of its merit or resolution, could be costly
and divert the efforts and attention of our management. We may not prevail in any such litigation or other legal process or we
may compromisc or scttle such claims because of the complex technical issues and inherent uncertainties in intcllectual property
disputes and the significant expense in defending such claims. Aun adverse determination in any dispute involving our
proprictary rights could, among other things, () require us to coexist in the market with competitors utilizing the same or
similar intellectual property, (if) require us to grant licenses to, or obtain licenses from, third parties, (if)) prevent us from
manufacturing or sclling our products, (iv) require us to discontinuce the use of a particular patent, trademark, copyright or trade
sceret or (v) subject us to substantial lability. Any of these possibilitics could have a material adverse effect on our business by
reducing our future sales or causing us to incur significant costs to defend our rights.

ufler e logy in safes

Our sales depend in part on our relationships with the host stores that allow us to operate our retail Licensed Brands division,
including Scars Optical and T'arget Optical. Our leases and licenses with Sears Optical are terminable upon short notice. If our
relationship with Sears Optical ot ‘Target Optical were to end, we would suffer a loss of sales and the possible impairment of
certain intangible assets. This could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and
prospects.

The mid- and premium-price categories of the prescription frame and sunglasses mackets in which we operate are highly
competitive. We believe that, in addition to successfully introducing new products, responding to changes in the market
cavitonment and maintaining superior production capabilities, our ability to remain competitive is highly dependent on our
success in maintaining an efficient distribution network. If we arc unable to maintain an cfficient distribution network ot if there
is a significant distuption to our plants or nctwork, our sales may decline due to the inability to timely deliver products to
customers and our profitability may decline due to an increase in our per unit distribution costs in the affected regions, which
may have a material adverse impact on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

I e wwere fo beconre subiect 1o adeerse fiudoments or dotermwinations in fega verli Z . or ppay become, a party, onr fitnre profitubiliy
conld suffor through a reduction of cales, increased costs or damage fo onr veputation die fo our failure fo_adeguately commmnicate the mipad of any

such proceeding or ils onitconse Lo the investor and business commiinities.

We are curcently a party to certain legal proceedings as described in consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2013.7
Tn addition, in the ordinary course of our business, we become involved in various other claims, lawsuits, investigations and
governmental and administrative proceedings, some of which are or may be significant. Adverse judgments or determinations in
one or morc of these proceedings could require us to change the way we do business or use substantial resources in adhering to
the scttlements and could have a material adverse effect on our business, including, among other consequences, by significantly
increasing the costs required to operate our business.
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Incffective communications, during or after these procecdings, could 1mpll[‘\r the negative cffects, if any, of these proceedings
on our reputation and may result in a negative market impact on the price of our securitics.

il affect onr fiture respdls.

We are subject to taxes in ltaly, the Unifed States and numerous other jurisdictions. Our future effective tax rates could be
affected by changes in the mix of carnings in countrics with differing statutory tax rates, changes in the valuation of deferred tax
asscts and labilities, or changes in tax laws or their interpretation. Any of these changes could have a material adverse cffect on
our profitability. We also are regularly subject to the examination of our income tax returns by the U.S. lnternal Revenue
Service, the Ttalian tax authority as well as the governing tax authoritics in other countries where we operate. We routinely assess
the likelihood of adverse outcomes resulting from these examinations to determine the adequacy of our provision for taxes.
Currently, some of our companies are under examination by the tax authorities. There can be no assurance that the outcomes of
the current ongoing examinations and possible future examinations will not materially adversely affect our business, resules of
operations, financial condition and prospects.

If theyy ix any material fuilire, inadequaey, .Ff.ffﬂ?‘fg!f{g{f; o1 gt _;_';‘{}3 M{Jﬂv ol our fufirmali i 'y idess, ‘ T |
wenaged {y third parties, this sy resulf in c dire fo an inalbilify to Msh’] process (ufarmation ry'm" {nr‘f’mr{ﬂ' aosts of

oberating onr business.

We rely on information technology systems both managed internally and outsourced to third parties across our operations,
including for management of our supply chain, point-of-sale processing in our stores and various other processes and
transactions. Our ability to effectively manage our business and coordinate the production, distribution and sale of our products
depends on, among other things, the reliability and capacity of these systems. The failure of these systems to operate cffectively,
network disruptions, problems with transitioning to upgraded or replacement systems, or a breach in data security of these
systems could cause delays in product supply and sales, reduced cfficiency of our operations, unintentional disclosure of
customer or other confidential information of the Company leading to additional costs and possible fines or penaltics, or
damage to our reputation, and potentially significant capital investments and other costs could be required to remediate the
problem, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

qalile valme, sl eharger contdd have a

I we record @ write-dow for inventories oy other assels thar are obsolete or exeeed anticipated deprand or et realf

We record a write-down for product and component inventories that have become obsolete or exceed anticipated demand or
net realizable value. We review our Jong-lived asscts for impairment whenever events or changed circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an assct may not be recoverable, and we determine whether valuation allowances are needed against other
assets, including, but not limited to, accounts receivable. If we determine that impairments or other events have occurred that
lead us to believe we will not fully realize these assets, we record a write-down or a valuation allowance equal to the amount by
which the carrying value of the assets exceeds their fair market value. Although we believe our inventory and other assct-related
provisions arc currently adequate, no assurance can be made that, given the rapid and uapredictable pace of produce
obsolescence, we will not incur additional inventory or assct-related charges, which charges could have a material adverse effect
on our results of operations.

Tid o

La.r.wrfn Del T eechi, oar dﬁt}!ﬂmﬂr el {eruﬂr/ rfrJ.Hm/}.-'rrr. m.:.rfm/\ 61.36% of onr m}'mg hauer ﬂmi’ £ fn a posiion to qrfk:«' agﬂ angwug
- - I ! y s '

control.

As of 31 December 2013, Mr. Leonardo Del Veechio, the Chairman of our Board of Directors, through the company
Delfin S.a r.l, has voting rights over 293,048,525 Ordinary Sharcs, or 61.36% of the outstanding Ordinary Shares. See Item 7—
“Major Sharcholders and Related Party T'ransactions.” As a result, My, 1De] Vecechio has the ability to exert significant influence
over our corporate affairs and to control the outcome of virtually all matters submitted to a vote of our stockholders, including
the clection of our directors, the amendment of our Arricles of Association or By-laws, and the approval of mergers,
consolidations and other significant corporate transactions.

Mr. Del Veechio’s interests may conflict with or differ from the interests of our other stockholders. T situations involving a
conflict of interest between Mr. Del Veechio and our other stockholders, Mr. Del Veechio may exercise his control in a manner
that would benefit himself to the potential detriment of other stockholders. Mr. Del Vecchio’s significant ownership interest
could delay, prevent or cause a change in control of vur company, any of which may be adverse to the interests of our other
stockholders.
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If onr procedseres desioned to comply with Section 404 of the Sarbuanes- Oy Agt of 2002 canse pr to identify waterial avaknesses in onr internal
confred aver financial reporting, the trading price of onr secprities may be adeersely impacted,

Qur annual report on Form 20-17 includes a report from our management relating to its evaluation of our internal control over
financial reporting, as required under Scction 404 of the U.S. Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended. There are inherent
limitations on the effectiveness of internal controls, including collusion, management override and failure of human judgment.
In addition, control procedures arc designed to reduce, rather than climinate, business risks. Notwithstanding the systems and
procedures we have implemented to comply with these requirements, we may uncover circumstances that we determine, with
the assistance of our independent auditors, to be material weaknesses, or that otherwise result in disclosable conditions. Any
identified material weaknesses in our internal control structure may tavolve significant effort and expense to remediate, and any
disclosure of such material weaknesses or other conditions requiring disclosure may result in a negative market reaction to our
securities.

Financial Risks

I the Bnro ar the Chinese Ynen strenpthens relative to certain other curreucies or il the ULS. dollar weakens refative fo the Upro, onr profitability as a

consolidated group conld siffer.

Qur principal manufacturing facilitics are located in Tealy. We also maintain manufacturing facilities in China, Brazil, India and
the United States as well as sales and disteibution facilitics throughout the world. As a result, our results of operations could be
materially adversely affected by foreign exchange rate fluctuations in two principal arcas:

B we incur most of our manufacturing costs in Furo and in Chinese Yuan, and receive a significant part of our revenues
in other currencies such as the U.S. dollar and the Australian dollar. ‘T'herefore, a strengthening of the Turo or the Chinese Yuan
relative to other currencies in which we receive revenues could negatively impact the demand for our products or decrease our
profitability in consolidation, adversely affecting our business and results of operations; and

. a substantial portion of our asscts, liabilitics, revenues and costs are denominated in various currencics other than
Furo, with a substantial portion of our revenues and operating expenses being denominated in U.LS. dollars. As a result, our
operating results, which are reported in 1iuro, are affected by currency exchange rate fluctuations, particularly between the 1.8,
dollar and the Turo.

As our international operations grow, future changes in the exchange rate of the Furo against the U.S. dollar and other
currencics may negatively impact our reported results, although we have in place policies designed to manage such risk.

If cconomic_couditions aromnd the world worsen. we pay exporionsy an fncrease in onr exposure to redid sk o onr aeconuls recervialile wihich bl
resnil in increased costy de (o additional reserves for doslifif acconnts amd a_reduction in sales to customers exherieucing credit - related fssies,

A substantial majority of our outstanding trade receivables are not covered by collateral or credit insurance. While we have
procedures to monitor and limit exposure to credit risk on our trade and non-trade receivables, there can be no assurance such
procedures will effectively limit our credit risk and avoid losses, which could have a material adverse cffect on our results of
operations.

Luxembourg, 22 January 2015

T'he Managers
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